Public Document Pack

Democratic Services Section

Legal and Civic Services Department B_ElfCISt _
Belfast City Council City Council
City Hall

Belfast

BT15GS

13th September, 2022

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Dear Alderman/Councillor,

The above-named Committee will meet in hybrid format, both in the Council Chamber
and via Microsoft Teams on Tuesday, 20th September, 2022 at 5.00 pm, for the
transaction of the business noted below.

You are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully,

John Walsh

Chief Executive

AGENDA:

1. Routine Matters

(a) Apologies
(b) Minutes
(c) Declarations of Interest

2. Notifications from Statutory Bodies (Report to follow)

3. Extinquishments

(@) Ross Street (Pages 1 -4)
(b) Roumania Rise (Pages5 - 8)

4. Planning Decisions Issued (Pages 9 - 36)

5.  Appeals (Pages 37 - 38)



Planning Applications

@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

()

()]

(h)

(i)

LA04/2022/0594/F 3-storey extension including bridge link to the existing
school building, reconfiguration of existing parking with additional car parking
areas, restoration of hard play areas, landscaping, retaining walls, and
associated site, access and ancillary works at 700 Antrim Road (Pages 39 -
52)

LA04/2022/0917/F Renewal of temporary planning permission, Titanic
Exhibition Centre, at 17 Queens Road (Pages 53 - 70)

LAO04/2021/1985/F 15 storey building comprising 60 x apartments with
ancillary facilities and all other associated site works (amendment to previous
approval Z/2011/0472/F) at 35-41 Queen's Square (Report to follow)

LA04/2022/0209/F 31 social housing units comprising of 16 x apartments and
15 x townhouses, car parking, landscaping and all associated site and access
works on lands at 176-184 and 202 Woodstock Road and 2-20 Beersbridge
Road (Pages 71 - 92)

LA04/2021/2462/F 13 dwellings on lands 60m north west of Hazel View,
Dunmurry (Pages 93 - 106)

LA04/2022/1236/F Art Sculpture on land located at roundabout junction
approx. 100m south west of 385 Springfield Road (Pages 107 - 114)

LA04/2022/1018/F Retention of temporary car park at Ballymacarret
Community Centre (Pages 115 - 124)

LA04/2022/1380/F Installation of three projector units to act as an interactive
lighting installation along hoarding on Castle Street (temporary 2 years), 83-
87 Castle Street (Pages 125 - 132)

LA04/2022/1079/F 1 additional ball stop netting structure along the boundary
with Cregagh Presbyterian Church at Cregagh Sports Club, Gibson Park
Avenue (Pages 133 - 142)

Restricted Items

@)
(b)

Quarter 1 Finance Report (Pages 143 - 154)

Update on Planning Portal Replacement System - Verbal Report






This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3a
- - e G Viarlborough House
HouSl“g REGIONAL SERVICES L“,c;:lw]lflal,if\Lflm/] o

- : Land and Regeneration S
-] T 9 _ N ) Craigavon
_ﬂ)\{—,(l {«j ﬁl\fé:; Place Shaping Team, South Region BT64 1AJ

T 03448 920 900

W nihe.gov.uk

¥ @nihecommunity

Belfast Planning Department
The Cecil Ward Building
4-10 Linenhall Street,
Belfast

BT2 8BP

Date: 30 August 2022 Our Ref: Ross Street Extinguishment

Dear Sirs,

Re: Extinguishment of Public Right of Way — Ross Street Extinguishment order

The Northern Ireland Housing Executive made an Order No 2 on 23 of June 2022 that certain Public
Rights of Way is extinguished. Approval for the extinguishment is presently being sought from the NIHE
Sponsor Team (Housing Division), Department for Communities, Housing Investment Branch, 1-7 Bedford
Street, Belfast, BT2 7EG. The press notice regarding the making of this order is enclosed together with a
map showing the area affected and a copy of the order.

If you wish to make comments, could you please let me have them by 4™ October 2022.

I shall write to you again when the result of the submission is known.

Yours faithfully,

/ . ) meTB\S;C o
/ X DEPARTMENT FOR
Astin (M«,@ PLAGE AND ECONOMY
im— Magui@) RECEIVED

Place Shaping 5 SEP 2022

Belfast Area
BELFAST PLANNING

SERVICE

Page 1



EXTINGUISHMENT OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY
FORM OF ENGROSSMENTS OF ORDER
THE HOUSING (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1981

Whereas the Northern Ireland Housing Executive whose principal office is at 2
Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8PB (hereinafter called “the Housing Executive”)
having acquired certain lands in connection with the Ross Street, Belfast has
by a resolution passed on 23" of June 2022 made an order (an
“extinguishment order”) to extinguish the public rights of way hereinafter
referred to over the said lands shown marked on the map Ross Street, Belfast
Order No.2 2022 and sealed with the common seal of the Northern Ireland
Housing Executive and deposited at the West Belfast Local Offices at the
Public counter, The Housing Centre, 2 Adelaide Street, Belfast BT2 8PB .

NOW THEREFORE the Housing Executive in pursuance of its powers under
Article 88D of the Housing (Northern Ireland) Order 1981 and all other powers
so enabling HEREBY orders as follows:

1. This extinguishment order may be cited as the Ross Street, Belfast
Order No.2 2022.

2. The public rights of way described in the schedule and shown coloured
red and outlined black on the said map shall cease and be
extinguished as from the date of operation of the extinguishment order
subject to the retention of all existing cables wires, mains pipes or other
apparatus placed by an electricity undertaker along, across, over or
under the lands herby transferred shall be retained. All existing rights of
the electricity undertaker as to the use or maintenance of such cables,
wires, mains, pipes or other apparatus shall be preserved.

SCHEDULE
Ross Street Belfast- Extinguishment of Public Rights of Way Order No2 2022

7.5m wide x 79m long strip of adopted car parking laybys in hard-core/asphalt
bordering the Ross Street access road to the north.

7.5m X 79m strip is broken down into 4 separate areas moving west to east
as follows-: 7.5m X 41m, 7.5m X 16m, 7.5m X 15m, 7.5m X 7m. Flat blocks
previously served by the parking laybys have been demolished and adjacent
cleared lands to the south are flat and gravel stoned.

Additional 115m length of straight adopted footpath that is majority 3.5m wide
(narrows to 3m for 60m run) finished in hard-core/asphalt, that runs on
southern boundary of demolished flat blocks, and to north of Maureen
Sheehan Centre health facility

Page 2



FORM OF NOTICE OF MAKING OF ORDER
THE HOUSING (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1981
EXTINGUISHMENT OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY

Notice is hereby given that the Northern Ireland Housing Executive having its
principal office at 2 Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8PB in pursuance of its
powers under Article 88D of the Housing (Northern Ireland) Order 1981 on
23" of June 2022 made an Order (“an extinguishment order”), which will be
submitted to the Department for Communities for approval, to extinguish the
public rights of way over land described in the schedule hereto.

A copy of the extinguishment order and associated map dated 23 of June
2022 referred to therein may be inspected at the West Belfast Local Office
with offices at the Public Counter, The Housing Centre, 2 Adelaide Street,

Belfast BT2 8PB.

The Housing (Northern Ireland) Order 1981 provides that an extinguishment
order shall not have effect until approved by the Department and that an
extinguishment order to which any objection is made and not withdrawn shall
not be approved in circumstances where the Department exercises its
discretion to cause a public local inquiry to be held to hear objections to the
extinguishment order.

Objections to the extinguishment order must be made in writing stating the
grounds for objection and addressed to NIHE Sponsor Team (Housing
Division), Department for Communities, Causeway Exchange, 1-7 Bedford
Street, Belfast BT2 7EG on or before 4" October 2022.

SCHEDULE
Ross Street Belfast- Extinguishment of Public Rights of Way Order No2 2022

7.5m wide x 79m long strip of adopted car parking laybys in hard-core/asphalt
bordering the Ross Street access road to the north.

7.5m X 79m strip is broken down into 4 separate areas moving west to east
as follows-: 7.5m X 41m, 7.5m X 16m, 7.5m X 15m, 7.5m X 7m. Flat blocks
previously served by the parking laybys have been demolished and adjacent
cleared lands to the south are flat and gravel stoned.

Additional 115m length of straight adopted footpath that is majority 3.5m wide
(narrows to 3m for 60m run) finished in hard-core/asphalt, that runs on
southern boundary of demolished flat blocks, and to north of Maureen
Sheehan Centre health facility

Page 3



Cullingir
Fdd

BELFAST, ROSS STREET
Extinguishment of Public Right-of-Way
Order No. 2, 2022

Map Dated 23rd June 2022/@
2 )

NORTHERN IRELAND HOUSING EXECUTIVE,
THE HOUSING CENTRE,
2 ADELAIDE STREET, BELFAST, BT2 8PB

AUTHGLISED OFF(cer.

OSNI Reference: 1.G. 114-13SE4

Scale: 1:1,250 SHLAE S

Your Reference: AETIVE §

Based upon Ordnance Survey of Northern Ireland’s data with the permission of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, ® copyright and database rights NIMA ES&LA209.3 N/HEGIS

Page 4




Agenda Item 3b
Housing REGIONAL SERVICES {‘r;l;’;g?f:lf\fj\{;;‘g" House

- Land and Regeneration Cglivon
. ~ = ¥ P~ ) . LFalgavaol

EX%(i Lﬂl\j f:} Place Shaping Team, South Region BT64 1AJ

T 03448 920 900

W nihe.gov.uk

W @nihecommunity

Belfast Planning Department
The Cecil Ward Building
4-10 Linenhall Street,
Belfast

BT2 8BP

Date: 30 August 2022 Our Ref: Roumania Rise Street Extinguishment
Dear Sirs,

Re: Extinguishment of Public Right of Way —Roumania Rise Extinguishment order

The Northern Ireland Housing Executive made an Order No 2 on 29" of July 2022 that certain Public Rights
of Way is extinguished. Approval for the extinguishment is presently being sought from the NIHE Sponsor
Team (Housing Division), Department for Communities, Housing Investment Branch, 1-7 Bedford Street,
Belfast, BT2 7EG. The press notice regarding the making of this order is enclosed together with a map
showing the area affected and a copy of the order.

If you wish to make comments, could you please let me have them by 4th October 2022.

| shall write to you again when the result of the submission is known.

Yours faithfully,

Place Shaping
Belfast Area

[ M ¥ 1

DEPAR Twik i v (g ;
AiLf # s B

PLAGY ‘ "‘;1) ECONOM Y i

.U EIVED 5

SIS A
o il é'.Ur’...Z

BELF ST »L AN NING

£ 07 oy
s D RV IGE




EXTINGUISHMENT OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY
FORM OF ENGROSSMENTS OF ORDER
THE HOUSING (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1981

Whereas the Northern Ireland Housing Executive whose principal
office is at 2 Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8PB (hereinafter called
“the Housing Executive”) having acquired certain lands in
connection with the Roumania Rise, Belfast has by a resolution
passed on 29" of July 2022 made an order (an “extinguishment
order”) to extinguish the public rights of way hereinafter referred to
over the said lands shown marked on the map Roumania Rise,
Belfast Order No.1 2022 and sealed with the common seal of the
Northern Ireland Housing Executive and deposited at the West
Belfast Local Office with offices at the Public counter, the Housing
Centre 2 Adelaide Street, Belfast BT2 8PB .

NOW THEREFORE the Housing Executive in pursuance of its
powers under Article 88D of the Housing (Northern Ireland) Order
1981 and all other powers so enabling HEREBY orders as follows:

1. This extinguishment order may be cited as the Roumania Rise,
Belfast Order No.1 2022.

2. The public rights of way described in the schedule and shown
coloured red and outlined black on the said map shall cease and be
extinguished as from the date of operation of the extinguishment order
subject to the retention of all existing cables wires, mains pipes or other
apparatus placed by an electricity undertaker along, across, over or
under the lands herby transferred shall be retained. All existing rights of
the electricity undertaker as to the use or maintenance of such cables,
wires, mains, pipes or other apparatus shall be preserved.

SCHEDULE

Roumania Rise Belfast- Extinguishment of Public Rights of Way
Order No1 2022

80m long x average 10m wide adopted roadway/parking area in
hard-core/asphalt; at its widest point the road way/pathway is 31m,
tapering to 21m to the eastern boundary where there is a roughly
square area of hard-core measuring 21m X 21m.

On the southern boundary there is a parking bay arrangement
measuring 33m X 8m in hard-core/ asphalt adjacent to existing
housing at Roumania Rise.

Adopted staggered 80m X average 3m footpath runs to the
northern boundary adjacent to the Maureen Sheehan Centre/
demolished Credit Union site, and similarly 80m X average 3m to
the southern boundary adjacent to Roumania Rise; additional 28m
X 3m portion of pathway on radius of access from Ross Road.

Page 6



FORM OF NOTICE OF MAKING OF ORDER
THE HOUSING (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1981
EXTINGUISHMENT OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY

Notice is hereby given that the Northern Ireland Housing Executive having its
principal office at 2 Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8PB in pursuance of its
powers under Article 88D of the Housing (Northern Ireland) Order 1981 on
29" of July 2022 made an Order (“an extinguishment order”), which will be
submitted to the Department for Communities for approval, to extinguish the
public rights of way over land described in the schedule hereto.

A copy of the extinguishment order and associated map dated 29" of July
2022 referred to therein may be inspected at the West Belfast Local Office
with offices at Public counter, Housing centre, 2 Adelaide Street, Belfast BT2
8PB.

The Housing (Northern Ireland) Order 1981 provides that an extinguishment
order shall not have effect until approved by the Department and that an
extinguishment order to which any objection is made and not withdrawn shall
not be approved in circumstances where the Department exercises its
discretion to cause a public local inquiry to be held to hear objections to the
extinguishment order.

Objections to the extinguishment order must be made in writing stating the
grounds for objection and addressed to NIHE Sponsor Team (Housing
Division), Department for Communities, Causeway Exchange, 1-7 Bedford
Street, Belfast BT2 7EG on or before 4™ October 2022.

SCHEDULE

Roumania Rise, Belfast Extinguishment of Public Right of Way Order No.1
2022.

80m long x average 10m wide adopted roadway/parking area in hard-
core/asphalt; at its widest point the road way/pathway is 31m, tapering to 21m
to the eastern boundary where there is a roughly square area of hard-core
measuring 21m X 21m.

On the southern boundary there is a parking bay arrangement measuring 33m
X 8m in hard-core/ asphalt adjacent to existing housing at Roumania Rise.
Adopted staggered 80m X average 3m footpath runs to the northern boundary
adjacent to the Maureen Sheehan Centre/ demolished Credit Union site, and
similarly 80m X average 3m to the southern boundary adjacent to Roumania
Rise; additional 28m X 3m portion of pathway on radius of access from Ross
Road

Page 7



Cullingiree \—\j
Fdd /

BELFAST, ROUMANIA RISE
Extinguishment of Public Right-of-Way
Order No. 1,2022
Map Dated 28th July 2022

NORTHERN IRELAND HOUSING EXECUTIVE,
THE HOUSING CENTRE,
2 ADELAIDE STREET, BELFAST, BT2 8PB

) —" )

OSNI Reference: I.G. 130-13SW2
Scale: 1:1,250

B & PRSI
Your Reference: SLARITS TR

Based upon Ordnance Survey of Northern Ireland's data with the permission of the Controller
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, © copyright and database rights NIMA ES&LA209.3

N/HEGIS

Page 8




Decisions issued between 10 August and 7 September 2022 - No. 190

Reference Number

LA04/2018/0842/NMC

LA04/2020/0426/F

LA04/2020/1646/F

6 obed

LA04/2020/1658/F

LA04/2020/2042/F

LA04/2020/2421/F

Hierarchy |[Location

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

93-95 Ann Street Belfast
BT1 3HH

228-232 Stewartstown Road
Belfast

Adjacent to 56 & Opposite
123-129 Old Westland Road
Belfast.

On Footpath opposite 153
Cromac Street Belfast BT7
1DX

Lands to the north of Alloa
Street and south & east of

152-162 Manor Street Belfast.

Lands 39M South of 33 Kings
Road Belfast BT5 6JG

Proposal Application Status

Non material change to
LA04/2017/0779/F

Proposed re-construction of petrol PERMISSION GRANTED
station and ancillary retail until

including the replacement of fuel

tanks, pumps and canopy alterations.

Alteration to roof of hot food take

away, compactor and provision of an

EV charging facility (Amended

drawinns)

4 No Terrace dwellings including PERMISSION GRANTED
associated site works (amended
plans).

Proposed telecommunications PERMISSION REFUSED
installation: Proposed Phase 8 15m
Monopole C/W wrapround Cabinet at

base and associated ancillary works.

Proposed erection of 10 no. general PERMISSION GRANTED
needs and 2 no. complex needs

(social housing) dwellings with

associated car parking, amenity

space, hard and soft landscaping and

access arrangements from Alloa

Street (12 units in total).

Proposed new dwelling with hard and PERMISSION REFUSED
soft landscaping

NON MATERIAL CHANGE GRANTED

7 wal| epuaby



Reference Number

LA04/2021/1335/F

LA04/2021/1337/DCA

LA04/2021/1435/LDP

LA04/2021/1728/LDE

LA04/2021/2032/DC

0T abed

LA04/2021/2144/F

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

MAJDEV

Location

88 Malone Road Belfast
BT9 5HP

88 Malone Road Belfast
BT9 5HP.

112 Serpentine Road
Belfast BT36.

5 Edinburgh Street Belfast
BT9 7DS.

Brook Activity Centre 25
Summerhill Road Belfast
BT17 ORL.

150 Knock Road Belfast
BT5 6QD

Proposal

Single storey rear extension with
associated site works and terrace
and new electric access gates

Demolition of single storey detached
garage and single storey rear return.

Residential Development of 16 No.
dwellings as approved under
Z/2000/1483/F and Z/2005/1879/F.
(Amended Description)

A house in multiple occupation

Discharge of condition 17
LA04/2016/2561/F.

Residential (social housing)
development comprising of 2no.
Apartment buildings containing 52no.
apartments (housing mix of 5no.
3p/2b Wheelchair & 47no. 3p/2b CAT
1 apartments) with associated
incurtilage parking and landscaping
(change of design to extant planning
permission ref: Z/2011/0426/F).

Application Status

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

APPLICATION REQUIRED

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

CONDITION DISCHARGED

PERMISSION GRANTED



Reference Number

LA04/2021/2280/F

LA04/2021/2323/F

TT abed

LA04/2021/2348/F

LA04/2021/2367/F

MAJDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

Location

Lands adjacent to and south
east of the river Lagan west of
Olympic Way of Queen's road
Queen's Island Belfast BT2
9EQ

Unit 1 & 2 Ground floor
Forsythe House Cromac
Street Belfast BT2 8LA

Campus Montgomery Rd
Castlereagh Belfast BT6 9JD

1 Malone Meadows Belfast
BT9 5BG.

Proposal Application Status

Mixed use, mixed tenure residential- PERMISSION GRANTED
led development of 778 apartments
in three buildings with internal and
external amenity space; flexible
commercial/community floorspace
(convenience store with hot food
counter/A1/A2/D1
uses/cafe/bar/restaurant); public
realm including public square and
waterfront promenade; cycle and car
parking and associated landscaping,
access roads, plant and site works
including to existing river revetmet
(further environmental information
received)

Retrospective change of use from PERMISSION GRANTED
hair salon and retail to fithess centre
(gym) (Amended Description)

Full application for a new pavilion for PERMISSION GRANTED
the existing sports pitches within the

Belfast Met College area on the

existing carpark site with a small

change of its footprint. The new

pavillion will provide new changing

rooms, shower areas and toilets for

the users.

Proposed single storey side PERMISSION GRANTED
extension to southern elevation of

dwelling and first floor extension over

garage to northern elevation.



Reference Number

Location

Proposal

Application Status

LA04/2021/2445/NMC

LA04/2021/2452/A

LA04/2021/2467/A

LA04/2021/2519/F

2T abed

LA04/2021/2545/F

LA04/2021/2602/F

LA04/2021/2611/LBC

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

1108 Crumlin Road Belfast
BT14 8SA

Bus Shelter at 17 metres south

of 34-38 Grosvenor Road
Belfast BT12 4GN.

1 Glebe Road Dunmurry
Belfast BT17 OPN.

Lands at Nos 348-350
Ormeau Road Belfast BT7
2FZ.

14 The Green Dunmurry
BT17 OEH

Central Steps Belfast City
Cemetery Falls Road
Belfast BT12 6DE.

Central Steps Belfast City
Council Falls Road Belfast
BT12 6DE.

NMC for LA04/2016/1746/F NON MATERIAL CHANGE REFUSED

Conversion of existing six sheet PERMISSION GRANTED
display unit incorporated into an
existing Adshel Bus Shelter to a six
sheet digital display screen.

Shop front signage to include main  PERMISSION GRANTED
illuminated sign above shop front and

window signage.

Variation of condition no.11 of PERMISSION REFUSED
planning approval LA04/2018/0059/F

(variation of restricted opening hours

from 11pm to 01.00am) (additional

noise report & comments)

Replacement Dwelling with flat roof PERMISSION GRANTED
balcony and a new shed to the corner
of the rear garden

Removal of Existing 3m High PERMISSION GRANTED
Palisade Perimeter Fence. New
Metal Railings and Gates with
associated Lighting.

Removal of Existing 3m High PERMISSION GRANTED
Palisade Fence. New Metal Railings

and Gates with associated Lighting

Proposals.



Reference Number Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2021/2674/F LOCDEV Lands immediately east of Retention of 8No. detached two PERMISSION GRANTED
Thornemount Nos. 742 Antrim  storey dwellings, associated car
Road Belfast BT36 7PQ. parking, and all other ancillary site

works (Amendments and change of
house types to scheme previously
approved under LA04/2019/0064/F).

LA04/2021/2678/F LOCDEV Lands opposite Ruby Cottages Proposed construction of 3 No. PERMISSION GRANTED
and St Ellens Terrace dwellings - change of house types C
Edenderry Road Edenderry and D to that previously approved
Village BT8 8JN under LA04/2017/1439/F.
LA04/2021/2722/F LOCDEV 133 Ballylesson Road External ground works only. PERMISSION GRANTED
;JU Belfast BT8 8JU. Conversion of temporary hard
(@) standing to permanent hard standing
D and a proposed tennis court.
(lf) LA04/2021/2826/F LOCDEV Plotl 170 Upper Malone Demolition of existing buildings and PERMISSION GRANTED
Road Belfast BT17 9EH. erection of 2 storey detached

dwelling (revision of site layout and
change of house type in respect of
house approved on plot 1 of
permission LA04/2019/1802/F)
(Amended proposal description and

drawings)
LA04/2021/2827/F LOCDEV Plot 2 170 Upper Malone Demolition of existing buildings and PERMISSION GRANTED
Road Belfast BT17 9EH. erection of 2 storey detached

dwelling and ancillary garage
(revision of site layout and change of
house type in respect of house
approved on plot 2 of permission
LA04/2019/1802/F) (Amended
proposal description and drawings)



Reference Number

LA04/2021/2881/A

LA04/2021/2882/F

LA04/2021/2893/F

T abed

LA04/2022/0030/0

LA04/2022/0031/F

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

MAJDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

Location

Footpath outside Pizza On The
Square Donegall Square
West Belfast BT1 6JA

Footpath outside Pizza On The
Square Donegall Square
West Belfast BT1 6JA

Site bounded by Little York
Street Great George's Street
and Nelson Street Belfast

9 Summerhill Gardens
Belfast BT17 ORB

14 Marlborough Park Cross
Avenue Belfast BT9 6HQ

Proposal Application Status

Two digital 75 inch LCD display PERMISSION GRANTED
screen, one on each side of the
Street Hub unit

Removal of existing BT phone box PERMISSION GRANTED
and installation of a proposed

replacement BT Street Hub and

associated display of advertisement

to both sides of the unit.

Amended Description: Erection of 12 PERMISSION GRANTED
no. storey Purpose Built Managed
Student Accommodation (PBMSA),
with additional use of accommodation
by further or higher education
institutions outside term time,
comprising 774 beds with shared
sports and recreation facilities
(amendment to previous permission
LA04/2016/1252/F “Purpose built
managed student accommodation
(774 beds). Maximum height of 12
storeys and varied by
LA04/2017/2112/F “Variation of
condition 7 of LA04/2016/1252/F)

Proposed dwelling in side garden. PERMISSION REFUSED

Two storey extension to rear and part PERMISSION GRANTED
side, patio to rear.



GT abed

Reference Number

LA04/2022/0032/DCA

LA04/2022/0067/F

LA04/2022/0093/DC

LA04/2022/0094/DC

LA04/2022/0095/DC

LA04/2022/0126/LBC

LA04/2022/0137/F

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

Location

14 Marlborough Park Cross
Avenue Belfast BT9 6HQ

2A Fruithill Park Belfast
BT11 9AH

Proposal

Demolition of existing rear garage
and minor demolition of rear
elevations on ground and first floor to
facilitate extensions.

Replacement dwelling

Lands situated at the junction of Discharge Condition no.2 -

North Queen Street and
Castleton Avenueand
adjacent and west of No. 80
York Street.

Lands at the junction of North
Queen Street and Alexandra
Park Avenue and Adjacent and
west of no 2b Alexandra Park
Avenue Belfast

Lands situated at
Gainsborough Drive south of
Alexandra Park Avenue and
west of North Queen Street
Belfast.

Telecommunications site at
Owen O Cork Mill 288
Beersbridge Road Belfast
BT5 5DX.

16 Wynchurch Terrace
Belfast BT6 OHP.

LAQ04/2021/0531/F

Discharge of condition no.3 -
LA04/2019/0950/F

Discharge of condition no.9 -
LA04/2019/1104/F

Installation of 3No. antennas and all
ancillary development.

Change of roof profile from hipped to
pitched roof to facilitate attic
conversion with rear dormer and
rooflights.

Application Status

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

CONDITION DISCHARGED

CONDITION DISCHARGED

CONDITION DISCHARGED

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED



Reference Number

LA04/2022/0155/F

LA04/2022/0168/LDE

LA04/2022/0295/F

LA04/2022/0332/F

9T abed

LA04/2022/0354/F

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

Location

Ground floor print hall 122-
144 Royal Avenue Belfast
BT1 1DN.

48 Sandymount Street
Belfast BT9 5DP.

54 York Street Belfast BT15
1AS.

2 Geary Road Belfast BT5
7QS

The Rectory 2 St Judes
Avenue Belfast BT7 2GZ.

Proposal

Extension of time for temporary
change of use of and alterations of
former printing hall to event space for
a period of 18 months.

House in multiple occupancy (HMO).

Change of use from offices to hot
food take away sandwich bar and
storage.

Retrospective application for new
access to west of the dwelling from
Geary Road to facilitate off street
parking (amended description)

Proposed change of use of ground
floor offices to funeral directors with
consultation rooms, reception area
and associated display area.
Demolition of existing rear extension
and yard to accommodate proposed
extension and erection of chapel of
rest with external vehicle canopy,
provision of new front steps/ramp,
additional car parking (Good
Shepherd Church), landscaping and
all associated site works.

Application Status

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED



Reference Number

Hierarchy |[Location

Proposal

Application Status

LA04/2022/0355/LBC

LA04/2022/0374/NMC

LA04/2022/0387/DCA

/T 9bed

LA04/2022/0388/F

LA04/2022/0393/DCA

LA04/2022/0394/F

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

The Rectory 2 St Judes
Avenue Belfast BT7 2GZ.

16-24 Cornmarket Belfast
BT1 4DD.

31 Knockdene Park Belfast
BT5 7AD

31 Knockdene Park Belfast
BT5 7AD

8 Wellington Park Avenue
Belfast BT9 6DT

8 Wellington Park Avenue
Belfast BT9 6DT

Proposed change of use of ground
floor offices to funeral directors with
consultation rooms, reception area
and associated display area.
Demolition of existing rear extension
and yard to accommodate proposed
extension and erection of chapel of
rest with external vehicle canopy,
provision of new front steps/ramp,
additional car parking (Good
Shepherd Church), landscaping and
all associated site works.

NMC to planning approval
LA04/2019/2110/F.

Demolition of existing single storey
outbuilding and detached timber
garage

Demolition of single storey
outbuilding and existing timber
garage. Construction of new single

storey extension and detached single

garage

Removal of external fire escape to
rear of building. Demolitions to rear

of building to facilitate new extension,

fenestration alterations to rear of
building.

Single storey extension to rear of
existing ground floor apartment.

PERMISSION GRANTED

NON MATERIAL CHANGE GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED



Reference Number Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2022/0410/DC LOCDEV Lands on McClure Street to Discharge of condition CONDITION DISCHARGED
include land south of Railway  LA04/2018/2659/F.
and north of Powerscourt Place
between 10 Cameron Street
and 85 Ormeau Road.

LA04/2022/0412/F LOCDEV 37 Ligoniel Road Ballysillan Change of use from dwelling house PERMISSION GRANTED
Lower Belfast BT14 8BU. to a house in multiple occupation.

LA04/2022/0422/F LOCDEV 430 Lisburn Road Belfast Change of use from assisted living PERMISSION GRANTED
BT9 6GN accommodation (use class C3) to

HMO (suis generis use).

8T abed

LA04/2022/0450/F LOCDEV 68 Willowvale Avenue Proposed rear and side single storey PERMISSION GRANTED

Belfast BT11 9JY extension to existing semi detached
dwelling. (AMENDED PLANS)

LA04/2022/0451/F LOCDEV | Apartment 33 (Third Floor) Change of use from residential PERMISSION REFUSED
Citygate 2 Sussex Place apartment to short term holiday let
Belfast BT2 8LN. accommodation.

LA04/2022/0453/F LOCDEV  Apartment 52 (5th Floor) Change of use from residential PERMISSION REFUSED
Citygate 2 Sussex Place apartment to short term holiday let
Belfast BT2 8LN. accommodation.

LA04/2022/0454/F LOCDEV  Apartment 56 (6th Floor) Change of use from residential PERMISSION REFUSED
Citygate 2 Sussex Place apartment to short term holiday let
Belfast BT2 8LN. accommodation.

LA04/2022/0476/LDE LOCDEV 79 Edinburgh Street Belfast House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

BT9 7DT.



Reference Number

LA04/2022/0529/F

LA04/2022/0561/DC

LA04/2022/0562/LDE

LA04/2022/0576/F

LA04/2022/0592/A

6T abed

LA04/2022/0642/F

LA04/2022/0649/F

LA04/2022/0661/F

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

Location

33 Adelaide Park Belfast
BT9 6FY.

Lands adjacent to 14 College
Square North and south of
62-76 Hamill Street Belfast.

Flat 2 32 Lawrence Street
Belfast BT7 1LF.

8 Galwally Avenue Belfast
BT8 7AJ.

Units E-F Westwood Retail
Park Belfast BT11 9BQ.

40 Circular Road Belfast
BT5 2GA

168 Sicily Park Belfast BT10
0AQ.

66 Priory Park Belfast BT10
0AG

Proposal

Application Status

Proposed New Detached Garden PERMISSION GRANTED

Room / Home Office in Rear Garden.

Discharge of condition 18
LAO04/2018/1719/F relating to
Construction Environmental
Management Plan

4 Bedroom Flat of Multiple
Occupation.

Demolition of existing garage and PERMISSION GRANTED
proposed single storey rear and side
extension.

llluminated high level signs to front  PERMISSION GRANTED
and rear elevations and non-
illuminated loading bay sign to rear
elevation together with transom
signage above doorway to front
elevation.

Proposed two storey side extension

to form new living area and basement
storage area.

PERMISSION GRANTED

(AMENDED - new description - 2 PERMISSION GRANTED
storey extension to the rear of the

property)

Two storey extension to side and rear PERMISSION GRANTED
of dwelling and new single storey

detached store to replace existing

garage/store. Patio area to rear.

CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT



Reference Number

Location

Proposal

Application Status

LA04/2022/0700/F

LA04/2022/0706/F

LA04/2022/0714/F

LA04/2022/0721/F

0z abed

LA04/2022/0730/NMC

LA04/2022/0757/F

LA04/2022/0759/F

LA04/2022/0767/DC

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

13 Sunbury Avenue Belfast
BT5 5NU.

48 Woodland Grange
Belfast BT11 9QT.

137 Lagmore Meadows
Belfast BT17 OTE.

2 Loughview Meadows
Belfast BT14 8QD.

10-16 Hill Street Belfast BT1
2LA.

Units E-F Westwood Retail
Park Belfast BT11 9BQ

7 Haypark Gardens Belfast
BT7 3FL.

Land adjacent to former Ford
Visteon Plant Finaghy Road
North Belfast BT11.

Single storey rear extension.

Proposed garage conversion to
habitable room involving replacing
garage door with window. Proposed
porch extension and removal of
chimney.

Single storey extension to side of
dwelling.

Single storey extension to rear of
dwelling and extension to existing
porch on side elevation.

Non Material change
LA04/2019/0265/F.

Construction of a Plant / Cage
Compound and Installation of Air
Conditioning / Refrigeration Plant to
the Rear of Unit. The Creation of 2
No. Openings for Pipe / Duct Work

for Ancillarv Use.
Two storey extension to side and

rear. (AMENDED PLANS)

Discharge of condition 4
Z/2013/0120/F.

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

NON MATERIAL CHANGE REFUSED

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED



Reference Number

LA04/2022/0772/F

LA04/2022/0782/F

LA04/2022/0787/F
9'? LA04/2022/0814/LBC
Q
D
N
H

LA04/2022/0820/LBC

LA04/2022/0832/DC

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

Location

18 Floral Park
Newtownabbey BT36 7RU.

Existing telecommunications
rooftop base station installation
at River House 48-60 High
Street Belfast.

1 Glenmachan Place Belfast
BT12 6QH.

9 Eblana Street Belfast BT7
1LD.

4 6 & 10 Joy Street Town
Parks Belfast Co. Antrim
BT2 8LE.

Land at Kings Hall and RUAS
site south of Upper Lisburn
Road/Balmoral Avenue West
of Harberton Park and North
East of Balmoral Golf Club
Belfast BT9 6GW

Proposal

Application Status

Single storey rear and side extension PERMISSION GRANTED
and rear patio (amended description)

Removal of Existing Antennas and PERMISSION GRANTED
the Installation of 12No. Antennas,

1No. GPS Module, Yoke Brackets

and Steelwork and the Re-Use of

Existing Equipment Cabin for

Upgrades and all other Ancillary

Development.

Removal of existing storage PERMISSION GRANTED
container extension and replacement
with 2No. prefabricated cabins.

Replacement sliding sash timber PERMISSION GRANTED

windows to front facade.

The installation of internal secondary PERMISSION GRANTED
glazing to the rear elevation

windows;repair or new installation of

window moulding surrounds to the

front elevation windows/

doors;repairs to the timber framed,

6/6, single glazed, sliding sash

windows in various location;repairs to

the front elevation doors;external

redecoration.

Discharge of condition 16 -
LA04/2020/0845/0

CONDITION DISCHARGED



Reference Number Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2022/0854/F LOCDEV 38 Belvedere Park Belfast BT9 Single and two storey extension to PERMISSION GRANTED
5GT the side and rear of dwelling.
LA04/2022/0871/F LOCDEV 69 Donovan Parade Belfast Roofspace conversion with a rear PERMISSION GRANTED
BT6 9GE dormer and rooflight to front.
(Amended Plans)
LA04/2022/0889/F LOCDEV 20 Adelaide Street Belfast Change of use from office to Safe PERMISSION GRANTED
BT2 8FE Deposit facility (sui-generis use)

(Amended description)

LA04/2022/0905/F LOCDEV 94 Ashley Avenue Belfast Demolition of kitchen and store, PERMISSION GRANTED
BT9 7BU erection of single storey rear
extension with first floor balcony,

Z2Z abed

screen walls and elevational
changes. (Updated Description)
LA04/2022/0913/F LOCDEV 42 and 42A Strathmore Park Removal of condition 7 regarding PERMISSION REFUSED
South Belfast BT 15 5HL occupancy of dwelling no.42a of
LA04/2015/1102/F
LA04/2022/0921/LDE LOCDEV 255 Donegall Road Belfast House in multiple occupancy - HMO PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
BT12 5NB
LA04/2022/0944/LDP LOCDEV 98 Orangefield Road Belfast Proposed Single Storey Rear PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
BT5 6DD Extension with the Addition of a Roof

Light at the Rear of the Dwelling

LA04/2022/0946/F LOCDEV 24 Cleaver Park Belfast BT9 Single storey rear extensions, PERMISSION GRANTED
5HY elevational changes.
LA04/2022/0955/F LOCDEV Adjacentto 112 Velsheda Park Two storey dwelling with new access. PERMISSION GRANTED

Belfast BT14 7LW



Reference Number

Location

Proposal

Application Status

LA04/2022/0970/DC

LA04/2022/0976/F
LA04/2022/0977/LBC

9'? LA04/2022/0991/NMC

«Q

D

m LA04/2022/0993/F

LA04/2022/1003/F

LA04/2022/1004/F

LA04/2022/1010/NMC

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

8 Notting Hill Belfast BT9
5NS

19 Deramore Park Belfast

19 Deramore Park Belfast

5 Clonard Place Belfast
BT12

28 Broadway Belfast BT12
6AS

Land East of Queen's Road
North of Public Records Office
of NI and South of Belfast
Metropolitan College Titanic
Quarter Belfast

6 Green Crescent Belfast
BT5 6JE

31 Castle Gardens Belfast
BT15 4GB

Discharge of condition 2 -
LA04/2021/2421/LBC

Single storey garage with outside
seating area and fire pit.
Landscaping works including outside
swimming pool and security gate.

Single storey garage with outside
seating area and fire pit.
Landscaping works including outside
swimming pool and security gate.

Non-Material Change -
LA04/2018/1989/F

Change of use from dwelling to
House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO)

Retention of basement associated
with office development

Single storey extension to rear. Part
conversion of garage. New window to
ground floor north elevation.

Non material change re
LA04/2015/1071/F

CONDITION DISCHARGED

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

NON MATERIAL CHANGE REFUSED

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

PERMISSION GRANTED

NON MATERIAL CHANGE REFUSED



Reference Number

LA04/2022/1017/F

LA04/2022/1023/F

LA04/2022/1024/LBC

LA04/2022/1044/F

{7z abed

LA04/2022/1061/F

LA04/2022/1066/F

LA04/2022/1069/F

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

Location

Danske Bank 10 Donegall
Square West Belfast BT1
6JS

13 Wellington Park (including
lands to the rear of no.s 13 &
15 Wellington Park between
no.s 16B & 18 Wellesley
Avenue Belfast.

Danske Bank 10 Donegall
Square West Belfast.

204 Holywood Road Belfast
BT4 1PD

389 Donegall Road Belfast
BT12 6FR.

8 Clonlee Drive Belfast BT2
3DA.

12 Glendale Dunmurry
Belfast BT10 ONX.

Proposal

Application Status

External cladding PERMISSION GRANTED

Section 55 application to vary PERMISSION GRANTED
conditions 2 and 5 of approval

LA04/2016/2511/F to allow the

vehicular accesses and hard

surfaced areas to be provided prior to

the occupation of apartment block 2

onlv.
Repair works, including new external PERMISSION GRANTED

cladding to the Wellington Court
elevation.

Creation of a vehicular access and PERMISSION GRANTED
driveway.

Change of use to House in Multiple  PERMISSION GRANTED

Occupancy (HMO)

Amendment to previous approval PERMISSION GRANTED
LA04/2021/0550/F for a change of

roof from pitched to flat, a new

ensuite obscured window to side

elevation and removal of windows to

front elevation. (Retrospective)

Single storey rear extension, new PERMISSION GRANTED

ground floor gable window.



Reference Number Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2022/1081/F LOCDEV 48 Norfolk Drive Belfast. BT11 Proposed new single storey PERMISSION GRANTED
8AF. kitchen/dining room extension to rear
of existing dwelling. Including new
raised patio and concrete steps.

LA04/2022/1084/LDE LOCDEV Flat 2 72 Fitzroy Avenue House in Multiple Occupation PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Belfast BT7 1HX

Gz abed

LA04/2022/1085/F LOCDEV 348-350 Ormeau Road Temporary retention of boundary PERMISSION GRANTED
Belfast BT7 3GB fence along the front of the site and
boundary of 346 Ormeau Road,
Belfast.
LA04/2022/1086/LBC LOCDEV  348-350 Ormeau Road Temporary retention of boundary PERMISSION GRANTED
Belfast BT7 3GB fence for 1 year along the front of site
and boundary of 346 Ormeau Road,
Belfast.
LA04/2022/1104/F LOCDEV 41 Lismoyne Park Two storey rear extension with Juliet ' PERMISSION GRANTED
Ballyaghagan Belfast BT15 balcony to first floor rear. Patio area
5HE to rear.
LA04/2022/1106/LDE LOCDEV 142 Dunluce Avenue Belfast House of multiple occupation (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
BT9 7AZ
LA04/2022/1118/F LOCDEV 1 Newforge Dale Belfast Replacement glass roof with pitched PERMISSION GRANTED
BT9 5QD roof to front of existing dwelling and

fenestration changes to front and
side elevations.(amended
description)
LA04/2022/1131/LDE LOCDEV Flat 2 11 India Street House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Belfast BT7 1LJ.

LA04/2022/1133/F LOCDEV 19 Cairnburn Gardens First floor rear and side extension PERMISSION GRANTED
Belfast BT4 2HY



9z abed

Reference Number

LA04/2022/1140/F

LA04/2022/1141/F

LA04/2022/1145/F

LA04/2022/1159/F

LA04/2022/1164/LDE

LA04/2022/1175/F

LA04/2022/1183/DCA

LA04/2022/1187/LDE

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

Location

13 Kings Vale Belfast BT5
6HR.

54 Somerton Park Belfast
BT15 4DP.

69 Orchardville Avenue
Belfast BT10 0JH.

97 Alexandra Park Avenue
Belfast BT15 3ES

25 Strandview Street Belfast
BT9 5FF.

8 Castlehill Park Castlehill
Road Belfast BT4 3GU.

24 Cleaver Park Belfast BT9

SHY.

Flat 2 2 Canterbury Street
Belfast BT7 1LB

Proposal

Application Status

Proposed replacement conservatory. PERMISSION GRANTED

Single storey rear extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

Single storey rear extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

Change of use from residential unit to PERMISSION GRANTED
HMO

House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

Proposed alterations including first  PERMISSION GRANTED
floor extension to rear and elevational

changes.

Demolition of existing single story PERMISSION GRANTED
bay window, P C glazed rear lobby

and lean-to corrigated shed/outhouse

for new single story rear extension

LA04/2022/0946/F (demolished

elements in dashed line on proposed

elevations)

Change of use from residential PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

property to HMO.



Reference Number Location Proposal Application Status

) abed

LA04/2022/1189/LDE LOCDEV Flat 2,18 Lawrence Street Change of use from residential PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Belfast BT7 1LF. property to HMO.

LA04/2022/1193/F LOCDEV 196 Kings Road Belfast BT5 Single storey rear extension and PERMISSION GRANTED
7EN elevation changes.

LA04/2022/1194/DC LOCDEV  10-16 Hill Street Belfast BT1 Discharge of condition 8 - CONDITION DISCHARGED
2LA LA04/2019/0265/F

LA04/2022/1196/F LOCDEV 4 Clonallon Park Belfast Single storey building in rear garden PERMISSION GRANTED
BT4 2BZ. incorporating a snooker room, store

and wc.

LA04/2022/1197/LDE LOCDEV Flat 2 12 Lawrence Street House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Belfast BT7 1LF

LA04/2022/1199/F LOCDEV 17 Dargan Crescent Belfast Subdivision of industrial unit to 2 PERMISSION GRANTED
BT3 9RP industrial units, elevation alterations

and landscaping

LA04/2022/1215/LDE LOCDEV 10 Stranmillis Street Belfast House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
BT9 5FE

LA04/2022/1222/F LOCDEV 26 Wynchurch Park Belfast Single storey extension to side and  PERMISSION GRANTED
BT6 0JN rear

LA04/2022/1227/DC LOCDEV  10-16 Hill Street Belfast BT1 Discharge of condition 10 - CONDITION DISCHARGED

2LA LA04/2019/0265/F



Reference Number

LA04/2022/1237/F

LA04/2022/1251/DC

LA04/2022/1252/F

LA04/2022/1256/F

8z abed

LA04/2022/1260/F

LA04/2022/1267/F

LA04/2022/1268/F

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

Location

3 McQuillan Street Belfast
BT13 2RD.

35 Langley Street Town
Parks Belfast BT13 3GG.

36 Pommern Parade Belfast
BT6 9FY.

14 Belmont Avenue Belfast
BT4 3DD.

15 Church Avenue
Dunmurry Belfast BT17
9RT.

1 Colinmill Dunmurry
Belfast BT17 OAP

84 Ladybrook Park Belfast
BT11 9EN

Proposal

Application Status

Single storey rear extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

Discharge of condition 3
LA04/2020/2634/F.

Single storey rear extension and attic PERMISSION GRANTED
conversion with new rear dormer.

Conversion of existing residential PERMISSION REFUSED
property into a house of multiple
occupation, with a minor single storey
extension to the rear of the property.
Two storey extension to side and PERMISSION GRANTED
rear, single storey extension and

patio to side and associated

alterations to dwelling garage,

including part demolition of rear

returns and small outbuildina.
Proposed loft conversion with

associated dormer facilitating 2no.
bedrooms

PERMISSION GRANTED

Proposed front extension creating PERMISSION GRANTED
porch and bay window, two first floor

dormers to front, two storey rear

extension with Juliet style balcony

and single storey extension to side

and rear. All other associated

enhancement works including new

access steps to lower garden area.

CONDITION DISCHARGED



Reference Number

LA04/2022/1273/DC

LA04/2022/1275/F

LA04/2022/1283/F

LA04/2022/1296/F

6¢ abed

LA04/2022/1297/F

LA04/2022/1300/F

LA04/2022/1310/DCA

LA04/2022/1317/LDE

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

Location

Site at 6 Suffolk Road
Belfast BT11 9PE Vacant
land bounded by the Colin
River Suffolk Road 6-15
Riverside Mews and 2-30
Larkspur Rise.

34 Arlington Drive Belfast
BT10 ONQ.

7 Orchardville Avenue
Belfast BT10.

5 Newforge Grange Belfast
BT9 5QB.

96 Castlehill Road Belfast
BT4 3GQ.

12 Castlehill Park West
Belfast BT4 3GT.

13 Kings Vale Belfast BT5
6HR.

Flat 2 86 Fitzroy Avenue
Belfast BT7 1HX.

Proposal

Application Status

Discharge of condition 12
LA04/2016/1856/F (Construction
Management Plan)

Single storey rear extension. PERMISSION GRANTED

Single storey rear/side extension with PERMISSION GRANTED
loft conversion and rear dormer.

Conversion of attached garage to PERMISSION GRANTED
kitchen with associated elevation
changes.

Single storey extension to reatr, PERMISSION GRANTED
demolition of existing detached

garage and two storey extension to

side.

Installation of a single air source heat PERMISSION GRANTED
pump on side elevation of existing

house

Removal of existing conservatory at PERMISSION GRANTED
first floor level at rear of property.

House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

CONDITION NOT DISCHARGED



Reference Number

LA04/2022/1318/LDE

LA04/2022/1319/LDE

LA04/2022/1328/LDE

LA04/2022/1329/LDE

LA04/2022/1330/DC

0g abed

LA04/2022/1335/F

LA04/2022/1340/LDE

LA04/2022/1341/LDE

LA04/2022/1342/LDE

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

Location

Flat 2 138 Agincourt Avenue
Belfast BT7 1QD.

Flat 3 29 Eglantine Avenue
Belfast BT9 6DW.

41 Rugby Avenue Belfast
BT7 1RD.

41B Dunluce Avenue
Belfast BT9 7AW.

Albertbridge Road from Lord
Street to junction with
Newtownards Road and
Newtownards Road from Ribble
Street to Conswater Street.

57 Norwood Drive Belfast
BT4 2EB

39C Dunluce Avenue
Belfast BT9 7AW.

41C Dunluce Avenue
Belfast BT9 7AW.

29 Burmah Street Belfast
BT7 3AN

Proposal Application Status

House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

House in multiple occupation (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

Discharge of condition 2 CONDITION DISCHARGED
LA04/2021/1860/F.

First floor rear extension with covered PERMISSION GRANTED
area to ground floor rear. Additional

first floor window to both side

elevations. (amended description)

House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

House in multiple occupation (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT



Reference Number Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2022/1343/LDE LOCDEV 54 Lower Windsor Avenue House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Belfast BT9 7DX.

LA04/2022/1346/DC LOCDEV | Lands at "The Bullring" located Discharge of condition 11 CONDITION DISCHARGED
parallel to the Westlink LA04/2020/0673/F.
motorway and adjacent
Denmark Street/California
Close between Peters Hill and
Regent Street Belfast.

LA04/2022/1367/LDE LOCDEV Flat 1 (Ground floor) 23 House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Camden Street Belfast BT9
6AT.
ndersonstown Roa roposed front and side facade
U | A04/2022/1370/F LOCDEV  133C And Road P d fi d side facad PERMISSION GRANTED
2 Belfast BT11 9BU alterations.
D
&) LA04/2022/1373/LDE LOCDEV Flat1 25 Camden Street House in multiple occupation (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

Belfast BT9 6AT

LA04/2022/1374/LDE LOCDEV Flat 2 (first floor) 23 Camden House in multiple occupation (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Street Belfast BT9 6AT

LA04/2022/1375/LDE LOCDEV Flat 3 (second floor) 23 House in multiple occupation (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Camden Street Belfast BT9
6AT

LA04/2022/1376/LDE LOCDEV Flat 3 25 Camden Street House in multiple occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

Belfast BT9 6AT



Reference Number Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2022/1378/F LOCDEV 35 Riverdale Park North Proposed single storey extensionto PERMISSION GRANTED
Belfast BT11 9DL rear of dwelling.
LA04/2022/1389/F LOCDEV 8 Northern Road Belfast Proposed 1No. replacement boiler PERMISSION GRANTED
BT3 9AL including a new additional flue pipe
LA04/2022/1393/CONTPO LOCDEV 13 Maryville Park Belfast Works to 4 trees. WORKS TO TREES IN CA - AGREED
BT9 6LN.
LA04/2022/1399/LDE LOCDEV Flat1 15 Ulsterville Avenue House in multiple occupancy. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Belfast BT9 7AS.
LA04/2022/1400/LDE LOCDEV Flat 2 15 Ulsterville Avenue House in multiple occupancy PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Belfast BT9 7AS.

2¢ obed

LA04/2022/1401/LDE LOCDEV Flat 7 122 Eglantine Avenue House in multiple occupancy. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Belfast BT9 6EU.

LA04/2022/1410/NMC LOCDEV Royal Victoria Hospital Non material change NON MATERIAL CHANGE GRANTED
Grosvenor Road Belfast LA04/2018/2669/F (Amended
BT12 6BA. Description)

LA04/2022/1413/LDP LOCDEV Ballyowen Health Centre 179  The proposal consists of a single PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Andersonstown Road storey extension to the existing GP
Belfast BT11 9EA surgeries & Health Centre building.

The proposed extension will be used
for healthcare in association with the
existing GP surgeries Health Centre.



Reference Number Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2022/1414/LDE LOCDEV 61 Wellesley Avenue House in multiple occupancy (HMO) PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Belfast BT9 6DG

LA04/2022/1415/DC LOCDEV East Pitch Downey House Discharge of condition 3 of CONDITION DISCHARGED
Pirrie Park Gardens Belfast. LA04/2018/1411/F.

LA04/2022/1416/DC LOCDEV  West Pitch Downey House Discharge of condition 3 of CONDITION DISCHARGED
Pirrie Park Gardens Belfast LA04/2020/0757/F.
BT6 OAG.
U LA04/2022/1418/DC LOCDEV  Former Belvoir Park Hospital Discharge of condition 7 (Tree CONDITION DISCHARGED
g Site Hospital Road Belfast Protection) LA04/2019/1515/F.
D BT8 8JP.
&
LA04/2022/1419/F LOCDEV  25M south of 1A Cherry Road  Proposed relocation of existing PERMISSION GRANTED
Upper Dunmurry Lane BT17 Insignia Bus Shelter from Upper
ORW Dunmurry Lane to new location

positioned 25 metres South of 1A
Cherry Road

LA04/2022/1428/DC LOCDEV Henry Garrett Building Discharge of condition 5 CONDITION DISCHARGED
Stranmillis University LA04/2022/0349/LBC.(asbestos
Stranmillis Road Belfast removal)
BT9 5DY.

LA04/2022/1430/LDE LOCDEV Flat 2 20 Canterbury Street House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

Belfast BT7 1LB.

LA04/2022/1431/LDE LOCDEV  Flat 1 (ground floor) 27 India House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
Street Belfast BT7 1LJ.



Reference Number

Location

Proposal

Application Status

v abed

LA04/2022/1432/LDE

LA04/2022/1434/F

LA04/2022/1436/CONTPO

LA04/2022/1485/LDE

LA04/2022/1491/LDE

LA04/2022/1494/DC

LA04/2022/1498/LDE

LA04/2022/1524/DC

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

LOCDEV

Flat 1 (ground floor) 72
Fitzroy Avenue Belfast BT7
1HX.

8 Edgecumbe Drive Belfast
BT4 2EN.

7 Eglinton Avenue Belfast
BT9 6EU.

Flat 2. (First Floor) 112
Fitzroy Avenue Belfast BT7
1HX.

60 Agincourt Avenue Belfast
BT7 10QB.

52-58 Shankill Road and
adjacent vacant site to West
of 52-58 Shankill Road
Belfast BT13 2BB.

72 Palestine Street Belfast
BT7 1QL.

Lands East of No. 8 West 0f90
and North of Nos 9-31 (Odds)
Glenbryn ParkBelfastBT14 7JH.

House in multiple occupancy (HMO).

Single storey extension to side of
dwelling, new window to rear
elevation.

Works to 2 trees.

House in multiple occupation (HMO).

House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO).

Discharge of condition 18
LA04/2020/2198/F.

House in multiple occupation (HMO).

Discharge of condition 10
LA04/2019/2446/F.

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

PERMISSION GRANTED

WORKS TO TREES IN CA - AGREED

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

CONDITION DISCHARGED

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

CONDITION DISCHARGED



Reference Number Location Proposal Application Status

LA04/2022/1551/CONTPO LOCDEV 17 Cadogan Park Belfast Tree is planted in middle of lawn, WORKS TO TREES IN CA - AGREED
BT9 6HG. roots are damaging drainage system
and it is prohibiting growth at rear of
garden.
LA04/2022/1552/LDE LOCDEV 70 Sandhurst Gardens House in multiple occupancy (HMO). PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

Belfast BT9 5AX.

LA04/2022/1580/LDE LOCDEV 8 Stranmillis Road Belfast House in multiple occupancy. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
BT9 5AA.

Gg abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 SEPTEMBER 2022
APPEALS NOTIFIED
COUNCIL: BELFAST

NONE

APPEAL DECISIONS NOTIFIED

NONE

1.
Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6a

Development Management Report
Committee Application

Summary

Committee Meeting Date: Tuesday 20" September 2022

Application ID: LAO4/2022/0594/F

Proposal: Location:

Three-storey extension including bridge link to | 700 Antrim Road Belfast Co. Antrim BT15
the existing school building, reconfiguration of | 5GQ.

existing parking with additional car parking
areas, restoration of hard play areas,
landscaping, retaining walls, and associated
site, access and ancillary works.

Referral Route: Major Development

Recommendation: APPROVAL
Applicant Name and Address: Agent Name and Address:
The Trustees of Our Lady of Lourdes PS AECOM
700 Antrim Road 10th Floor Clarence West Building
Belfast 2 Clarence Street West
BT155GQ Belfast

BT2 7GP

Executive Summary:

The application seeks full planning permission for a three-storey extension including bridge link to
the existing school building, reconfiguration of existing parking with additional car parking areas,
restoration of hard play areas, landscaping, retaining walls, and associated site, access, and
ancillary works.

The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include:
- Principle of redevelopment

- Visual impacts

- Impact on neighbouring amenity

- Impact on Built Heritage

- Traffic and Parking

- Impact on trees and Natural Heritage

- Contaminated Land

- Drainage and Flooding

- Pre-application Community Consultation

The existing school building has a ridge/parapet height of 10.3m. The proposed extension is
12.15m in height and is therefore approximately 2m higher than the existing building. Whilst the
proposal would not therefore be subservient to the existing building, the height differential of 2m is
considered acceptable on balance given the restricted public views of this part of the site, the
requirement for fit for purpose educational facilities, and the constrained physical characteristics of
the site due to topography and safeguarding of mature trees. The design and fenestration is modern

Page 39



Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

in approach and is considered sympathetic to the design of the existing building. Materials
proposed include render with coloured spandrel panels and aluminium rainwater goods. These are
considered acceptable given the finishes of the existing building. The extension is located
approximately 30m from the nearest residential building to the south. It is considered that the
proposal will not adversely impact on adjacent properties in terms of overshadowing/loss of light or
privacy due to the separation distances available and the proposed orientation of the extension to
the northeast/southwest.

An additional parking/hardstanding area is proposed to the rear of the main building at the
northwestern corner of the site, extending existing facilities in this location. Retaining structures are
also required to facilitate the extended parking areas. It is considered that these improved facilities
will not adversely impact on visual amenity due to restricted public views of these areas. Additional
playspace areas will be provided in the southwestern corner of the site, replacing the modular
buildings currently in that location. This will result in net gain of playspace areas of the site
compared to existing arrangements.

The proposal will not adversely impact on trees and natural heritage features. DEARA, BCC
Landscape, and BCC Tree Officer have no objections in relation to these issues.

No objections have been received from any consultees subject to conditions and/or informatives
or from the public.

Having regard to the development plan, policy context and other material considerations, the
proposal is considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject
to conditions.

Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the
wording of the conditions.

Page 40,



Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

Case Officer Report

Site Location Plan

g6 41



Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

Representations:

Letters of Support None Received

Letters of Objection None Received

Number of Support Petitions and No Petitions Received
signatures

Number of Petitions of Objection and No Petitions Received
signatures

Representations from Elected None received
Representatives

1.0
11

Description of proposal

The proposal seeks full planning permission for a three-storey extension including bridge
link to the existing school building, reconfiguration of existing parking with additional car
parking areas, restoration of hard play areas, landscaping, retaining walls, and associated
site, access, and ancillary works

2.0
2.1

Description of Site

The 0.77 ha (approx.) site is located at a school facility. It comprises a large three storey
building located roughly centrally in the site finished in concrete with a flat roof of modern
design. There are a further 6 freestanding single storey buildings located along the
northern and western boundaries and to the rear of the site. 5 of these building are typical
modular type classrooms. There are hardstanding ‘play’ areas located between the front of
the main building and the site access on the Antrim Road, with additional areas to the rear
between the main building and modular classroom buildings. Boundary treatment
comprises a mix of hedging and fencing of various heights. The topography of the site
slopes from the road-side boundary to the rear and further rises beyond the rear boundary.
There are a number of mature trees located within the site, largely sited around the site
boundaries and adjacent to the site entrance.

There are dwellings and a primary school to the south of the site, and a single dwelling to
the north east. To the west is the Cavehill park and the Antrim Road is adjacent to the
eastern boundary. Further dwellings are located opposite the site to the east.

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations

3.0
3.1

Planning History
No relevant history

4.0

Policy Framework

4.1

Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP)

Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2004)

Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2014)
Belfast Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strategy 2035

4.2

Regional Development Strategy 2035 (RDS)

Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS)

Planning Policy Statement 2 — Planning and Natural Heritage

Planning Policy Statement 3 - Access, Movement and Parking

Planning Policy Statement 6 — Planning, Archaeology, and the Built Heritage
Planning Policy Statement 8 — Open Space, Sport and Outdoor Recreation
Planning Policy Statement 15 - (Revised) Planning and Flood Risk

5.0

Statutory Consultees
Transport NI — No objections subject to conditions;

Page d&




Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

NIWater — No objections;

DAERA — No objections subject to conditions;
Rivers Agency — No objections;

Historic Environment Division — No objection;

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees
Environmental Health BCC — no objections subject to conditions;

BCC Parks & Leisure (Landscape) — no objections;
BCC Tree Officer — no objections;

7.0 Representations
No objections were received.

No representations from Elected representatives have been received.

8.0 | Other Material Considerations
NA

9.0 | Assessment
The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include:

- Principle of redevelopment

- Visual impacts

- Impact on neighbouring amenity

- Impact on Built Heritage

- Traffic and Parking

- Impact on trees and Natural Heritage

- Contaminated Land

- Drainage and Flooding

- Pre-application Community Consultation
Principle of redevelopment

9.1 Section 6(4) of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 states that in making any
determinations under the Act, regard is to be had to the local development plan, and the
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant
development plan is now the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had
reached pre-adoption through a period of independent examination, the policies within the
Draft BMAP still carry weight and are a material consideration in the determination of
planning applications. The weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision
maker.

9.2 | The site is located within the development limits of Belfast within the BUAP and both versions
of draft BMAP. In Draft BMAP (v2014) the site is unzoned (whiteland). There is a Local
Landscape Policy Area (BT 090), Historic Gardens (BT064), and Landscape Wedge
(BTO80) designated by BMAP adjacent to the site.

9.3 | The Belfast Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strategy 2035 will guide future planning

application decision making to support the sustainable spatial growth of the city up to 2035.
The draft Plan Strategy has been subject to examination by the Planning Appeals
Commission and the Council has been provided with a copy of their Report, together with a
Direction from the Department for Infrastructure in relation to additional required steps before
it can be adopted. Paragraph 1.10 of the Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS) states
that a transitional period will operate until such times as a Council’s Plan Strategy has been
adopted. Accordingly, whilst the Draft Plan Strategy is now a material consideration it has

RRYE 43




Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

limited weight until it is adopted and during this transitional period existing policies will be
applied including the SPPS and relevant PPSs.

Acceptability of proposal at this location

The proposal includes an extension and ancillary works to improve the built form and
infrastructure at an existing school facility. Given the existing use at the site, the proposal is
considered acceptable in principle subject to no adverse impacts on amenity, landscape
features of the site, landscape designations adjacent to the site as outlined above, and
technical considerations on advice from the various consultees.

Design and Amenity Considerations

The proposal seeks to provide a three-storey extension adjacent to/south of the main school
building with a corridor link, on an area currently used largely for parking. The existing
building has a ridge/parapet height of 10.3m. The proposed extension is 12.15m in height
and is therefore approximately 2m higher than the existing building. Whilst the proposal
would not therefore be subservient to the existing building, the height differential of 2m is
considered acceptable on balance given the restricted public views of this part of the site,
the requirement for fit-for-purpose educational facilities and the constrained physical
characteristics of the site due to topography and safeguarding of mature trees. The design
and fenestration is modern in approach and is considered sympathetic to the design of the
existing building. Materials proposed include render with coloured spandrel panels and
aluminium rainwater goods. These are considered acceptable given the finishes of the
existing building. The extension is located approximately 30m from the nearest residential
building to the south. It is considered that the proposal will not adversely impact on adjacent
properties in terms of overshadowing/loss of light or privacy due to the separation distances
available and the proposed orientation of the extension to the northeast/southwest.

An additional parking/hardstanding area is proposed to the rear of the main building at the
northwestern corner of the site, extending existing facilities in this location. Retaining
structures are also required to facilitate the extended parking areas. It is considered that
these improved facilities will not adversely impact on visual amenity due to restricted public
views of these areas. Conditions are necessary to demonstrate that the retaining structures
are designed by a suitably qualified person and implemented prior to the adjacent parking
area becoming operational for site and public safety reasons. Additional playspace areas
will be provided in the southwestern corner of the site, replacing the modular buildings
currently in that location. This will result in net gain of playspace areas of the site compared
to existing arrangements. Noise implications of these elements and impact on trees/natural
heritage assets are considered below.

Impact on Built Heritage

The proposal has been assessed against PPS6 as the development site is adjacent to
Belfast Castle and associated gardens and setting impacts/considerations are therefore
necessary.

Historic Environment Division (HED) are content that development works for this scheme
will not adversely impact on the heritage assets given the separation distances available and
have responded with no objections. The proposal is therefore compliant with PPS6
considerations.

Traffic and Parking

DFI Roads have no objections to the access arrangements or level of parking provision
subject to conditions (repeated from extant permission). The proposal is therefore compliant
with PPS3 and supplementary policy guidance considerations.

Impact on trees and Natural Heritage

Page 44




Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

9.11

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.17

9.18

9.19

9.20

The proposal has been assessed against PPS 2. NED considered an ecological assessment
submitted in support of the application. NED have no objections to the application subject to
conditions to safeguard any impact to protected species. The proposal is therefore
considered compliant with PPS2 in this regard.

The site includes a number of mature trees throughout the site and tree health and condition
information has been provided in support of the application. Some of the trees are showing
signs of poor health or dead, these trees are recommended for removal due to proximity to
a number of target areas within the site. The proposal will retain the large majority of trees
within the site and proposals will be outside root protection areas of trees to be retained. 2
trees and soft landscaping areas are proposed as part of the scheme.

BCC Landscape and Tree Officer have no objections to the landscaping details and are
therefore considered acceptable. The proposal will therefore not adversely impact on
existing trees and appropriate conditions are necessary to ensure tree protection measures
during the development and delivery of the proposals. BCC Landscape team have also
advised that the proposal will not adversely impact on the draft LLPA.

Contaminated Land, Noise, odour, and nuisance Considerations

Environmental Health have also confirmed that the proposal will not adversely impact on
amenity in terms of noise, odour, or other nuisance considerations subject to conditions also
detailed below. The proposal therefore is acceptable in terms of these issues.

DAERA Land and Groundwater Team had no objections to the approved development
subject to conditions. Some of these are therefore recommended for repetition for this
application.

Drainage and Flooding
Dfl Rivers has no objection to the application and conditions securing the drainage mitigation
measures are necessary.

NIWater have not raised any objections to the proposals. The proposal will not adversely
impact on drainage or sewage infrastructure and is therefore acceptable in relation to these
issues.

Pre-application Community Consultation

For applications that fall within the major category as prescribed in the Development
Management Regulations, Section 27 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 places a statutory duty
on applicant for planning permission to consult the community in advance of submitting an
application.

Section 27 also requires that a prospective applicant, prior to submitting a major applications
must give notice, known as a ‘Proposal of Application Notice’ (PAN) that an application for
planning permission for the development is to be submitted. A PAN was submitted in
advance of the application ref: LA04/2021/2385/PAN.

A Pre-Application Community Consultation Report has been submitted in support of this
application. It is considered that the Pre-Community Consultation Report submitted has
demonstrated that the applicant has carried out their duty under Section 27 of the Planning
Act (NI) 2011 to consult the community in advance of submitting an application.

Developer Contributions
Due to the nature of the proposal, it is considered that contributions are not necessary in this
case.

BRI 45



Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

10.0 | Summary of Recommendation: Approval subject to conditions

10.1 | Having regard to the development plan, policy context and other material considerations,
the proposal is considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is
granted subject to conditions.

10.2 | Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the
wording of the conditions.

11.0 | Draft Conditions (delegated authority to the Director of Planning and Building Control to

finalise conditions requested):

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.

2. All external facing and roofing materials shall be carried out as specified on
the approved plans.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area.

3. All hard and soft landscape works shall be completed in accordance with
the approved details, the appropriate British Standard, the relevant sections of the National
Building Specification NBS [Landscape] and plant material with the National Plant
Specification NPS before the expiration of the first planting season following occupation of
any part of the development hereby approved.

All plant stock supplied shall comply with the requirements of British Standard 3936,
'Specification for Nursery Stock'. All pre-planting site preparation, planting and post-
planting maintenance works shall be carried out in accordance with the requirements of
British Standard 4428 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations [excluding hard
surfaces]'.

Any existing or proposed trees or plants indicated on the approved plans which, within a
period of five years from the date of planting, die, are removed or become seriously
damaged, diseased or dying shall be replaced during the next planting season with other
trees or plants of a location, species and size, details of which shall have first been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. All hard surface treatment of open
parts of the site shall be permeable or drained to a permeable area. All hard landscape
works shall be permanently retained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of a high standard of
landscape.

4. No part of the development hereby permitted shall commence until full
design and maintenance details of all proposed retaining walls to be constructed within
development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved by the Council. The
details shall include endorsement by a suitably qualified structural or geotechnical
engineer.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied or become operational until
a report has been submitted to and approved by the Council verifying, with documentary
evidence, that the retaining structures have been constructed in accordance with the
design and structural details to be agreed above.

Page 46




Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

All retaining structures shall be constructed and maintained in accordance with the
approved details and permanently retained thereafter. No variation to the approved details
shall be implemented without the prior consent of the Council.

REASON: In the interests of public safety and residential amenity.

5. No equipment, machinery or materials are to be brought on the site for the
purpose of the development including demolition and site clearance until all trees to be
retained have been protected by fences or other suitable means of enclosure as per
recommendations of BS 5837 'Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction’
2012 section 6.2 (or equivalent British Standard current at time of works).

Protective fencing shall be at least 2.3 metres high, comprising of a scaffolding framework,
verticals positioned no more than 3.0 metres apart driven into the ground approximately
0.6 metres, braced to resist impacts, supporting weldmesh panels, fixed in a manner to
avoid easy removal as shown in BS 5837 2005, Figure 2.

Within the fenced area no activities associated with building operations shall take place,
and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered. All means of protection shall
be retained in situ for the duration of the development.

Reason: To ensure that adequate protection measures are put in place around trees.

6. The developer shall inform the Council on completing the installation of all
tree protection measures so that the Council or their representative may pass such
measures before allowing development to commence. Development shall not commence
until these measures have been agreed by the Council in writing.

Reason: To ensure that adequate protection measures are put in place around trees prior
to the commencement of development to ensure that the trees to be retained are not
damaged or otherwise adversely affected by building operations and soil compaction.

7. Any excavation within tree protection areas shall be carried out using non
mechanised hand tools only. All roots that are uncovered during excavation in preparation
for laying foundations etc., which are in excess of 2.5cm in diameter shall be retained and
shall be treated in accordance with BS 3998, 2010 Recommendations for Tree Work [or
appropriate British Standard current at time of works] and foundations bridged around
them. Any tree roots exposed, which are in excess of 5¢cm in diameter, shall be surrounded
in sharp sand before replacing soil or other material in the vicinity.

Reason: To respect the topography of the site and to ensure the protection of existing
landscape features.

8. Prior to the commencement of any of the approved development on site, a
final drainage assessment, compliant with Annex D of PPS 15 and Sewers for Adoption
Northern Ireland 1st Edition, and containing a detailed drainage network design including a
demonstration of how out of sewer flooding will be safely managed must be submitted to
the Planning Authority for its consideration and approval.

Reason: In order to safeguard against surface water flood risk to the development and
manage and mitigate any increase in surface water flood risk from the development to
elsewhere.

RR9e 47




Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

9. If during the development works, new contamination or risks to the water
environment are encountered which have not previously been identified, works shall cease
and the Planning Authority shall be notified immediately. This new contamination shall be
fully investigated in accordance with the Land Contamination: Risk Management (LCRM)
guidance available at:
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks.

In the event of unacceptable risks being identified, a remediation strategy shall be agreed
with the Planning Authority in writing, and subsequently implemented and verified to its
satisfaction. prior to the development hereby permitted being occupied or operated. The
Verification Report shall be completed by competent persons in accordance with best
practice and must demonstrate that the remediation measures have been implemented
and that the site is now fit for end-use.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

10. After completing all remediation works under Condition 9 and prior to
occupation of the development, a verification report shall be submitted in writing and
agreed with the Planning Authority. This report shall be completed by competent persons
in accordance with the Land Contamination: Risk Management (LCRM) guidance available
at:

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks.

The verification report shall present all the remediation and monitoring works undertaken
and demonstrate the effectiveness of the works in managing all the risks and achieving the
remedial objectives.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

11. There shall be no direct discharge of untreated surface water run-off during
the construction or operational phases of the development into the culverted Mount Vernon
River.

Reason: To protect Northern Ireland priority habitats and Inner Belfast Lough ASSI and
Belfast Lough SPA and Ramsar Site.

12. A suitable buffer of at least 10m must be maintained between the location
any refuelling, storage of oil/fuel, concrete mixing and washing areas, storage of
machinery/material/spoil etc. and any watercourses or surface drains present onsite or
adjacent to the site.

Reason: To protect Northern Ireland priority habitats and Inner Belfast Lough ASSI and
Belfast Lough SPA and Ramsar Site.

13. No development activity, including ground preparation or vegetation
clearance, shall commence until an Invasive Species Management Plan has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The approved Plan shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise approved in writing
by the Planning Authority. The Plan shall include the following:

a. Updated survey for invasive species to identify all locations on site where they occur;

b. Details of the removal/eradication and/or treatment of identified invasive species;

c. Details of any necessary mitigation measures to be implemented during the construction
phase or thereafter to prevent the spread of invasive species;

d. Details of any follow-up management or monitoring of invasive species on the site.

Page4S,




Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

Reason: To prevent the spread of invasive plant species listed on Schedule 9 of the
Wildlife (Northern Ireland) Order 1985 (as amended) and to minimise the impact of the
proposal on the biodiversity of the site.

14, Prior to arboricultural works being completed on any tree with low roosting
potential, as identified in the PEA (AECOM Limited, January 2022), such trees must be
subject to a check for bat presence and mitigation provided if necessary by a suitably
gualified ecologist.

Reason: To minimise potential impacts on roosting bats.

15. Trees with low roosting potential and proposed for felling, as identified in the
PEA (AECOM Limited, January 2022), must be felled using soft-felling techniques, with
any limbs or cuttings left in situ overnight before offsite disposal.

Reason: To minimise potential impacts on roosting bats.

16. No storage of materials, parking of vehicles or plant, temporary buildings,
sheds, offices or fires within the Root Protection Areas of trees within the site and adjacent

lands during the construction period.

Reason: To avoid compaction within the RPA of existing trees to be retained.

12.0

Notification to Department (if relevant) N/A

Neighbour Notification Checked Yes

Signature(s)

Date:

P ge: 49




Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

ANNEX
Date Valid 13th April 2022
Date First Advertised 29th April 2022

Date Last Advertised

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)

The Owner/Occupier, 694 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 5GQ

The Owner/Occupier, 696 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 5GQ

The Owner/Occupier, 696a ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 5GQ

The Owner/Occupier, 696a ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 5GQ

The Owner/Occupier, 696b ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 5GQ

The Owner/Occupier, 698 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 5GA

The Owner/Occupier, 702 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 5GQ

The Owner/Occupier, 761 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,

The Owner/Occupier, 761 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 4EN

The Owner/Occupier, 767a ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 4EP

The Owner/Occupier, 769a ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 4EP

The Owner/Occupier, 769b ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 4EP

The Owner/Occupier, 769c ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 4EP

The Owner/Occupier, 769d ,Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 4EP

The Owner/Occupier, Belfast Royal Academy Kindergarten,Downview Park
West,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 5HZ

The Owner/Occupier, Ben Madigan Preparatory School,690 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15
5GP

The Owner/Occupier, Flat A (1st Floor),Ben Madigan Preparatory School,690 Antrim
Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 5GP

The Owner/Occupier, Flat A,761 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 4EN
The Owner/Occupier, Flat B,761 Antrim Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 4EN
The Owner/Occupier, Our Lady Of Lourdes Primary School,700 Antrim
Road,Belfast,Antrim,BT15 5GQ

Date of Last Neighbour Notification 25th April 2022

Date of EIA Determination

ES Requested No

Planning History

Ref ID: LA04/2021/2385/PAN

Proposal: The proposed development constitutes a three-storey extension to the existing Our
Lady of Lourdes Primary School including a bridge link to the existing school building, car
parking areas and reconfiguration of existing, restoration of hard play areas and all associated
site and access works.

Address: Our Lady of Lourdes Primary School, 700 Antrim Rd, Belfast, BT15 5GQ.,

Decision: PANACC

Decision Date:

Ref ID: Z/2008/0452/F

Page,oQ,



Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

Proposal: Construction of 2 no. detached dwellings (previously approved under Z/2007/0022/F.
Address: To the rear of 694-696 Antrim Road, Green Castle, Belfast, BT15 5GQ

Decision:

Decision Date: 15.05.2008

Ref ID: Z2/1995/3027

Proposal: Alteration to existing vehicular access and provision of
car parking area.

Address: 700 ANTRIM ROAD, BELFAST BT15

Decision:

Decision Date:

Ref ID: Z/2009/1315/F

Proposal: Erection of a mobile classroom.

Address: Our Lady of Lourdes Primary School, 700 Antrim Road, Belfast. BT15 5GQ.
Decision:

Decision Date: 02.11.2009

Ref ID: Z/2006/2409/F

Proposal: New lift installation to accommodate a disabled access within the school and the
creation of a lobby at Mezzanine level within the courtyard of the school.

Address: Trustees of Our Lady of Lourdes Primary School, Parklodge, 700 Antrim Road, Green
Castle, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT15 5GQ

Decision:

Decision Date: 13.12.2006

Ref ID: 2/1998/2993

Proposal: Erection of a new mobile classroom.

Address: OUR LADY OF LOURDES PRIMARY SCHOOL, 700 ANTRIM ROAD, BELFAST BT15
Decision:

Decision Date:

Ref ID: Z2/1991/2193

Proposal: Erection of 2 No. mobile classrooms

Address: OUR LADY OF LOURDES PRIMARY SCHOOL 700 ANTRIM ROAD BELFASTBT15
Decision:

Decision Date:

Ref ID: Z/1990/2400

Proposal: Erection of 2 mobile classrooms

Address: OUR LADY OF LOURDES PRIMARY SCHOOL 698 ANTRIM ROAD, BELFAST BT15
Decision:

Decision Date:

Ref ID: Z/1992/2554

Proposal: Erection of temporary classroom

Address: OUR LADY OF LOURDES PRIMARY SCHOOL 700 ANTRIM ROAD, BELFAST BT15
Decision:

Decision Date:

Ref ID: Z2/1996/2441

Proposal: Temporary double mobile classroom

Address: OUR LADY OF LOURDES PRIMARY SCHOOL PARK LODGE, ANTRIM ROAD,
BELFAST BT15

Decision:

PRAge bl



Application ID: LA04/2022/0594/F

Decision Date:

Ref ID: 2/1994/2476

Proposal: Erection of 1 double temporary mobile classroom
Address: PARK LODGE, 700 ANTRIM ROAD BELFAST BT15
Decision:

Decision Date:

Notification to Department (if relevant)

Date of Notification to Department:
Response of Department:

Page:94.



Agenda Item 6b

Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary

Committee Meeting Date: Tuesday 20" September 2022
Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F
Proposal: Location:
Renewal of temporary planning permission for | Titanic Exhibition Centre
an Exhibition Centre. 17 Queen's Road

Belfast

BT3 9DU
Referral Route: Major Development
Recommendation: Approval
Applicant Name and Address: Agent Name and Address:
Titanic Belfast Ltd Turley
Titanic House Hamilton House
6 Queens Road 3 Joy Street
Belfast Belfast
BT3 9DT BT2 8LE

Executive Summary:

The application seeks a renewal of temporary planning permission (further 5 years) for a
Temporary Exhibition Centre, access arrangements, service and surface car parking and
associated works. The main issues to be considered in this case are:

The Principle of a Temporary Exhibition Centre at this location

Transport including network capacity, parking provision and highway safety
The Impact on Built Heritage and Archaeological interests

The Impact on Amenity

Environmental Protection and Human Health

Ecology and Natural Heritage

Drainage and Flood Risk

Planning Agreement and Developer Contributions

Pre-Application Community Consultation

The site is located within the development limits of Belfast as designated in the Belfast Urban
Area Plan 2001 and in both versions of Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (dBMAP v2004
and v2014). In dBMAP the site is within an area zoned as a mixed-use site. The principle of the
proposed development has already been established on the site through the granting of an
almost identical proposal for a three year period on 30" June 2015. Two entrance lobbies have
been added, the purpose of which is to better manage the flow of people into and out of the
exhibition centre. Given the temporary nature of the proposal it will not conflict with the zoning or
prejudice the future redevelopment of the site in line with the planned development of Titanic
Quarter. The principle of an exhibition centre is considered acceptable in this case for a further
temporary 5-year period.

Page 53




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

As the site is within the development limit and considering the site context, the relevant zonings
and site history, the principle of the use as an Exhibition Centre is already established and is
acceptable. As the structure is temporary, it is appropriate to limit the permission to 5 years.

Statutory consultees including Dfl Roads, DfC HED, DAERA NIEA, NI Water and Dfl Rivers have
no objection to the proposal subject to conditions where appropriate. BCC Environmental Health,
a non-statutory consultee, also has no objections.

The proposal has been assessed against the following Policies — Strategic Planning Policy
Statement for Northern Ireland, Planning Policy Statement 2: Natural Heritage, Planning Policy
Statement 3: Access Movement and Parking, Planning Policy Statement 4: Planning and
Economic Development and Planning Policy Statement 15: Planning and Flood Risk.

No objections have been received.

Having regard to the Development Plan and relevant material considerations, the proposed
development is considered acceptable.

It is recommended that temporary planning permission is granted for a period of 5 years subject
to conditions. Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to
finalise the wording of conditions.

Page a4




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

Case Officer Report

Plans and Drawings

PROPOSERFILM STUDIO TAKE 2°

N

Eh— -

i > d L} s == e ————
3o FrrmsTEn T 3 = e mme———

Site Location Plan

2698 85




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

N

ELECTRICAL

/- PROPOSED SIT

THOMAS ANDREW'S HOUSE

P A &
7 ;‘-;'

{

Block Plan

ph
 TITANIC

QUARTER
A o

Front Elevation

Page 26




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F
- fork lift s
I;_I_ F/E focose! e FLE v
T~ = H
—
B - loading j ‘ F
door
8 / N SO~ i —%@gtﬁ%b"
| > \ N . Q&{Qmw{bumﬂ <F/E
< | :|\ “ ~. .
o a0 T
égf \\ \ e \ QmTFSxﬂZOm long — | &
§ g/ 15 \%* %% o~ ™ T~ |
f g PR % ™~ .
io8 Fa \% ‘%{ S d e, ZFrE |
i B %, %y ey, ull
| T/ ‘% % oa/%é, g % loading ] b
£ S A d B
! L %, %, ey, > .
r Infl >~ ] 3 o @ - L1
! _l ‘g \ {b% e anosa |
/ _ & 4 ~ e | K|
: / \\a- \ RN ~ 'EI‘
| R | B e A~ L
N LT i TS i A T = PN 7N T
- o t: fork i F/E
fork lift fork lift L |
R A
Floor Plan

1.0

Characteristics of the Site and Area

11

1.2

1.3

14

15

2.0

Description of Proposed Development

The application seeks full planning permission for the following:
‘Renewal of temporary planning permission for an Exhibition Centre.’

being approved in 2015 and 2017.

frame and PVC coated polyester fabric.

point.

with an overflow facility for bus parking and/or up to 100 cars also.

This is the third application for the Titanic Exhibition Centre, with the preceding applications
The building consists of a temporary marquee-type structure comprising an aluminium
The structure measures 130m by 50m (6500 sq m) and a height of 15.9m at its highest

The vehicular access is from Queen’s Road and there are 900 car parking spaces on site

2.1

2.2

Description of Site and Area

boundary definition. 2m high steel railings define the roadside boundary.

The building has been in operation since September 2015

Existing Exhibition Centre on site, surrounded by hard standing with an area of parking
immediately south-east of the building. The site is located on level ground with no real

RRY8 97



Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations

3.0 Planning History
3.1 Full details of the planning history are provided at Annex A. Applications specific to the site
are detailed below:

3.2 Ref ID: LA04/2017/1607/F

Proposal: Temporary exhibition centre, access arrangements, service and surface car
parking and associated works.

Address: Titanic Exhibition Centre, 17 Queen's Road, Belfast, BT3 9DU,

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 24.10.2017

3.3 Ref ID: LA04/2015/0057/F

Proposal: Temporary exhibition centre, access arrangements, service and surface car
parking and associated works

Address: Land Opposite Titanic Studios (The 'Paint Hall') and East of Queens Road,
Belfast.

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 08.07.2015

4.0 Policy Framework

4.1 Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP)

Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (dBMAP 2015 v2004)
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan 2015 (dBMAP 2015 v2014)
Belfast Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strategy 2035

4.2 Regional Development Strategy 2035 (RDS)

Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS)

Planning Policy Statement 2 — Natural Heritage

Planning Policy Statement 3 — Access, Movement and Parking

Planning Policy Statement 4 — Planning and Economic Development

Planning Policy Statement 6 — Planning, Archaeology and the Built Environment
Planning Policy Statement 15 — Planning and Flood Risk

5.0 Statutory Consultees

Dfl Roads — no objections subject to conditions

Dfl Rivers — no objections

NIEA Marine and Fisheries — no objections

NIEA Land, Soil, and Air — no objections

NI Water — No objections

DfC Historic Environment Division — no objections

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees

BCC Environmental Health — no objections
Northern Ireland Electricity — no objections

7.0 Representations

7.1 None received.

Page 28




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

8.0

8.1
8.1.1

8.1.2

8.1.3

8.2
8.2.1

8.2.2

ASSESSMENT

Development Plan

Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 requires regard to be had to the Development
Plan, so far as material to the application and to any other material considerations. Section
6 (4) of the Planning (Northern Ireland) 2011 Act states that in making any determination
under the said Act, regard is to be had to the local development plan, and that the
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material consideration
indicate otherwise.

Following the Court of Appeal decision on Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan in May 2017, the
extant development plan is now the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001. However, given the
stage at which draft BMAP 2015 had reached pre-adoption through a period of
independent examination, the policies within it still carry weight and are a material
consideration in the determination of planning applications. The weight to be afforded is a
matter of judgement for the decision maker. The weight to be attached to policies in
emerging plans will depend upon the stage of plan preparation or review, increasing as
successive stages are reached. Given the advanced stage that draft BMAP 2015 reached
(i.e. pre-adoption following a period of independent examination), and that the main areas
of contention were policies relating to Sprucefield Shopping Centre, dBMAP 2015 is
considered to hold significant weight.

The Belfast Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strategy 2035 will guide future planning
application decision making to support the sustainable spatial growth of the city up to 2035.
The draft Plan Strategy has been subject to examination by the Planning Appeals
Commission and the Council has been provided with a copy of their Report, together with a
Direction from the Department for Infrastructure in relation to additional required steps before
it can be adopted. Paragraph 1.10 of the Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS) states
that a transitional period will operate until such times as a Council’s Plan Strategy has been
adopted. Accordingly, whilst the Draft Plan Strategy is now a material consideration it has
limited weight until it is adopted and during this transitional period existing policies will be
applied including the SPPS and relevant PPSs.

Main Issues
The main issues relevant to consideration of the application are summarised below.

The Principle of a Temporary Exhibition Centre at this location

Transport including network capacity, parking provision and highway safety
The Impact on Built Heritage and Archaeological interests

The Impact on Amenity

Environmental Protection and Human Health

Ecology and Natural Heritage

Drainage and Flood Risk

Planning Agreement and Developer Contributions

Pre-Application Community Consultation

Principle of a temporary exhibition centre on the Site

In the BUAP, dBMAP 2015 v2004 and v2014 the site is located within the development
limits of Belfast. It is un-zoned, white land in the BUAP 2001 whilst under both versions of
dBMAP 2015, Zoning BHA 01 allocates the site and wider lands at Titanic Quarter for
mixed-use development.

=98 99




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

8.2.3

8.2.4

8.2.5

8.2.6

A number of key site requirements are set out for development in the zoning BHAQO1. One
of these requirements is that development of the site shall only be permitted in accordance
with an overall development framework.

A development framework was prepared for the entire Titanic Quarter in 2003 and agreed
by the Department of the Environment in 2008 and later amended in 2010. This provided
an overall planning context for the phased development of the area. This framework is
supported by a Transport Masterplan which stipulates infrastructure required at each phase
of the development. The site is located within Phase 4 of the framework. Each
development must be consistent however with the overarching framework. This approach
has already been applied in the approval of the Financial Service Campus, the Public
Records Office of Northern Ireland and Titanic Film Studios.

A number of uses are identified in dBMAP as being acceptable in the Titanic quarter.
These include cultural/ heritage and recreation/ leisure uses. An exhibition hall falls within
Use Class DI Community and Cultural Uses. The proposed use is therefore acceptable.

In considering the implication of the proposed use, Policy PED 9 applies which requires that
the proposal meets the following criteria:

a) itis compatible with surrounding land uses;
The proposal is within an established industrial/ office area within the Titanic
Quarter. Historic Environment Division was previously satisfied that the building
would not adversely affect the setting of the nearby listed Pump House and Harland
and Wolf Drawing offices. The structure is now on the site.

b) it does not harm the amenities of nearby residents;
There are no residential properties within the vicinity of the site.

c) it does not adversely affect features of the natural or built heritage;
Historic Environment Division is satisfied that the proposal will not be detrimental to
the setting of the nearby listed Pump House and Harland and Wolf Drawing offices.
The structure is currently present on the site and has been since 2015..

d) itis not located in an area at flood risk and will not cause or exacerbate flooding;
The area is not within a designated flood plain or an area that has been identified as
being prone to flooding.

e) it does not create a noise nuisance;
The proposed use is not likely to cause significant noise levels that would impact on
amenity of nearby properties.

f) itis capable of dealing satisfactorily with any emission or effluent;
No emissions would be associated with the proposed use.

g) the existing road network can safely handle any extra vehicular traffic the proposal
will generate or suitable developer led improvements are proposed to overcome
any road problems identified;

DFI Roads have offered no objections to the proposal. The proposal has been
previously approved and is present on the site.

h) adequate access arrangements, parking and manoeuvring areas are provided;
Parking is currently present on the site as previously approved. Dfl Roads have no
objections

Page 6&




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

8.2.7

8.3
8.3.1

8.3.2

8.3.3

8.3.4

8.4
8.4.1

i) amovement pattern is provided that, insofar as possible, supports walking and
cycling, meets the needs of people whose mobility is impaired, respects existing
public rights of way and provides adequate and convenient access to public
transport;

The proposed access road and parking tie in with the existing access point and
road infrastructure. Parking provided as previously approved. no additional parking
required

j) the site layout, building design, associated infrastructure and landscaping
arrangements are of high quality and assist the promotion of sustainability and
biodiversity;

The building is constructed on site as previously approved. The additional entrance
lobbies are relatively minor in scale in relation to the main building and will not be in
any way detrimental to visual amenity.

k) appropriate boundary treatment and means of enclosure are provided and any
areas of outside storage proposed are adequately screened from public view;
No boundary treatment is proposed however given the character of the area and
the fact the proposal is for a temporary structure landscaping is not essential.

l) is designed to deter crime and promote personal safety; and
The site is gated with high steel railing along the roadside boundary.

Two previous applications for this use have been approved previously both in 2015 and
2017. Normally, concurrent temporary applications are not considered appropriate as more
than two permissions is tantamount to a permanent permission. In this particular
circumstance however, given the temporary nature of the building and the impact of covid
on the previous 5-year permission, it is considered acceptable to permit a third temporary
approval. The applicant has been informed that beyond this current application, it is unlikely
another would be approved. The building would not be appropriate on a permanent basis
and therefore a long-term, appropriate use and form of development should be explored and
secured in the forthcoming years.

Transport including network capacity, parking provision and highway safety

The proposal has been assessed against PPS3, TRAN 1 and policy CC025 of draft BMAP
and is considered acceptable. Existing car parking is provided adjacent to the existing
exhibition centre and car parking for the proposed building will be accommodated within
the existing surrounding car parking.

In assessing the previous applications, Dfl Roads noted that the proposal is not expected
to generate significant vehicular trips during weekday network peaks and that this was
supported by observations of the operation of the site under the 2015 approval.

It is stated in the event management plan submitted with the application that as exhibitions
occur over a long period of the day and visitors come and go at their leisure it is unlikely
that a mass exodus of visitors will occur at any one time that may result in queues along
Queens Road.

Dfl Roads were consulted and had no objection subject to conditions.

The Impact on Built Heritage and Archaeological interests

The application site is in close proximity to / impacts upon a number of listed buildings
which is of special architectural or historic interest and is protected by Section 80 of the
Planning Act (NI) 2011 including:

RaRge #1




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

8.4.2

8.4.3

8.5
8.5.1

8.6
8.6.1

8.6.2

8.6.3

8.7
8.7.1

¢ HB26 07 009 Harland and Wolf Drawing Office, Belfast Grade B+
e HB26 07 010 Pump House, Queen’s Road, Belfast Grade B1

DfC Historic Buildings were consulted and advised that they are content with the proposal.

DfC Historic Monuments were consulted and advised that they were previously consulted
and recommended archaeological conditions which were not attached to the decision.
Given that the exhibition centre is in situ however, they state that they are ‘content that the
proposal is satisfactory to SPPS and PPS 6 archaeological policy requirements due to its
temporary nature’.

The Impact on Amenity

There are no residential properties within the vicinity of the site. The proposal is almost
identical to the structure approved and built on site. No objection has been offered from
Environmental Health in relation to noise/ disturbance.

Environmental Protection and Human Health

Relevant contaminated land conditions were applied to LA04/2015/0057/F requiring
emplacement of 100-125mm of rebar reinforced concrete on top of the existing concrete
hardstanding with all joints sealed, and also requiring special measures in the event that
unexpected contamination was encountered during development. RPS have noted that the
required concrete was emplaced and that no previously unidentified contamination was
encountered during placement of the TEC.

An updated Preliminary Risk Assessment for the existing development was provided which
concludes that the risk to human health is minimal. The structure is already constructed
and operating under the previous planning permission, and therefore that no further action
or remediation with regard to ground contamination is required.

Environmental Health were consulted and had no objections on this basis. DAERA:
Regulation Unit and Groundwater Team were also consulted. They noted that ‘no
groundwater monitoring or assessment has been completed for the site. RU have concerns
that the investigations have not fully explained the contamination detected in the ground
beneath the site, and has not investigated the groundwater beneath the site. This
information would inform a detailed conceptual understanding of the ground and
groundwater situation beneath the site to produce a detailed conceptual site model (CSM)’
but go on to say that as ‘the application is for renewal of planning permission for a
temporary building located on a concrete slab. RU would have no objection to the
application but advise that the concerns relating to potential environmental impact are
noted’. DAERA: RU offers no objections.

Ecology and Natural Heritage
The proposal has been assessed against Policy NH 3 - Sites of Nature Conservation
Importance — National. The nearest National, European and International sites to this
proposal are:
e Inner (~2.2km) and Outer (~5.3km) Belfast Lough ASSI, which are declared under
the Environment Order (Northern Ireland) 2002;
¢ Belfast Lough Ramsar site (~2.8km), which is designated under the Ramsar
Convention;
e Belfast Lough SPA (~2.9km), Belfast Lough Open Water SPA (~3.8km), East Coast
Marine pSPA (~2.9km) and North Channel SAC (~20km), which are designated

Page.64s




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

8.7.2

8.8
8.8.1
8.8.2

8.8.3

8.9
8.9.1

8.9.2

8.10.3

8.11.2

8.11.3

under the Conservation (Natural Habitats, etc.) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1995
(as amended);

e Outer Belfast Lough MCZ (~23km) which is designated under the Marine Act
(Northern Ireland) 2013.

DAERA: Marine and Fisheries Division (M&FD) has considered the impacts of the proposal
and on the basis of the information supplied is content that there should be no adverse
impacts on marine conservation, provided standing advice for development that may have
an effect on the water environment (including groundwater and fisheries) is adhered to and
flooding is considered.

Drainage and Flood Risk

There are no watercourses which are designated under the terms of the Drainage
(Northern Ireland) Order 1973 within this site. The site may be affected by undesignated
watercourses of which we have no record.

The proposal has been assessed against Policy FLD1 - Development in Fluvial and coastal
Flood Plains. Dfl Rivers has reviewed the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) by RPS, dated
April 2022, and stated that ‘while not being responsible for the preparation of the FRA
accepts its logic and has no reason to disagree with its conclusions’.

NI Water was consulted and states that ‘although Belfast Waste Water Treatment Works
(WWTW) is operating at capacity this proposal can be approved on the basis of extant
planning’.

Pre-Community Consultation

For applications that fall within the Major category of development as prescribed in the
Development Management Regulations, Section 27 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 places a
statutory duty on the applicant for planning permission to consult the community in
advance of submitting an application.

Section 27 also requires that a prospective applicant, prior to submitting an application for
Major development must give notice, known as a ‘Proposal of Application Notice’ (PAN)
that an application for planning permission for the development is to be submitted. A PAN
(LAO4/2022/0142/PAN) was submitted to the Council on 12 January 2022 and was
deemed acceptable on 14 February 2022.

The Planning (Development Management) (Temporary Maodifications) (Coronavirus)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2020 provided the ability for applicants to avoid in-person
consultation events during Covid restrictions and to instead conduct consultation via other
methods.

Where pre-application community consultation has been required and a PAN has been
submitted at least 12 weeks in advance of the application being submitted, the applicant
must prepare a pre-application community consultation report (PACC) to accompany the
planning application. A PACC Report has been submitted in support of this application
which details a consultation website, drop in webinars, letters, leaflets, social media
campaign, consultation phone number/email address and the public advertisement.

According to the PACC report, although physical packs were available, none were
requested. No phone calls were received to the dedicated phone line. No live chat requests
were received. 2 no emails and 5 no feedback forms however were received.

rage: 63




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

8.11.4

8.11.5

8.11.6

8.12
8.12.1

8.12.2

Of the 5 feedback forms, 80% strongly agreed with supporting the renewal of the TEC.
67% agreed that the TEC is another reason to visit Belfast and will contribute to growth and
recovery.

Other comments included a desire to see a permanent structure on the site, concerns
regarding traffic and travel, accessibility and finally, noting that there is nothing elsewhere
in the city with a similar function.

It is considered that the PACC Report has demonstrated that the applicant has carried out
their duty under Section 27 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 to consult the community in
advance of submitting an application.

Planning Agreement and Developer Contributions

Para 5.69 of the SPPS states that ‘Planning authorities can require developers to bear the
costs of work required to facilitate their development proposals.’ Relevant further guidance
is provided by the Council’'s Developer Contribution Framework, adopted in 2020.

Given the temporary nature of the proposal, it is not considered necessary to require
developer contributions in this case.

10.0

10.1

10.2

Summary of Recommendation:

Having regard to the Development Plan, and other material considerations, the proposed
development is considered acceptable.

It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to conditions. Delegated
authority is requested for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the
wording of conditions.

11.0

DRAFT CONDITIONS:

The structure shall be removed and the use hereby permitted shall be discontinued and the
land restored to its former condition within 5 years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.

The proposed building shall be used only as a temporary exhibition centre (Class D1(h)
and for no other purpose in Use Class D1 of the Schedule to the Planning (Use Classes)
Order (Northern Ireland) 2015.

Reason: To ensure there is no impact on amenity and to ensure compliance with the Traffic
and Event Management Plan.

The development / exhibition shall operate under the Event Management Plan published
by the Council on 20" May 2022.

Reason: In the interests of road safety and traffic progression.

The development / exhibition shall operate utilising hard surfaced areas constructed and
permanently marked to provide approximately 106 incurtilage car parking spaces for use
by exhibitors, persons with a disability and to provide a suitable drop off point. Provision of
car parking for general visitors shall utilise available TQ car parks / lands in the surrounding

Page.64s




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

area, identified and managed as part of the approved Event Management Plan deemed
necessary for each exhibition.

Reason: To ensure that adequate provision has been made for car parking and traffic
circulation in the interests of road safety and the convenience of road users.

5 One space per 25 spaces of the total parking provision shall be provided close to the
entrance and permanently retained for people with a disability and shall be adequately
marked for that purpose.

Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate parking facilities to meet the needs of people
with disabilities.

12.0 Representations from Elected Representatives (if relevant)

N/A
13.0 Referral to Dfl (if relevant)

N/A

PRAge: b




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

ANNEX
Date Valid 4th May 2022
Date First Advertised 27th May 2022
Date Last Advertised 27th May 2022
Date of Last Neighbour Notification 8th June 2022
Date of EIA Determination 19th May 2022
ES Requested No

Planning History

Ref ID: LA04/2017/1607/F

Proposal: Temporary exhibition centre, access arrangements, service and surface car parking and
associated works.

Address: Titanic Exhibition Centre, 17 Queen's Road, Belfast, BT3 9DU,

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 24.10.2017

Ref ID: LA04/2015/0057/F

Proposal: Temporary exhibition centre, access arrangements, service and surface car parking and
associated works

Address: Land Opposite Titanic Studios (The 'Paint Hall') and East of Queens Road, Belfast,
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 08.07.2015

Ref ID: Z2/2009/1260/F

Proposal: Erection of hotel comprising 244 bedrooms, ancillary restaurant and conference facilities,
hotel offices, landscaped public realm, basement car park and associated site and road works
Address: Lands adjacent to the north of Hamilton Dock, north of Abercorn Crescent/Queen's Road,
Queen's Island, Belfast

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 19.07.2010

Ref ID: LA04/2016/0096/F

Proposal: Amended Proposal to include additional internal ground floor dining and plant areas.
Amendment to permission Z/2014/1555/F for refurbishment, part restoration, change of use and
extension to listed former Harland & Wolff Headquarters Building and to provide 36no. additional
bedrooms (120No. in total) in a new annex, including service area, covered terrace, ancillary uses and
associated access and site works.

Address: Former Harland And Wolff Headquarters Building and Drawing Offices, Queens Road, Belfast,
BT3 9DU,

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 17.05.2017

Ref ID: LA04/2016/0097/LBC
Proposal: Amendment to listed building consent application Z2/2014/1580/LBC for refurbishment, part
restoration, change of use and extension to the listed former Harland & Wolff Headquarters to provide

Page.66s




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

36n0. additional bedrooms (120No. in total) in a new annex. including service area, covered terrace,
ancillary uses and site woks, and including the retention and repair of historic decorative features,
upgrade of windows, external structural works and cleaning, removal of internal partitioning, installation
of new heritage roof lights, external and internal works including re-use of materials and installation of
new materials (brickwork, cladding and joinery works).

Address: Former Harland and Wolff Headquarters and Drawing Offices, Queens Road, Belfast, BT3
oDU,

Decision: Consent Granted

Decision Date: 25.05.2017

Ref ID: LA04/2016/1482/F

Proposal: Temporary inflatable exhibition structure with associated surface car parking.
Address: Site adjacent to, 7 Queens Road, Belfast BT3 9DT (Opposite 2 Queens Road Belfast),
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 20.06.2017

Ref ID: LA04/2021/1778/F

Proposal: Change of use from pump house and cafe/restaurant to distillery with associated ancillary
visitor tour facilities.

Address: Thompson Dock Pump House and Car Park of Northern Ireland Science Park (Innovation
Centre), Queens Road, Belfast, BT3 9DT.,

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 29.12.2021

Ref ID: LA04/2021/1779/LBC

Proposal: Change of use from pump house and cafe/restaurant to distillery with associated ancillary
visitor tour facilities. This includes works to the listed building that comprise relocation and
reconfiguration of platform lift and stair, construction of internal walls, reconfiguration of toilet area at
mezzanine level, provision of accessible toilet at ground floor, alterations and extension to the existing
mezzanine floor, new openings in existing external and internal walls for access and services,
installation of meeting / viewing room pod with associated internal bridge structure, installation of
distillery equipment and platform, provision of penthouse ridge vents and various localised minor
alterations and repairs.

Address: Thompson Dock Pump House, Queens Road, Belfast, BT3 9DT.,

Decision: Consent Granted

Decision Date: 29.12.2021

Ref ID: LA04/2019/1636/F

Proposal: Erection of hotel comprising 276 beds, conference facilities, restaurant /cafe/bar uses
(including roof top bar), landscaped public realm, car parking and associated site and road works.
Address: Lands directly south of Titanic Belfast and North-West of Hamilton Dock located off Queens
Road, Belfast.,

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 27.02.2020

Ref ID: LA04/2020/0010/F

Proposal: Proposed aquarium, car parking and associated infrastructure.

Address: Lands to the South East of Titanic Hotel, North East of Bell's Theorem Crescent and South
West of Hamilton Road, Belfast,

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 24.09.2020

Ref ID: LA04/2021/2280/F
Proposal: Mixed use, mixed tenure residential-led development of 778 apartments in three buildings
with internal and external amenity space; flexible commercial/community floorspace (convenience store

P06 &/




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

with hot food counter/A1/A2/D1 uses/cafe/bar/restaurant); public realm including public square and
waterfront promenade; cycle and car parking and associated landscaping, access roads, plant and site
works including to existing river revetment (further environmental information received)

Address: Lands adjacent to and south east of the river Lagan, west of Olympic Way of Queen's road,
Queen's Island, Belfast, BT2 9EQ,

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date:

Ref ID: LA04/2022/0293/F

Proposal: Erection of hotel/aparthotel comprising 162 hotel beds and 94 aparthotel beds, conference
facilities, restaurant /cafe/bar uses (including roof top bar), gym, landscaped public realm, car parking,
cycle parking and associated site and road works.

Address: Lands directly south of Titanic Belfast and north-west of Hamilton Dock located off Queens
Road, Belfast.,

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 09.09.2022

Ref ID: Z/2014/0409/F

Proposal: Temporary outdoor sports complex including support facilities, use of existing car parking
spaces and other ancillary site works

Address: Land east of Queen's Road, north east of Belfast Metropolitan College and south of Hamilton
Road, Queen's Island, Belfast,

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 06.11.2014

Ref ID: 2/2013/1509/F

Proposal: Film studios (2no), film production workshops, ancillary film production uses, installation of
photovoltaic array, provision of car parking and access and undertake ancillary site works including re-
location of sub-station

Address: Land East of Queen's Road and Northern Ireland Science Park, south of channel commercial
park and west of Musgrave Channel Road, Queens Road, Queen's Island, Belfast,

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 12.08.2014

Ref ID: Z2/2014/1555/F

Proposal: Conversion refurbishment, restoration, extension and minor demolition of the former Harland
And Wolf Headquarters building and drawing offices for use as 84 bedroom boutique hotel with heritage
related tourist/event facilities, and other ancillary accommodation including plant and storage areas,
communal areas together with associated access and site works. Tourist facilities to include guided
tours.

Address: Former Harland and Wolf Headquarters Building and Drawing Offices, Queens Road, Queens
Island, Belfast, BT3 9DU,

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 08.07.2015

Ref ID: Z/2014/1580/LBC

Proposal: Conversion, refurbishment, restoration, extension and minor demolition of the former Harland
and Wolff headquarters building and drawing offices for use as 84 bedroom boutique hotel with heritage
related tourist/event facilities including the retention and repair of historic decorative features, upgrade
of windows, external structural works and cleaning, removal of internal partitioning, installation of new
heritage roof lights, external and internal works including the re-use of materials and installation of use
of new materials (Brickwork, cladding, roof, coverings, joinery works)

Address: Former Harland And Wolff Headquarters Building and drawing Offices, Queens Road, Belfast,
BT3 9DU,

Decision: Consent Granted

Pages63s




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

Decision Date: 23.07.2015

Ref ID: 2/2013/1511/F

Proposal: Existing building to be extended to the south-east and south to create additional 2330 sq
metres of lettable work space and 98 car parking spaces remotely located 300 metres north east of the
NISP building.

Address: Northern Ireland Science Park, Queen's Road, Queen's Island, Belfast, BT3 9DT,

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 08.12.2015

to vary Condition 23 attached to Planning Permission Z/2006/2864/0

Address: Titanic Quarter Phase Il - Land bounded to the south by Abercorn Basin, to the east by
Queen's Road, to the west & north by River Lagan and including the listed former Harland & Wolff HQ,
Belfast

Decision:

Decision Date: 28.03.2012

Ref ID: Z/2006/2864/0

Proposal: Residential led mixed use development including Titanic Experience Building, public realm
areas and associated infrastructural works.

Address: Titanic Quarter Phase ll-Land bounded to the south by Abercorn Basin, to the east by Queen's
Road, to the west & north by River Lagan and including the listed former Harland & Wolff HQ, Belfast.
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 26.06.2008

Ref ID: Z/2008/1428/RM

Proposal: Erection of Titanic Signature Building comprising cultural, assembly/leisure (Classes D1/D2),
cafe/restaurant and ancillary retail uses (Class Al), a basement carpark, creation of Memorial Place
public Realm and associated landscaping and site works.

Address: Lands adjacent to listed former Harland & Wolff Headquarters and Drawing Offices and
(including) west of Queen's Road, Queen's Island, Belfast.

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 05.12.2008

Ref ID: Z/2008/1548/RM

Proposal: Proposed mixed use development comprising 380 no apartments, 6 no cafe/bar/restaurant
units, 8 no live work units, 1 no doctor's surgery, 1 no dentist, 1 no pharmacy, landscaped private
amenity space, landscaped public realm, basement car park and associated site works and road works.
Address: Lands adjacent Abercorn Basin, north of Abercorn Crescent/Queens Road, Queens Island,
Belfast.

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 18.08.2009

Ref ID: 2/2009/0530/F

Proposal: Proposed mixed use development comprising 152 no apartments, 2 no hotels, 1846 sq m of
business (Class B1), retail (Class Al), 2164 sq m of restaurants, bars and cafes (sui generis), 332 sqg m
of health spa (sui generis), 196 sq m of financial, professional and other services (Class A2), basement
car parking, landscaping and ancillary infrastructural works.

Address: Lands east of Victoria Channel and 120m west of the former Harland & Wolff Drawing Offices,
Queen's Road, Queen's Island, Belfast

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 19.07.2011

Ref ID: Z/2007/0298/F

PR ge: 69




Application ID: LA04/2022/0917/F

Proposal: College campus and ancillary uses including beauty salon, hairdressing salon, bar &
restaurant together with access road, basement (& perimeter) car parking of 329 spaces, provision of
new junction, upgrading of Queen's Road & associated site works.

Address: Land east of Queen's Road and Hamilton Graving Dock, Queen's Island, Belfast

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 15.02.2008

Ref ID: 2/2011/0118/F

Proposal: Erection of 2 no. film studios with associated ancillary accommodation and car-parking.
Address: site to north-east of existing 'Paint Hall' structure, Queen's Road, Titanic Quarter, Belfast.
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 21.11.2011

Pages Qs




Agenda Item 6d

Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary

Committee Meeting Date: 20" September 2022

Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

Proposal: Proposed development of Location:

31No. social housing units comprising of Lands at Nos. 176-184 and No. 202
16No. apartments and 15No. townhouses, | Woodstock Road and Nos. 2-20
car parking, landscaping and all Beersbridge Road, Belfast.
associated site and access works.

Referral Route:
More than 12 units with objection (as per 3.8.2 (i) of the Delegated Scheme)

Recommendation: Approve subject to conditions and S76
Planning Agreement

Applicant Name and Address: Agent Name and Address:

Hargan Homes Ltd TSA Planning

Unit 2 20 May Street

Channel Wharf Belfast

21 Old Channel Road BT2 8AB

Belfast

Executive Summary:

This application seeks full planning permission for 31 no. social housing units, comprising 16No.
apartments and 15No. townhouses, car parking, landscaping and all associated site and access
works.

The main issues to be considered in this case are:

The principle of the proposal at this location

Design, layout and impact on the character and appearance of the area
Impact on Residential Amenity

Impact on Historic Buildings

Access, Movement and Parking

Drainage and Flood Risk

Infrastructure Capacity

Environmental Health

The application site is located within the settlement development limit and has been zoned partially
for housing and is located in a Housing Action Area in the adopted BUAP.

Under the provisions of the draft BMAP (2004) and BMAP (2015) the site is within a Commercial
Node/Area of Car Parking Restraint and located next to an Arterial Route (Woodstock Road).

The surrounding area is predominantly residential in character. The site is occupied by a car
business which includes a car showroom and a car wash/valet.

The proposal is for social housing and NI Housing Executive have expressed their support for the
proposal.

Page 71



Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

DFI Roads, EHO, NIE, Rivers Agency, NIEA, NI Water and HED offered no objections to the
proposal.

Two letters of objection have raised concerns with traffic, parking and impact on residential
amenity. They have been fully considered within the report below.

The proposed development will not adversely impact the character and appearance of the
surrounding area. It is considered to be sympathetic in its built form, scale, massing and
appearance with the surrounding area and neighbouring properties. It is considered that the
proposal will not raise any unacceptable issues in relation to residential amenity including
overshadowing and loss of light. Amendments have been secured to amend rear windows on the
proposed apartments to ensure no direct overlooking into the existing houses; immediate
neighbours have been re-notified.

Having regard to the policy context and all material considerations, the proposal is considered on
balance to be acceptable and planning permission is recommended for approval subject to no new
substantive planning issues being raised by third parties. It is considered in this case given the
obvious benefits of bringing forward much needed new housing stock that permission should be
granted with conditions and Section 76 Agreement to secure Green Travel Measures.

Recommendation - Approval subject to conditions and S76 Panning Agreement.

Itis requested that the committee delegate authority to the Director of Planning and Building Control
to finalise the wording of conditions.

Page f£2



Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

Case Officer Report

Site Location Plan

2696 2 3




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

Proposed Elevations

Proposed Elevation C

Characteristics of the Site and Area

1.0

11

Description of Proposed Development

The proposal consists of 31No. social housing units comprising of 16No. apartments and
15No. townhouses, car parking, landscaping and all associated site and access works.

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

Description of Site and Surrounding Area

The application site is located on the corner of Woodstock and Beersbridge Road, at No.
176 — 202 Woodstock Road and No. 2 - 20 Beersbridge Road. The site is currently used by
Holmes Motors and the adjacent Car Wash/Valet Centre. This includes a Car Showroom,
Forecourt and MOT Garage which are located on the southern/south-eastern portion of the
site, and the Car Wash and Valet Centre on the western portion. The transition between the
two areas of the site is denoted by a c.2m high yellow and blue palisade fence to the north-
western and western boundary, changing to a c.4m paladin fence from the western to
southern boundary; the latter which is intersected at intervals by access gates and red brick
pillars to the Car Forecourt and Showroom.

The immediate area of the application site comprises a mix of primarily residential,
commercial and retail uses with further educational, religious and recreational uses in the
wider locality. The north-eastern boundary partly fronts Pottinger Street, and also abuts the
shared alleyway serving the rear yard areas of Nos. 1-21 (odds) Pottinger Street, whereas
the south-eastern, southwestern, and north western boundaries front Beersbridge Road,
Woodstock Road and Castlereagh Place respectively.

The wider surrounding area is characterised by medium to high density residential
developments. This includes the modern 2 storey brown brick terraced dwellings at Nos.

Page 4




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

2.4

157-191 Woodstock Road to the southwest, and a mixture of 2/2.5 storey terraces and three
storey apartment developments located at Nos. 4-16 and No. 2 Cherryville Street (Charlton
House) further southwest. Two and a half storey red brick terraced dwellings are also
located at Nos. 35- 55 (evens) Castlereagh Place to the north, and along Beersbridge Road
and Pottinger Street.

The site is located circa 1.9 miles (c.3km) to the southeast of Belfast City Centre, with local
amenities such as House of Prayer Ireland, Beershridge Family Centre, Mackey Options,
Boots Pharmacy and Nettlefield Primary School all located within the immediate locality.
The site is readily accessible to the City Centre and wider locality by walking and cycling;
accommodated by cycle lanes and footpaths. The site is also well served by existing public
transport services with bus stops located along Woodstock Road and Beersbridge Road.

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations

3.0
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Planning History

LA04/2021/1158/PAD

Proposed residential development comprising of 16No. apartments and 15No.
townhouses, landscaping and all associated site and access works.

Address: Lands at Nos. 176-184 and 202 Woodstock Road, and Nos. 2-20 Beersbridge
Road, Belfast.

Z/2007/2179/F Development consisting of 1 no. retail unit on ground floor and 63 no.
apartments above.

Lands at Woodstock Road/Beersbridge Road (Holmes Garage), Belfast, BT06 8AG.
Granted 08.12.2009

Z/2000/2974/0

Construction of 5 no 2-bedroom studio apartments with associated car parking.
186-190 Woodstock Road, Belfast

Granted 11.07.2001

Z/1995/0096
Proposal: Demolition of two vacant shops, extension to filling station and erection of
forecourt shop 176/188 WOODSTOCK ROAD BELFAST BT6

Z/1988/0018 Demolition and rebuilding of petrol station 176/184 WOODSTOCK ROAD
BELFAST BT6

Surrounding Area

Relevant consents in the wider area include planning permission immediately southwest of
the site at 42-46 Cherryville Street and 193-197 Woodstock Road in October 2017 (Ref:
LA04/2015/1096/F) for the construction of 4No. four-bedroom apartments and 8No. two-
bedroom apartments within a three-storey block, and all associated site works (permission
expires 4/10/22). Permission immediately northwest of the site at 174 Woodstock Road in
(LA04/2020/0309/F) for the demolition of the existing property, and construction of a three-
storey building with 3No. one-bedroom apartments.

4.0

Policy Framework

4.1
4.2
4.3

BUAP

Draft BMAP 2015

Draft BMAP 2004

Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant development plan is
now the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had reached pre-

2986 25




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

adoption through a period of independent examination, the policies within the Draft BMAP
still carry weight and are a material consideration in the determination of planning
applications. The weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker.

4.4 The Belfast Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strategy 2035 will guide future planning
application decision making to support the sustainable spatial growth of the city up to 2035.
The draft Plan Strategy has been subject to examination by the Planning Appeals
Commission and the Council has been provided with a copy of their Report, together with a
Direction from the Department for Infrastructure in relation to additional required steps
before it can be adopted. Paragraph 1.10 of the Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS)
states that a transitional period will operate until such times as a Council’s Plan Strategy
has been adopted. Accordingly, whilst the Draft Plan Strategy is now a material
consideration it has limited weight until it is adopted and during this transitional period
existing policies will be applied including the SPPS and relevant PPSs.

4.5 Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS)

4.6 PPS 3 — Access, Movement and Parking

4.7 PPS 6 — Planning, Archaeology and Built Heritage

4.8 PPS 7 — Quality Residential Environments

4.9 PPS 7 — Addendum Safeguarding the Character of Established Residential Areas

4.10 PPS 8 — Open Space, Sport and Recreation

4.11 | PPS 15 - Planning and Flood Risk

4.12 | Other Guidance
DCAN 8 — Housing in Existing Urban Areas
Creating Places

5.0 Statutory Consultee Responses

5.1 NIEA: No objection subject to conditions

5.2 NIE: No objection

5.3 HED: No objection

5.4 NI Water: No objection subject to conditions

5.5 Dfl Roads: No objections subject to conditions

5.6 Rivers: No objection subject to conditions

5.7 NIHE: Supportive of the proposed development

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees Responses

6.1 Environmental Health — No objections subject to conditions

7.0 Representations

7.1 The Council has received two representations to the proposal objecting to the proposal.

7.2 No. 1: Mary Cooke, 6 Pottinger Street, Belfast.

e Concerns around the potential loss of light due to the height and proximity of the
proposal.

e Concerns regarding lack of parking and wider parking issues within the area with
commuter parking. Concern that the parking surveys are not a true representation
as they were carried out during the pandemic.

7.3 No. 2: Chris Moore and Pippa Cooke, 15 Pottinger Street, Belfast

o Concerns raised related to overshadowing and impact on privacy.

o Concerns regarding lack of parking and wider parking issues within the area with
commuter parking. Concern that the parking surveys are not a true representation
as they were carried out during the pandemic.

e Increase in traffic generation.

e Impact and pressure on sewage infrastructure

e Proliferation of bins in alleyways and potential issues with vermin

Page £6




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

7.4

Officers respond as follows to these objections:

e« Concerns were raised regarding parking and traffic. DFI Roads considered the
objections and are of the opinion that the proposal is acceptable and complies with
PPS 3. Parking enforcement is a matter for DFI. Further discussion on parking,
access and transport is included within the assessment section of the report.

e The scale, height and massing of the proposal is considered to be acceptable.
Amendments to the design were sought to ensure no significant overlooking of
neighbours. The layout and aspect of the proposed apartments would mean that
there would be no significant overlooking, overshadowing or detrimental impact on
natural light to neighbouring properties.

¢ NIW have advised there is available capacity at the WWTW and that there is a public
foul sewer which can adequately serve the proposal. A condition is recommended
with respect to agreeing an extension to the public surface water sewer.

e The houses will have adequate rear gardens to store bins whilst the apartment block
has a fully enclosed bin store and a bin pick up area depicted on the layout which is
considered to be acceptable.

8.0

Assessment

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 requires regard to be had to the
Development Plan, so far as material to the application and to any other material
considerations. Section 6(4) states that where regard is to be had to the Development Plan,
the determination must be made in accordance with the Plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. The Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP) is the statutory development
plan for the area with dBMAP 2015 remaining a material consideration.

The SPPS provides a regional framework of planning policy that will be taken account of in
the preparation of Belfast City Council’s Local Development Plan (LDP). The SPPS aims to
promote more sustainable housing development within existing urban areas and places
emphasis on increasing housing density within settlements. The use of greenfield land for
housing should be reduced and more urban housing should be accommodated through the
recycling of land and buildings. The SPPS also advises that housing should be located in
sustainable locations that facilitate a high degree of integration with centres of employment,
community services and public transport. Furthermore, all new housing developments
should demonstrate a high quality of design, layout (including road infrastructure
considerations) and landscaping.

Principle of Development

Within the adopted BUAP, the site is located within the settlement development limit, has
been zoned partially for housing and is located in a Housing Action Area. Housing Action
Areas were designated within the BUAP (2001) to assist in the regeneration of old housing
stock and in the delivery of new homes.

Under the provisions of dBMAP (2004), the site is located within the Settlement
Development Limit, within a Commercial Node/Area of Car Parking Restraint and located
next to an Arterial Route (Woodstock Road Ref: 3/10). Under the provisions of the BMAP
(2015) the site is located adjacent to an Arterial Route (Ref: 02/09), within the Settlement
Development Limit and is located within a Commercial Node/Area of Car Parking Restraint.
Consideration must be given to the dBMAP Commercial Node designations. The associated
policy text for these commercial nodes does not preclude residential development, and
during the BMAP Inquiry, the PAC recommended amendment of dBMAP policy SETT4 to
promote residential development as a means of regenerating arterial routes. This
recommendation was carried through to Policy SETT 3 in BMAP (2015).

98 A 1




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

The Plan aims to encourage restoration of the built frontage along Arterial Routes through
the development of vacant gap sites and advises that in general terms, new development
along these roads should have continuous frontages which maximise the opportunities to
animate the street, should form an edge with the street and follow a common building line
without major setbacks; should be of a robust and adaptable urban form; and Building height
and massing should be appropriate to the scale of the street with higher densities of
development within designated commercial nodes.

The existing uses on the site, which include a Used Car Sales and Car Wash/Valet Centre,
do not currently provide a positive contribution to the urban design and character of the area,
nor contribute to the attractiveness of Woodstock Road. The proposal will enhance the street
at this location, through the introduction of a continuous built frontage and use more akin to
the site’s surrounding context, with an attractive 3.5 storey residential development which
steps down to 2.5 storeys at the most sensitive locations adjacent to Pottinger Street and
Castlereagh Place. The applicant has indicated that the units are for Social Housing. NIHE
have advised that they are in support of the proposal.

In principle, a residential use is acceptable on the site subject to complying with prevailing
planning policy.

Design, layout and impact on the character and appearance of the area

Policy QD1 of PPS 7 states that planning permission will only be granted for new residential
development where it is demonstrated that the proposal will create a quality and sustainable
residential environment. The design and layout of residential development should be based
on an overall design concept that draws upon the positive aspects of the character and
appearance of the surrounding area.

The site is on a prominent corner on the arterial route and is presently occupied by a used
car dealership, car wash and valet centre. The current built form reflects the commercial
function of the premises however does not present a strong frontage on to the arterial route
with the majority of the road frontage consisting of gaps punctuated by columns, access
gates and metal railings/palisade fencing with cars parked behind; there is limited building
frontage at the corner and on to Beersbridge Road. The existing commercial premises on
the site is of limited architectural merit and its loss would not have a negative impact on the
character of the area. The proposal presents an opportunity to introduce a robust built form
with a continuous building frontage to animate the street regenerating the site with an
appropriate housing scheme.

This application seeks permission to develop 31No. social housing units comprising 16No.
apartments and 15No. townhouses. The development will contain a mix of 9x 3bed
townhouses, 6x4 bed townhouses, 4x 2 bed wheelchair accessible apartments, 6x 2bed
apartments and 6x 1 bed apartments. The units range from 40sgm to 110 sgm.

The proposal will provide an active, articulated fagade fronting on to the Woodstock Road
and Beersbridge Road. The development provides a continuous frontage onto both roads
and generally respects established building lines. The scheme includes 2.5/3 storey
townhouses houses along Woodstock Road, Beersbridge Road, and Pottinger Street, with
the 3.5 storey apartment focal element of the scheme located on the corner between
Woodstock Road and Beersbridge Road. The proposed “stepping down” arrangement, and
uniform vertical window fenestration; alongside deep window reveals, assist somewhat in
dissipating the overall height of the proposal, and reducing its perceived bulk and mass from
the streetscape.

There are three different building heights ranging from 8.8m to 9.7m for the two and a half
storey buildings to 12.1m for the highest three and a half storey building. The level of glazing;

Pagea £8




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

8.13

8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

alongside the slimline vertical dormers proposed at roof level also assist in providing natural
surveillance and create visual interest to the scheme. Roof profiles are varied in the area
including include flat roofs, single pitch, double pitch, hipped and mansard roofs. To reflect same,
the design has carried forward a mix of these roof profiles to be a positive reflection of those currently
seen in the streetscape. The design also includes deep recesses in the window reveals at each floor
level, to aid articulation and break up the bulk of the proposal.

The height, scale and massing of the proposal is considered to be acceptable. It is
considered the design will enhance the character and appearance of the wider area and will
contribute to the regeneration of the lower Woodstock Road area.

Materials

The proposal includes a varied materials palette which is reflective of other developments
within the immediate locality. The proposal includes a mix of red brick walls, grey roof tiles,
UPVC rainwater gutters in grey and standing seam surrounds to dormer windows. The
apartment element of the proposal also includes an aluminium standing seam roof at 3.5
storey level which adds interest and provides modern design aesthetic to the overall
development. A Condition is recommended that final samples of materials to be used are
agreed in advance of commencement.

Density
Densities in the wider area range from 70-200 dwellings per hectare. The proposed

residential density equates to approximately 110 dwelling units per hectare (dph). The
proposed density is in keeping with the character of the wider area and is considered
acceptable.

Amenity Space Provision

The subject site is brownfield and located in a high-density inner-city area. Policy QD 1 of
PPS 7; complemented by Creating Places, and DCAN 8 Guidance places great importance
on respecting the surrounding context in terms of layout, scale, proportions, and landscaped
areas. Taking this into account, the typical form, and characteristics of residential properties
within the site’s wider locality comprise of terraced properties with modest rear yards and
the layout and garden areas of the proposed townhouses have gone some way to try and
mimic this arrangement respecting the surrounding context. In carrying forward these
arrangements, the townhouses benefit from an overall rear amenity provision of 606.2sqm,
averaging at 40.41sgm per unit. As some rear garden spaces are smaller than others,
ranging between 18.7 and 45.9sgm a condition has been recommended removing permitted
development rights for extensions and outbuildings in order to protect the amenity of future
occupants.

The proposed apartments will benefit from access to a private communal courtyard,
supplemented by private balconies. The communal courtyard area for the apartments
extends to 171 sgm, equating to an average of 10.6 sqgm per apartment. Regarding the
consideration of the proposal against Policy OS 2 of PPS 8, the policy states that an
exception to the requirement of providing public open space will be permitted in the case of
apartment developments or specialised housing where a reasonable level of private
communal open space is being provided. An exception will also be considered in cases
where residential development is designed to integrate with and make use of adjoining
public open space. In response to the above, the proposal is for social housing providing a
reasonable level of private communal space. The site is also located in close proximity to
the City Centre; therefore, residents will be able to avail of a range of recreational
areas/outlets across the City.

All the units, houses and apartments, avail of an element of private amenity in addition to
the private rear communal courtyard for the apartments. The use of low level walls,

2696 (9




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

8.19

8.20

8.21

8.22

8.23

8.24

8.25

decorative gates and railings to enclose front gardens behind, along the front street
elevations assists in offering a degree of privacy and defensible space to the houses and
ground apartments articulating boundaries and maintaining a clear definition between
the public and private realm.

Space standards

The proposed development includes a mix of 16No. apartments and 15No. townhouses.
The units range from 40sgm to 110 sgm. Policy LC 1 of PPS 7 Addendum does not apply
as the proposal is located along an arterial route, however the proposed units comply with
the space standards in any case.

Landscaping
The proposal has also been supported by a detailed boundary treatments plan, and

landscape arrangement. The plans illustrate the various types of boundary treatments, and
proposed planting between properties within the development, alongside identifying the
open space areas within the proposal. Landscaping Conditions are recommended with
respect to implementation and maintenance.

Waste Management

The existing alleyway to the rear of the proposed townhouses is a right of way to which all
future residents can avail to bring their bins to to the roadside for collection. The apartments
will have access to a shared bin store area which will be enclosed by a brick wall and 1.8m
high cladding and secured by a lockable gate. A bin store collection point has also been
appropriately located adjacent to Pottinger Street. A Service Management Plan has been
provided in support of the application. The arrangement is considered to be acceptable.

Overall, the proposed development would not cause unacceptable harm to the local
character, appearance and environmental quality of the area of the area in accordance with
Policy QD1 of PPS7, Policy LC1 of PPS7 Addendum, Creating Places and the SPPS. With
regards to amenity provision the proposal is also considered to meet the criteria set out
under Policy OS2 of PPS 8 and satisfies criterion (c) of Policy QD 1 of PPS 7.

Impact on Residential amenity

Creating Places provides guidance that a separation distance of around 20m or greater
between the opposing rear first floor windows of new houses is generally acceptable on
green-field sites and in low-density developments and of around 10m between the rear of
new houses and the common boundary. Consideration however may be given to a smaller
separation distance in order to meet the overall quality objectives set out in the design
concept for the development, or in cases where it is important to reflect traditional building
forms in the locality. Where smaller separation distances are employed, the design should
include mitigating measures to help promote privacy.

Amendments to the design were sought by officers to overcome concerns relating to the
impact on neighbouring and prospective tenants. The revised plans show a layout where
there will be no significant overlooking into neighbouring properties. In addition, there is
sufficient separation distances to existing neighbouring properties to ensure that dominance
and overshadowing will not occur to an unacceptable degree. Neighbours had raised
concerns with respect to amenity issues and have been given notification of the amended
plans.

There will be no opportunity for overlooking into neighbouring properties from the houses
proposed due to the separation distances and existing boundary treatments. The roofspace
accommodation within the houses is served solely by a front dormer on 9 of the houses; the
remaining 6 houses have a rear dormer to the roofspace however the design is narrow and

Page.80:




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

8.26

8.27

8.28

8.29

8.30

8.31

8.32

8.33

linear in form with the main bedroom floorplate set significantly back. A 1.8m high fence is
proposed at all common rear boundaries preventing any overlooking at ground floor level.
Regarding existing residents, where there is a back to-back arrangement proposed between
the townhouses and existing properties at Nos. 1-21 Pottinger Street, separation distances
between the main rear dwelling walls range from 18.5 to 20 sgm in general accordance with
guidance set out within Creating Places Guidance. The distance between the proposed
main rear elevations and common boundary range from 8.4 to 15m.

The introduction of rear splayed oriel windows on the apartment block has been proposed
to overcome overlooking concerns from the upper windows. Main bedroom windows at Apt
Nos. 1; 4; 5; 8; 9; 13; and 16 have been splayed to avoid any overlooking of existing
neighbouring properties on Pottinger Street. Whilst the proposed splayed windows on each
floor face one another, it is the most appropriate solution as each window only permits a
view of the opposite splay and not the main living space of the bedroom, reducing any
negative internal overlooking impact.

As detailed above each of the units benefits from defensible space in the form of front
gardens to the public realm. There is a common courtyard to the rear of the apartment block
and a further design feature to reduce any negative amenity impact on prospective residents
sees the addition of an area of defensible space to the rear of ground floor Apartment Nos.
1 and 4. This consists of an area of hedging.

The application has also been supported by a Noise Assessment, to demonstrate how any
noise impacts arising from the proposal have been successfully mitigated. There are no
concerns regarding the relationship between the proposal and the two households where
the objections originated from (Nos 6 and 15 Pottinger Street) due to the separation
distances.

In terms of prospective residents, each unit has adequate outlook to the public street or
amenity areas. It is considered that the separation distances proposed are acceptable and
will not unacceptably impinge on residential amenity via overlooking, dominance, loss of
light or overshadowing.

Given the sites inner urban context, and the development pattern in the immediate area it is
considered that the distances are acceptable and the proposal would not result in an
unacceptable loss of privacy or undue level of overlooking to existing and proposed
occupiers. Overall, the proposed development would not cause unacceptable amenity
impacts to existing or proposed residents and is in accordance with Policy QD1 of PPS7,
Policy LC1 of PPS7 Addendum, Creating Places and the SPPS

Impact on Historic Buildings and Monuments

A number of Listed Buildings protected by Section 80 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 are
located within the wider vicinity of the application site including Nettlefield Primary School
(Ref: HB26/06/011), Mountpottinger Presbyterian Church and Hall (HB26/06/004) and
Willowfield Parish Church of Ireland (HB26/04/003).

Section 91 requires that in considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting a council must have special regard
to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which it possesses.

HED acknowledge that the above referenced listed buildings are separated from the

application site by existing street patterns and established urban development or road
curvature and established urban development grain. Therefore, Historic Buildings consider
that this application will not significantly affect the understanding or experience of the listed

rager 81




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

8.34

8.35

8.36

8.37

8.38

8.39

8.40

8.41

8.42

buildings to harm their essential character. HED considers the listed buildings are sufficiently
removed in situation within the existing established developed environment to remain
unaffected by this application.

The proposals are in accordance with the requirements of the Strategic Planning Policy
Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) para(s) 6.12 of Planning Policy Statement 6:
Planning, Archaeology and the Built Heritage (PPS6) Policy BH11 (Development affecting
the Setting of a Listed Building).

HED (Historic Monuments) has assessed the application and on the basis of the information
provided is content that the proposal is satisfactory to SPPS and PPS 6 archaeological
policy requirements.

Access and Parking

The site is located in close proximity to the City Centre; therefore, residents will be able to
avail of a range of recreational areas/outlets across the city. The proximity to these areas
within the city is supported by various infrastructure, and sustainable modes of transport
such as public transport corridors and cycle lanes.

To encourage future residents to avail of sustainable transport methods, the applicant has
offered the following benefits through the development, which will be secured via a Section
76 Planning Agreement. These include the provision of 1no. Travel Card per residential unit
for a period of 3no. years; provision of Belfast Bike membership per residential unit for a
period of 3no. years; and provision of Car Club membership per residential unit for a period
of 3no. years.

The car parking arrangement has 6No. spaces located within the lay by on Woodstock
Road, two of which are accessible for persons with a disability, and 5No. within a lay by on
Beersbridge Road. 22 no. covered cycle parking spaces are to be provided within the private
courtyard to the rear of the apartment block.

DFI Roads have offered no objections to the proposal. It is considered the proposals comply
with the policy provision of the SPPS, PPS7 and PPS3.

Drainage and Flood Risk / Infrastructure Capacity

Rivers Agency provided comments on the proposal. They highlighted that FLD 3
Development and Surface Water is applicable. A Drainage Assessment has been submitted
with this application. Dfl Rivers offered no objection to the proposal and have recommended
a condition to agree final drainage design. The proposal is therefore compliant with PPS 15.

NI Water in their most recent consultation response advise that there is available capacity
in the Waste Water Treatment Works, there is a public foul sewer located within 20m of the
proposed development boundary which can serve the development and there is no public
surface water sewer within 20m of the proposed development boundary however access is
available via extension of the existing public surface water network. NIW have advised that
the Developer has worked with them in implementing the Solution engineering report
requirements, Engineering report DS37870, a solution has been agreed between the
developer and NI Water, an A154 Requisition will be completed to offset storm from the
combined sewer. The condition from NI Water being there is to be no connection to the
WWTW until July 2023. Whilst the consultation response recommends refusal NIW have
confirmed to Officers that they are content for a negative condition to be recommended as
part of any approval.

Environmental Health

Page.82:




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

8.43

EHO provided comment in relation to the proposed development in terms of noise, air
pollution, ambient air quality, contaminated land and other considerations. EHO have
offered no objections in terms of impact on human health. Conditions relating to noise, air
guality, construction management and contamination have been suggested.

DAERA Water Management Unit and Regulation Unit have also considered Contamination
Assessments submitted and are content that no unacceptable risks have been identified on
environmental receptors. Conditions are recommended.

10.0

Summary of Recommendation:

10.1

Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the proposal
is considered acceptable and planning permission is recommended subject to subject to no
new substantive planning issues being raised by third parties. It is requested that delegated
authority is given to the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the planning
conditions and Section 76 Agreement.

11.0

Conditions

1: The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from
the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.

2: No dwelling shall be occupied until related hard surfaced areas (lay-by provision) have
been constructed in accordance with the approved Drawing No. IBH 0755/1000 Rev C as
published to the Planning Portal on 31/05/2022 to provide adequate facilities for parking.
These spaces shall be permanently retained.

Reason: To ensure adequate parking in the interests of road safety and the convenience of
road users.

3: The Private Streets (Northern Ireland) Order 1980 as amended by the Private Streets
(Amendment) (Northern Ireland) Order 1992.

The Department hereby determines that the width, position and arrangement of the streets,
and the land to be regarded as being comprised in the streets, shall be as indicated on
Drawing No:IBH 0755/1000 Rev C bearing the Department for Infrastructure Determination
date stamp 20/6/22.

Reason: To ensure there is a safe and convenient road system to comply with the provisions
of the Private Streets (Northern Ireland) Order 1980.

4: The Private Streets (Northern Ireland) Order 1980 as amended by the Private Streets
(Amendment) (Northern Ireland) Order 1992.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the works necessary
for the improvement of a public road have been completed in accordance with the details
outlined blue on Drawing No:IBH 0755/1000 Rev C bearing the date stamp 20/6/22. The
Department hereby attaches to the determination a requirement under Article 3(4A) of the
above Order that such works shall be carried out in accordance with an agreement under
Article 3 (4C).

Reason: To ensure that the road works considered necessary to provide a proper, safe and
convenient means of access to the development are carried out.

PR g6 83




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

5: All redundant accesses from the site to the public road shall be permanently closed off
and the footpath reinstated to the satisfaction of Department for Infrastructure.

Reason: In order to minimise the number of access points on to the public road in the
interests of road safety and the convenience of road users.

6: The development shall operate in accordance with the Travel Plan Version FO2 as
published to the Planning Portal on 15/04/2022.

Reason: To encourage alternative modes of transport to the private car.

7: No apartment shall be occupied until weather protected cycle parking has been fully
provided in accordance with Approved Site Plan Drawing 100-03 as published to the
planning portal on 13/09/2022.

Reason: To ensure acceptable cycle parking facilities on the site and to encourage
alternative modes of transport to the private car.

8: All fuel storage tanks (and associated infra-structure) must be fully decommissioned and
removed in line with current Guidance for Pollution prevention (GPP 2) and the Pollution
Prevention Guidance (PPG27) and the quality of surrounding soils and groundwater verified.
Should contamination be identified during this process, Conditions 2 and 3 will apply.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

9. If during the development works, new contamination or risks are encountered which have
not previously been identified, works should cease and the Planning Authority shall be
notified immediately. This new contamination shall be fully investigated in accordance with
the Land Contamination: Risk Management (LCRM) guidance available at
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/landcontamination-how-to-manage-the-risks. In the event of
unacceptable risks being identified, a remediation strategy shall be agreed with the Planning
Authority in writing, and subsequently implemented and verified to its satisfaction.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

10. After completing the remediation works under Condition 10, and prior to occupation of
the development, a verification report needs to be submitted in writing and agreed with
Planning Authority. This report should be completed by competent persons in accordance
with the Land Contamination: Risk Management (LCRM) guidance available at
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks. The verification
report should present all the remediation, waste management and monitoring works
undertaken and demonstrate the effectiveness of the works in managing all the risks and
wastes in achieving the remedial objectives.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

11. In the event that piling is required, no development or piling work should commence on
this site until a piling risk assessment, undertaken in full accordance with the methodology
contained within the Environment Agency document on “Piling and Penetrative Ground
Improvement Methods on Land Affected by Contamination: Guidance on Pollution
Prevention”, has been submitted in writing and agreed with the Planning Authority. The
methodology is available at:

Page.84:




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140329082415/http://cdn.environm ent-
agency.gov.uk/scho0501bitt-e-e.pdf.

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.

12: Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, the applicant shall submit
a Drainage Assessment, compliant with FLD 3 & Annex D of PPS 15, to be agreed with the
Council which demonstrates the safe management of any out of sewer flooding emanating
from the surface water drainage network, agreed under Article 161, in a 1 in 100 year event.

Reason: In order to safeguard against surface water flood risk to the development and
manage and mitigate any increase in surface water flood risk from the development to
elsewhere.

13: Prior to the occupation of the proposed development, a Verification Report shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. This report must demonstrate that the
remediation measures outlined in the RSK Ireland Ltd report entitled ‘Prometheus no 1 Ltd,
Remediation Strategy, Lands at Woodstock Road, Belfast, 603512—R2 (01), June 2022’
have been implemented. The Verification Report shall demonstrate the successful
completion of remediation works and that the site is now fit for end-use (residential with
homegrown produce). It must demonstrate that the identified human health contaminant
linkages are effectively broken. The Verification Report shall be in accordance with
Environment Agency guidance, British Standards and CIRIA industry guidance. In
particular, this Verification Report must demonstrate that:

a) A minimum 800mm capping layer has been emplaced in all garden areas formed from
material that is demonstrably suitable for use (residential with homegrown produce).

b) A minimum 500mm capping layer has been emplaced in all landscaped areas formed
from material that is demonstrably suitable for use (residential with homegrown produce).
¢) Vapour protection measures have been installed in the properties shown in Figure 4 of
the Remediation Strategy report incorporating:

- A vapour resistant membrane which meets the requirements of CIRIA C748.

- A passive sub floor dispersal layer consisting of a 150mm open void space.

Vapour protection measures shall be in installed and verified in accordance with the
requirements of CIRIA C735 and C748.

Reason: To demonstrate that the required remediation measures have been incorporated
into the development, in the interests of human health.

14: If during the carrying out of the development, new contamination is encountered that
has not previously been identified, all related works shall cease immediately, and the
Council shall be notified immediately in writing. This new contamination shall be fully
investigated in accordance with current industry recognised best practice. In the event of
unacceptable human health risks being identified, a Remediation Strategy and subsequent
Verification Report shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Council, prior to the
development being occupied or operated. The Verification Report shall be completed by
competent persons in accordance with best practice and must demonstrate that the
remediation measures have been implemented and that the site is now fit for end-use.

Reason: To ensure that any contamination within the site is appropriately dealt with, in the
interests of human health.

PRA06 85




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

15: Prior to installation, the applicant shall submit to the planning authority, for review and
approval in writing, the final window schedule detailing the sound reduction performance of
the proposed windows to habitable rooms on all facades of the hereby permitted
development. The window specifications shall be as detailed in Figure G ‘Identification of
Window and Ventilation System Sound Reduction Requirements, and 1.5 metre High
Acoustic Barriers’ and section 4.3 of the Lester Acoustics Inward Sound Level Impact
Assessment (dated 27th January 2022, referenced MRL/1517/L01 Rev 2).

Reason: Protection of residential amenity

16: Prior to installation, the applicant shall submit to the planning authority, for review and
approval in writing, confirmation of the specification of alternative means of ventilation as
recommended in section 4.3 of the Lester Acoustics Inward Sound Level Impact
Assessment (dated 27th January 2022, referenced MRL/1517/L0O1 Rev 2). The sound
reduction specification (dBD,n,e +Ctr) for the alternative means of ventilation shall be the
same as or greater than the sound reduction specification for the windows of each facade
to ensure suitable internal noise levels of habitable rooms outlined in British Standard
BS8233:2014 are achieved with the windows shut and the alternative means of ventilation
operating.

Reason: Protection of residential amenity

17: Prior to occupation of the hereby permitted development, the approved final window
schedule and approved alternative means of ventilation shall be installed so as to achieve
suitable internal noise levels in all habitable rooms in accordance with BS8233:2014, with
the windows closed and the alternative ventilation provided.

Reason: Protection of residential amenity

18: Prior to occupation of the hereby permitted development, the developer shall verify that
the window schedule and alternative means of ventilation as approved have been installed
by way of a written declaration from the supplier and installation contractor confirming such
installation.

Reason: Protection of residential amenity

19: Prior to occupation, the roof construction to the hereby permitted development, where
window/ventilation requirements are 35dB RTra (or Rw + Ctr) or greater, shall incorporate
an additional two layers of 15mm thick dense plasterboard with at least 75mm thickness of
acoustically absorbent material within a minimum 100mm void between the plasterboard
and roof structure, as per section 4.3.9 of the Lester Acoustics Inward Sound Level Impact
Assessment (dated 27th January 2022, referenced MRL/1517/L01 Rev 2).

Reason: Protection of residential amenity

20: Prior to occupation of the hereby permitted development, the amenity areas to the West
and North end gardens shall incorporate a 1.5m high acoustic barrier with no gaps, and a
minimum surface weight of 10kg/m2 as detailed in section 4.4.6 and Figure |, and as per
locations identified on Figure G of the Lester Acoustics Inward Sound Level Impact
Assessment (dated 27th January 2022, referenced MRL/1517/L01 Rev 2).

Reason: Protection of residential amenity

Pages86:




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

21: No passive or trickle vents are to be incorporated into the window system/s of the hereby
permitted development.

Reason: Protection of residential amenity

22: Prior to operation, the installed gas fired boilers for the proposed development shall meet
the technical specification as detailed within the Air Quality Technical Note (Chapter 4.2 and
Appendix A, Air Quality Technical Note, RPS, January 2022).

Reason: Protection of human health

23: Prior to commencement of development on site, including demolition, site clearance or
site preparation, a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be
produced by the appointed contractor. The CEMP shall include measures to control noise,
dust and vibration during the demolition /construction phase, demonstrating the use of ‘best
practicable means’. The CEMP shall include rationale for and details of the chosen piling
methodology and demonstrate that noise and vibration levels will not have an adverse
impact on nearby premises. The CEMP must incorporate the dust mitigation measures as
detailed within Chapter 5 of the RPS report entitled ‘Air Quality Technical Note, Proposed
Residential Development, Woodstock Road, Belfast’, referenced NI 2490, dated January
2022.

The CEMP must also have due regard to Parts 1 and 2 of BS 5228:2009+A1:2014 Code of
practice for noise and vibration control on construction and open sites, Noise and Vibration
and to the IAQM, ‘Guidance on the assessment of dust from demolition and construction
version 1.1°, and dated February 2014. The CEMP and associated records must be made
available to the Environmental Protection Unit of Belfast City Council at any

time upon request.

Reason: Protection of surrounding amenity

24. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the units hereby granted
have obtained NI Water consent to connect to the foul and storm water system.

Reason: In the interests of the environment.

25: No external brick facing shall be constructed or applied unless in accordance with details
and a sample panel, which shall have first been constructed on site and approved in writing
by the City Council.

The sample panel shall show the make, type, size, colour, bond, pointing, coursing, jointing,
profile and texture of the external brick facing materials.

The approved sample panel shall be retained on site and made available for inspection by
the City Council for the duration of the construction works.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area.

26: Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3, Part 1, Classes A ,B, C and D of The Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order Northern Ireland 2015 (or any orders amending or
re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no extension, enlargement or other
alteration of the dwelling house or the provision of any other building within its curtilage other

PRA0e 87




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

than that expressly authorised by this permission shall be carried out without planning
permission being first obtained from the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: The Local Planning Authority considers that further development could cause
detriment to the amenities of nearby properties and future occupants and the character of
the area and for this reason would wish to control any future development.

27: All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
as shown on the approved Site plan as published to the Planning Portal on 13/09/2022. The
works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the development unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the City Council and maintained thereafter. Any retained or
newly planted trees, shrubs or hedges which die, become seriously damaged or diseased
or are removed or destroyed within a period of 5 years from the date of planting shall be
replaced during the next planting season with specimens of the same size and species
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the City Council.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and biodiversity and to preserve and enhance the
character and appearance of the area.

28: No development shall commence on site until a landscape management plan, including
long-term design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for
all landscape areas has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The landscape management plan shall be carried out as approved in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the proper management of the landscaped areas in the interests of
visual amenity.

29. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, the bin store facilities shall
be provided in accordance with the approved plans and shall be made available and
thereafter be retained for use at all times.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure the provision of satisfactory facilities for
the storage and recycling of refuse in the interests of the amenities of the area.

Pages83:




Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

ANNEX
Date Valid 28th January 2022
Date First Advertised 18th February 2022

Date Last Advertised

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)
The Owner/Occupier,

1 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ
The Owner/Occupier,

11 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ
The Owner/Occupier,

13 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ
The Owner/Occupier,

15 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ
Pippa Cooke and Chris Moore

15, Pottinger Street, Belfast, Down, Northern Ireland, BT5 4LZ
The Owner/Occupier,

17 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ
The Owner/Occupier,

172 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,

The Owner/Occupier,

174 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AF
The Owner/Occupier,

175 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AD
The Owner/Occupier,

176 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AF
The Owner/Occupier,

176 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AF
The Owner/Occupier,

176 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AG
The Owner/Occupier,

177 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AD
The Owner/Occupier,

179 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AD
The Owner/Occupier,

181 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AD
The Owner/Occupier,

183 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AD
The Owner/Occupier,

185 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AD
The Owner/Occupier,

187 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AD

PRA 6 89



Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

The Owner/Occupier,

189 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AD
The Owner/Occupier,

19 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ
The Owner/Occupier,

191 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AD
The Owner/Occupier,

192 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AG
The Owner/Occupier,

197 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AD
The Owner/Occupier,

199 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AD
The Owner/Occupier,

2 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ
The Owner/Occupier,

2-20 ,Beersbridge Road,Belfast,Down,BT5 4BF
The Owner/Occupier,

203 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 8AD
The Owner/Occupier,

21 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ
The Owner/Occupier,

216 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,BT6 9DL
The Owner/Occupier,

26 Upper Frank Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4NR
The Owner/Occupier,

3 Beersbridge Road,Belfast,Down,BT5 4RP
The Owner/Occupier,

3 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ
The Owner/Occupier,

4 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ
The Owner/Occupier,

40 Beersbridge Road,Belfast,Down,BT5 4RU
The Owner/Occupier,

42 Castlereagh Place,Belfast,Down,BT5 4NN
The Owner/Occupier,

5 Beersbridge Road,Belfast,Down,BT5 4RP
The Owner/Occupier,

5 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ
The Owner/Occupier,

53 Castlereagh Place,Belfast,Down,BT5 4NN
The Owner/Occupier,

55 Castlereagh Place,Belfast,Down,BT5 4NN
The Owner/Occupier,

57 Castlereagh Place,Belfast,Down,

The Owner/Occupier,

6 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ
Mary Cooke

6, Pottinger Street, Belfast, Down, Northern Ireland, BT5 4LZ
The Owner/Occupier,

7 Beersbridge Road,Belfast,Down,BT5 4RP

Page.99,



Application ID: LA04/2022/0209/F

The Owner/Occupier,

7 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ

The Owner/Occupier,

9 Pottinger Street,Belfast,Down,BT5 4LZ

The Owner/Occupier,

Apartment 1,174 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,

The Owner/Occupier,

Apartment 1,42 Castlereagh Place,Belfast,Down,BT5 4NN
The Owner/Occupier,

Apartment 2,174 Woodstock Road,Belfast,Down,

The Owner/Occupier,

Apartment 2,42 Castlereagh Place,Belfast,Down,BT5 4NN

Date of Last Neighbour Notification September 2022

Date of EIA Determination

ES Requested No

Drawing Numbers and Title

01 Site Location Plan - published to the Planning Portal on 07/02/2022

05 Proposed Boundary Treatments - published to the Planning Portal on 07/02/2022

Proposed Bin Store Elevations(Dwg.No 100-06)- published to the Planning Portal on 16/05/2022
Proposed PSD Layout Rev C Al - published to the Planning Portal on 31/05/2022
1843-01-100-03I Proposed Site Plan-published to the Planning Portal on 13/09/2022
1843-01-300-01C Proposed Elevations Sheet 01-published to the Planning Portal on 13/09/2022
1843-01-300-02F Proposed Elevations Sheet 02-published to the Planning Portal on 13/09/2022
1843-01-200-00G Proposed Ground Floor Plan -published to the Planning Portal on 13/09/2022
1843-01-200-02D Proposed Second Floor Plan -published to the Planning Portal on 13/09/2022
1843-01-200-01D Proposed First Floor Plan -published to the Planning Portal on 13/09/2022
1843-01-200-03D Proposed Third Floor Plan -published to the Planning Portal on 13/09/2022

Notification to Department (if relevant)
Date of Notification to Department:
Response of Department:

rRager 9l



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6e

Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary

Committee Meeting Date: 20 September 2022

Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

Proposal:

Residential housing development comprising
(13 dwellings in total) 6no. detached & 6no.
semi-detached 2 storey dwellings and 1no.
detached 2.5 storey dwelling for social housing,
including amenity space, landscaping and all
other site and access works.

Location:
Lands approx. 60m NW of 29 Hazel View
Dunmurry, Belfast.

Referral Route:

More than 12 units with objection (as per 3.8.2 (i) of the Delegated Scheme)

Recommendation: Approve subject to conditions.

Applicant Name and Address:
Toland House Properties Ltd
21-23 Chapel Hill

Lisburn

BT28 1EP

Agent Name and Address:
MDF Architecture

1 Tinamara

Upper Station Road
Greenisland

BT38 8FE

Executive Summary:

This application seeks full planning permission for a residential housing development comprising
(13 dwellings in total) 6no. detached & 6no. semi-detached 2 storey dwellings and 1no. detached
2.5 storey dwelling for social housing, including amenity space, landscaping and all other site and

access works.

The main issues to be considered in this case are:

Impact on amenity

Access, Movement and parking
Infrastructure capacity

Other Environmental Considerations

The application site is on land zoned for housing within the BUAP, draft BMAP 2004 and dBMAP
2015. The proposed residential use is therefore in accordance with the purpose for which the land
is zoned. The surrounding area is predominantly residential in character; the wider housing zoning
is adjacent to lands zoned as Local Landscape Policy Area, Area of High Scenic Value and a Site

of Local Nature Conservation Importance.

The proposal is for social housing, NI Housing Executive have stated their support for the proposal
advising in their response that the “demand for social housing in the West Belfast area continues
to be high and our projection of social housing need indicates a requirement for 2,148 new units of
social housing across the Council area over the 5 year period 2021-2026”. They advise that on the
basis of the Housing Need Assessment, they would welcome this scheme as an opportunity to help

The principle of the proposal at this location
Design, layout and impact on the character and appearance of the area

Page 93



Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

address unmet social housing need in the Outer West Belfast catchment area. It is therefore
considered that the proposals will bring forward benefits of much needed new housing stock.

The proposed development will not adversely impact the character and appearance of the
surrounding area. It is sympathetic in its built form, scale, massing and appearance with the
surrounding area and neighbouring properties. It is considered that the proposal will not raise any
unacceptable issues in relation to residential amenity including overshadowing, loss of light and
overlooking.

Consultations:
Rivers Agency, NI Water, Dfl Roads Service, Shared Environmental Service, DAERA and BCC
Environmental Health offer no objections to the proposal.

Representations:
One letter of objection has been received with concerns regarding additional traffic leading to more
congestion in the locality.

Having regard to the policy context and all material considerations, the proposal is considered to
be acceptable and planning permission is recommended for approval.

Recommendation - Approval subject to conditions

Itis requested that the committee delegate authority to the Director of Planning and Building Control
to finalise the wording of conditions.

Page 34



Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

Case Officer Report

Site Location Plan

RRAGE 95




Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

Characteristics of the Site and Area

1.0

11

1.2

1.3

14

15

Description of Proposed Development

Residential housing development comprising (13 dwellings in total) 6no. detached & 6no.
semi-detached 2 storey dwellings and 1no. detached 2.5 storey dwelling for social
housing, including amenity space, landscaping and all other site and access works.

The dwellings are to be arranged in a conventional linear form replicating the street
pattern of the wider area and fronting on to the public road. The development consists of
three pairs of semi-detached two storeys dwellings and seven detached dwellings, six
being two storeys and one being two and a half storeys.

The proposed units will all benefit from the provision of private rear amenity space and
defensible space to the front of the dwellings. Car parking is provided in the form of two
in-curtilage spaces for each dwelling.

The dwellings are proposed to be constructed in a mixture of a rendered and/or red/brown
brick finish with detailing to windows.

The development will consist of 4no. two bedrooms semi-detached, 2no. three bedrooms
semi-detached, 2no. two bedrooms detached, 3no. three bedrooms detached, 1no. three
bedrooms detached (wheelchair friendly) and 1no. four bedrooms detached.

2.0

2.1

Description of Site

The site is currently an area of scrub land adjacent to the abandoned Lagmore Road and
the existing housing developments of Whites Rise and Hazel View. The general

Page 36




Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

surrounding character is one of residential housing developments adjacent to former
agricultural land.

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations

3.0

Site History

S/1996/0601/0 Residential development Permission Granted 23 December 1999
S/2005/1667/F Application under article 28 to carryout housing development at
Mount Eagles Lagmore with variation of conditions 4 & 6 attached to previous
outline permission (Ref: S/1996/0601/0) Permission Granted 11 August 2006
S/2006/1180/RM Phase 3 & 4 of the ongoing housing development at Mount
Eagles for 293 dwellings for domestic use in accordance with outline
S/2007/1348/RM Phase 1A of the ongoing housing development at Mount Eagles
for 59 Residential Units for domestic use in accordance with original outline

4.0

Policy Framework

4.1

Belfast Urban Area Plan

4.2

Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2004

4.3

Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015

Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant development plan is
now the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had reached pre-
adoption through a period of independent examination, the policies within the Draft BMAP
still carry weight and are a material consideration in the determination of planning
applications. The weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker.

The Belfast Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strategy 2035 will guide future planning
application decision making to support the sustainable spatial growth of the city up to
2035. The draft Plan Strategy has been subject to examination by the Planning Appeals
Commission and the Council has been provided with a copy of their Report, together with
a Direction from the Department for Infrastructure in relation to additional required steps
before it can be adopted. Paragraph 1.10 of the Strategic Planning Policy Statement
(SPPS) states that a transitional period will operate until such times as a Council’s Plan
Strategy has been adopted. Accordingly, whilst the Draft Plan Strategy is now a material
consideration it has limited weight until it is adopted and during this transitional period
existing policies will be applied including the SPPS and relevant PPSs.

4.4

Regional Development Strategy (RDS) 2035

4.5

Strategic Planning Policy Statement 2015 (SPPS)

4.6

Planning Policy Statement 2 — Natural Heritage

Planning Policy Statement 3 — Parking, Movement and Access.

Planning Policy Statement 7 — Quality Residential Environments

Planning Policy Statement 7 (Addendum): Safeguarding the Character of Established
Residential Areas

Planning Policy Statement 15 — Planning and Flood Risk

5.0

Statutory Consultees Responses

5.1

DFI Roads — no objection with conditions

g6 37




Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

5.2 Northern Ireland Water (NIW) — no objection

5.3 DFI Rivers — No objection

5.4 NI Housing Executive- Supportive of the proposal.

5.5 Shared Environmental Services — No objection

5.6 DAERA — No Objection

6.0 Non Statutory Consultees Responses

6.1 BCC Environmental Health — no objection

7.0 Representations

7.1 The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press. One
objection has been received regarding the proposal. Concerns relate to additional traffic
and congestion.

8.0 Other Material Considerations

8.1 Creating Places

8.2 Parking Standards

9.0 Assessment

9.1 The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include:

e The principle of the proposal at this location
o Design, layout and impact on the character and appearance of the area
e Impact on amenity
e Access, Movement and Parking
e Infrastructure capacity
e Other Environmental Considerations
Principle of development

9.2 The application site is within the settlement development limits and on land zoned for
housing within the BUAP and dBMAP. The SPPS advises that planning permission ought
to be granted for sustainable development that accords with the area plan and causes no
harm to areas of acknowledged importance.

9.3 The site is contained within a larger housing zone now partially developed. The wider
residential development is part of the Lagmore Masterplan for which outline approval was
granted approval subject to an Article 40 Agreement in December 1999. The outline
Conceptual Masterplan included housing on the site which is subject to this standalone
application therefore the development proposed remains in general accordance with the
approved masterplan.

9.4 The proposal is for social housing consisting of a mix of house types within an area of
social housing. NI Housing Executive have expressed their support for the proposal.

9.5 The proposal is for residential development on lands zoned for housing; the proposed
development is therefore acceptable in principle.

9.6 Design, Impact on character and appearance of the area

Page 38




Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

The proposed scheme comprises 13 dwellings arranged in a conventional linear form
replicating the existing pattern of development in the wider area. The proposal consists of
a mix of house types that includes 2 and 3 bedrooms semi-detached, 2 and 3 bedrooms
detached, and a single 4 bedroom detached. All dwellings except for the 4 bedroom unit
will be two storey the exception being two and a half storeys.

The proposed separation distances, window placement and use of obscured glazing
assist in mitigating against any potential adverse impact on the neighbouring residential
amenity.

The palette of materials and finishes proposed for the treatment of the elevations reflect
those found in the surrounding residential area with the proposed dwellings finished in a
rendered finished with some dwellings having additional red brick detailing around the
windows, the roofs are to be covered with common roof tiles. The proposed development
will be enhanced by quality hard and soft landscaping around the buildings.

Streetscape Elevations Proposed

Ornate hedging on corner site locations, to the front garden areas and additional structural
planting assists in further softening the elevational & visual impact of the proposed
dwellings and hardstanding.

The density of development reflects the existing density in the surrounding context. The
proposal represents 16 dwellings/hectare which is similar to adjacent developments of 25
dwellings/hectare. The scale, form and massing of the proposed development is also in
keeping with the overall character of the area immediately surrounding the application
site. The design, building line, ridge heights, fenestration and solid to void proportions are
typical of the surrounding area.

Overall, the proposed development would not cause unacceptable harm to the local
character, appearance and environmental quality of the area of the area in accordance
with Policy QD1 of PPS7, Policy LC1 of PPS7 Addendum, Creating Places and the SPPS.

Impact on Amenity

Consideration has been given to the surrounding context regarding the design and layout
of the development. The internal layout and window locations minimises the potential
impact on neighbouring land uses in terms of overlooking.

The layout of the dwellings results in no significant overlooking into existing neighbouring
properties. In addition, there is sufficient separation distances to the existing housing
developments to ensure that dominance and overshadowing will not occur. There will be
no opportunity to dominate or overshadow the existing neighbouring properties due to the
separation distances which are circa 45m to the north and 36m to the south. Only one
proposed dwelling (House Type E1 Plot 105) will have a close relationship with the

=96 29




Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.17

9.18

9.19

9.20

9.21

9.22

9.23

9.24

existing dwellings (no. 29 Hazel View) and their private amenity, this property will project
a gable with a first-floor landing window, a non-habitable room.

A planted buffer to the rear of plots 32 and 33 will prevent overlooking into the rear garden
on plot 30. The corner plots on to Lagmore will benefit from 1.8m high feature walls to
match the existing dwellings enclosing their private rear gardens.

There will be a limited level of overlooking within the layout design of the development,
this is always unavoidable in a relatively tight grain housing development and is quite
common within residential environments.

The proposed dwellings will have adequate provision of private rear amenity space and a
small level of defensible space to the front of the dwellings. The rear gardens range from
75sq m to 109sgm all above the recommended 70sq m set out in the Creating Places
guidance document. The rear amenity spaces are proposed to be enclosed by 1.8m high
close boarded timber fencing or wall, providing privacy between neighbours.

In terms of outlook each unit has an adequate outlook to the proposed roadways and
external amenity areas. It is considered that the design, layout and separation distances
proposed are acceptable and will not impinge on residential amenity via overlooking,
dominance, loss of light or overshadowing.

All the dwellings benefit from adequate internal amenity space and satisfy the space
standards as set out in Annex A of the Addendum to PPS 7.

The site is in close proximity (within 75m) of the existing multi-use games area, children’s
play park and grassed open space located at Hazel View/Lagmore View to the east. It will
also benefit from open space provision as part of the wider Lagmore development.

Residential use is not normally associated with the generation of significant noise or
odour. Similarly, the existing land uses in the immediate context of the application site are
not considered to be significant noise or odour generating uses.

Overall, the proposed development would not cause unacceptable amenity impacts to
existing or proposed residents and is in accordance with Policy QD1 of PPS7, Policy LC1
of PPS7 Addendum, Creating Places and the SPPS

Access, Movement and Parking

Dfl Roads Service have considered the acceptability of the road layout to serve the
development and has found it to be acceptable. Car parking is provided in the form of
two in-curtilage spaces for each of the dwellings. Conditions are recommended. The
proposal complies with the SPPS, PPS7 and PPS3 with respect to access and parking.

Infrastructure Capacity

NI Water advise that there is no objection to the development. There is available capacity
at the Waste Water Treatment Works. There is a public foul sewer, public surface water
sewer and public water main all within 20m of the proposed development boundary which
can adequately service the proposals.

Flooding
Rivers Agency have commented that the Flood Hazard Map (NI) indicates that the

development does not lie within the 1 in 100 year fluvial or 1 in 200-year coastal flood
plain. Dfl Rivers do not object to the proposed development from a drainage or flood risk
perspective and recommend a condition with respect to final drainage design agreement.

Other Environmental Considerations

Pagg. 100




Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

9.25

9.26

9.27

9.28

9.29

9.30

The Environmental Health Service has considered the proposed development in terms of
noise, air pollution, general amenity, ambient air quality, contaminated land and other
considerations and offers no objection.

Shared Environmental Services considered the application in light of the assessment
requirements of Regulation 43(1) of the Conservation (Natural Habitats, etc.) Regulations
(Northern Ireland) 1995 (as amended) on behalf of Belfast City Council which is the
competent authority. Having considered the nature, scale, timing, duration and location of
the project it is concluded that it is eliminated from further assessment because it could
not have any conceivable effect on a European site. HRA Stage 1 screening has
concluded no viable environmental pathways from the proposal at both construction and
operational phases to any European Site or feature of one.

DAERA - The Drinking Water Inspectorate refer to standing advice and guidance on
private water supply; the Agent has confirmed that a scoping exercise was undertaken
and no registered private water supplies are present within a 1km search radius; it is not
their intention to use any borehole / private water supply on-site and from undertaking a
site walkover, no existing borehole or wells are apparent. In any event NI Water have
confirmed availability of adequate public water supply in a Pre Development Enquiry and
in their consultation response.

Water Management Unit (WMU), referred to a potential adverse impact on surface water,
advising NIW should be consulted and in the event NIW indicate Capacity at the WWTW
and associated sewer network they would have no objection. NI Water have confirmed
availability at the Waste Water Treatment Works and associated sewer network.

Natural Environment Division considered the proposal subject to the Conservation
(Natural Habitats, etc) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1995 (as amended) (known as the
Habitats Regulations). The application site is in close proximity to the Lagmore Glen
SLNCI a site which is of Local Nature Conservation Importance and is protected by
relevant legislation. NED considered the NI Biodiversity Checklist submitted in support of
the application and requested that a badger survey be carried out. Upon receipt and
consideration of that survey NED are content that the development is not predicted to
have any significant adverse impact on natural heritage and recommend Informatives.

The proposal is in compliance with the policy provisions of the SPPS, PPS7 and PPS 2.

Representation

One objection was received from a resident at Hazel Crescent to the south of the
application site. This raises school provision and traffic congestion. The proposal is for
13 no. houses on lands zoned for housing; a proposal of this size would not in itself require
provision of additional neighbourhood facilities. 4 no. houses are directly accessed off
Lagmore Road; the remaining houses can be accessed from either Lagmore Road or
Hazel Crescent. Each dwelling will benefit from 2 no. in curtilage parking spaces. Dfl
Roads have considered the proposals with respect to parking and traffic and offer no
objection.

9.31

Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the proposal
is considered to be acceptable and planning permission is recommended subject to
conditions.

10.0

Summary of Recommendation: Approval subject to conditions

11.0

Conditions

g8 401




Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

1: The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from
the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.

2: A detailed programme of works and any required/associated traffic management
proposals, shall be submitted to and agreed by Dfl Roads, prior to the commencement of
any element or road works.

Reason: To ensure traffic management proposals are adequate.

3: No dwelling shall be occupied until its related hard surfaced area (incurtilage driveway)
has been constructed in accordance with the approved Drawing No. 13, published to the
planning portal NI 12th August 2022, to provide adequate facilities for parking. These
spaces shall be permanently retained.

Reason: To ensure adequate parking in the interests of road safety and the convenience
of road users.

4: The access gradients to the dwellings hereby permitted shall not exceed 8% (1 in 12.5)
over the first 5 m outside the road boundary. Where the vehicular access crosses a
footway or verge, the access gradient shall be between 4% (1 in 25) maximum and 2.5%
(1 in 40) minimum and shall be formed so that there is no abrupt change of slope along
the footway.

Reason: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of road safety
and the convenience of road users.

5. The Private Streets (Northern Ireland) Order 1980 as amended by the Private Streets
(Amendment) (Northern Ireland) Order 1992. The Department hereby determines that the
width, position and arrangement of the streets, and the land to be regarded as being
comprised in the streets, shall be as indicated on Drawing No: 13 bearing the Department
for Infrastructure determination date stamp 7/7/22 uploaded to the planning portal NI 12th
August 2022.

Reason: To ensure there is a safe and convenient road system to comply with the
provisions of the Private Streets (Northern Ireland) Order 1980.

6. The Private Streets (Northern Ireland) Order 1980 as amended by the Private Streets
(Amendment) (Northern Ireland) Order 1992. No part of the development hereby
permitted shall be occupied until the works necessary for the improvement of a public
road have been completed in accordance with the details outlined blue on Drawing No:
13 bearing the date stamp 7/7/22 uploaded to the planning portal NI 12th August 2022.
The Department hereby attaches to the determination a requirement under Article 3(4A)
of the above Order that such works shall be carried out in accordance with an agreement
under Article 3 (4C).

Reason: To ensure that the road works considered necessary to provide a proper, safe
and convenient means of access to the development are carried out.

7. All redundant accesses from the site to the public road shall be permanently closed off
and the footpath reinstated to the satisfaction of Department for Infrastructure.

Pagg b0,




Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

Reason: In order to minimise the number of access points on to the public road in the
interests of road safety and the convenience of road users.

8. No dwellings shall be occupied until that part of the service road which provides access
to it has been constructed to base course; the final wearing course shall be applied on
the completion of the development.

Reason: To ensure the orderly development of the site and the road works necessary to
provide satisfactory access to each dwelling.

9. Prior to the commencement of any of the approved development on site, a final
drainage assessment, compliant with FLD 3 & Annex D of PPS 15, and Sewers for
Adoption Northern Ireland 1st Edition, including a detailed drainage network design and
a demonstration of how out of sewer flooding due to exceedance of the drainage network
will be managed, must be submitted to the Planning Authority for its consideration and
approval.

Reason: To safeguard against flood risk to the development and from the development to
elsewhere.

10. All hard and soft landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details on Drawing Number 05C, published to the Planning Portal on
29/06/2022. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any dwelling unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Council. Any trees or plants indicated on the approved
scheme which, within a period of five years from the date of planting, die, are removed or
become seriously damaged, diseased or dying shall be replaced during the next planting
season with other trees or plants of a location, species and size, details of which shall
have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area.

11. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until all boundary walls,
fences or other means of enclosure as detailed on Drawing Number 05C, published to
the Planning Portal on 29/06/2022 have been implemented in accordance with the
approved details and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area and residential
amenity.

12. The upper floor window on the south facing gable elevation of House Type E1 on Plot
no. 105 as detailed on Drawing Number 05C shall be finished in obscure glazing. Once
installed the window shall be permanently retained in that condition.

Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the occupiers of adjoining properties.

Notification to Department (if relevant)

N/A

Phger 403




Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

Representations from Elected members:
None

ANNEX

Date Valid

29th October 2021

Date First Advertised

12" November 2021

Date Last Advertised

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)

The Owner/Occupier,

1 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 0XB
The Owner/Occupier,

10 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

10 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 0XB
The Owner/Occupier,

11 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

11 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 0XB
The Owner/Occupier,

12 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

12 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 0XB
The Owner/Occupier,

13 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

13 Hazel View,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWQ
The Owner/Occupier,

14 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

15 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

15 Hazel View,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWQ
The Owner/Occupier,

16 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

17 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

17 Hazel View,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWQ
The Owner/Occupier,

18 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

19 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

19 Hazel View,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWQ

Pagg 104,




Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

The Owner/Occupier,

2 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 0XB
Mairead Cunningham

21 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

21 Hazel View,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWQ
The Owner/Occupier,

23 Hazel View,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWQ
The Owner/Occupier,

25 Hazel View,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWQ
The Owner/Occupier,

27 Hazel View,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWQ
The Owner/Occupier,

29 Hazel View,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWQ
The Owner/Occupier,

3 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 OXB
The Owner/Occupier,

32 Lagmore Road,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 ONT
The Owner/Occupier,

4 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

4 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 0XB
The Owner/Occupier,

5 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 OXB
The Owner/Occupier,

6 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

6 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 0XB
The Owner/Occupier,

7 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

7 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 0XB
The Owner/Occupier,

8 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

8 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 0XB
The Owner/Occupier,

9 Hazel Crescent,Belfast,Antrim,BT17 OWN
The Owner/Occupier,

9 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 OXB
The Owner/Occupier,

99 White Rise,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 0XD
The Owner/Occupier,

Lagmore Road,Dunmurry,Antrim,BT17 ONT

Date of Last Neighbour Notification
24™ November 2021

Date of EIA Determination 9/9/22

ES Requested No

PR 405



Application ID: LA04/2021/2462/F

Drawing Numbers and Title

01 Site Location Plan - published to Planning Portal 01/11/2021

05C Site layout and block plan 01/11/2021

07 House Type Al Plans and Elevations - published to Planning Portal 01/11/2021
08 House Type B1 Plans and Elevations - published to Planning Portal 01/11/2021
09 House Type C1 Plans and Elevations - published to Planning Portal 01/11/2021
10 House Type E1 Plans and Elevations - published to Planning Portal 01/11/2021
11 House Type E2 Plans and Elevations - published to Planning Portal 01/11/2021
12 House Type F2 Plans and Elevations - published to Planning Portal 01/11/2021
13 PSD Layout published to Planning Portal 12/08/2022

14 Road Long Sections published to Planning Portal 12/08/2022

Notification to Department (if relevant)

Date of Notification to Department:
Response of Department:

Pagg 106,



Agenda Item 6f

Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary

Committee Meeting Date: 20" September 2022

Application ID: LAO4/2022/1236/F
Proposal: Location:
Proposed art sculpture Land located at roundabout junction approx.

100m south west of 385 Springfield Road
Belfast BT12 7DG within Forthriver Business
Park access road.

Referral Route: Referral to the Planning Committee under Section 3.8.5 (d)

Recommendation: Approval subject to condition
Applicant Name and Address: Agent Name and Address:
Belfast City Council Bell Architects Ltd

Property & Projects Department 65 Main Street

Adelaide Street Ballymoney

Belfast BT53 6AN

BT2 8DJ

Executive Summary:

The proposal is for full planning permission for an Art Sculpture, on lands located at the roundabout
junction approx. 100m south west of 385 Springfield Road, Belfast.

The site is 0.005 hectares and comprises the grassed area adjacent to the pedestrian footpath
bounding a roundabout at the entrance to the Innovation Factory. The site also forms part of the
entrance to a larger scheme for a proposed parkland to the Forthmeadow Community Greenway.

The scale, design and materials of the proposal will not detract from the appearance and
character of the surrounding area.

The proposal is considered to comply with relevant planning policy and guidance. The sculpture
is a well-designed compatible use at this location and will contribute positively to the overall
environmental quality of the area.

The proposal will provide an interesting feature for those accessing the Innovation Factory and
the Forthmeadow Greenway without detriment to the amenity of nearby uses nor it will hinder or
preclude any future uses.

Following advertisement in the local press no representations have been received.
DFI Roads offer no objection.

Recommendation — Approval

Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations the proposal is considered
acceptable and planning permission is recommended for approval subject to a condition as set
out in the report.

Page 107



Application ID: LA04/2022/1236/F

Case Officer Report

Site Location Plan

Proposed Site Layout

\\ P P R

Lands of New Parkiand
Forthmeadow Community Greenway
Application Ref: LAD4/2020/1959/F

4477 el

@/7/ L[/ DR

e f@/ / A e
~ . 22 ST Ne\SC —
= ) / / e y ———
£ XL A\ X T 1

| e <

i \A\é
*<'\ x\ \\ ;_:m,,.l,/(‘
\%i\ \\\\/ —
AN /""
av/
oy, R =

Pagg.108



: LA04/2022/1236/F

Application ID

Scale of Context

0004

aunmdjnos joyblay %m&@. UON98S X0q WW 9 X 0Z| X 0Z| Ul panjoenuepy

G g

A A7

..... e RO o S gl
P
L

—

N

Walk under - like a bridge

Visuals

Raaerd09



Application ID: LA04/2022/1236/F

Characteristics of the Site and Area

1.0 Description of Proposed Development

11 The proposal is for full planning permission for a Proposed Art Sculpture, on land located at
roundabout junction approx. 100m south west of 385 Springfield Road, Belfast.

2.0 Description of Site

2.1 The site is 0.005 hectares and comprises the grassed area adjacent to the pedestrian footpath
bounding a roundabout at the entrance to the Innovation Factory. The site forms part of the
entrance to a larger scheme for a proposed parkland to form the Forthmeadow Community
Greenway.

2.2 The surrounding area is characterised by employment, industrial, educational, open space

and residential areas around the Springfield Road.

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations

3.0

Site History

3.1

3.2

LA04/2020/1959/F - Proposed new parkland (Section 2 Forthmeadow Community Greenway)
- foot and cycle pathways, lighting columns, new entrances and street furniture — Pending

Z/2002/1332/F - New junction and vehicular access to include extension of existing culvert -
Granted

4.0

Policy Framework

4.1

The adopted Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 shows the site as Industry and Commerce Land.

4.2

Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (2004 Version)

Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (BMAP) 2004 version the site is located within zoning
BT10 — employment/Industry Land at Springfield Road (Former Mackies site) and BT 004 —
Existing Employment Land at Springfield Road (Former Mackies Site). A community greenway
designation BT 162/02 Forth River/Glencairn/Ligoniel Route is also proposed. The site was
also a proposed Local Landscape Policy Area BT 160, however following PAC public inquiry
the designation was removed as per their recommendation.

4.3

Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015

Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (BMAP) 2015 plan that was adopted and now
subsequently quashed the site is designated as Major Area of Employment and Industry -
BT 004 Existing Employment Land at Springfield Road (Former Mackies Site), proposed Site
of Local Nature Conservation Importance (SLNCI) BT 084/26 Springfield Pond / Highfield
Glen and a proposed community greenway BT 147/02 Forth River/Glencairn/Ligoniel Route.

4.4

The Belfast Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strategy 2035 will guide future planning
application decision making to support the sustainable spatial growth of the city up to 2035.
The draft Plan Strategy has been subject to examination by the Planning Appeals Commission
and the Council has been provided with a copy of their Report, together with a Direction from
Dfl in relation to additional required steps before it can be considered adopted. Paragraph
1.10 states that a transitional period will operate until such times as a Council’s Plan Strategy

Pagg.114




Application ID: LA04/2022/1236/F

has been adopted. Accordingly, whilst the Draft Plan Strategy is now a material consideration
it has limited weight until it is adopted and during the transitional period planning authorities
will apply existing policy together with the SPPS.

4.5 4.4.1 Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS)
4.4.2 Planning Policy Statement 2: Natural Heritage
4.4.3 Planning Policy Statement 3: Access, Movement and Parking
4.4.4 Planning Policy Statement 4: Planning & Economic Development

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses

5.1 DFI Roads — No objection subject to conditions.

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees Responses

6.1 None

7.0 Representations

7.1 The application has been advertised in the local press on 15" July 2022. No representations
have been received to date following advertisement in the local press.

7.2 In line with the legislative requirements (Article 8 (2) of the General Development Planning
Order(GDPOQO)) no neighbours have been notified as the road separating the site from the
Innovation Centre car park is over 20 metres and the nearest buildings are over 100m away
from the application site.

8.0 Other Material Considerations

8.1 None

9.0 Assessment

9.1 The Key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include:

e Scale, Design & Materials
¢ Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area,;
¢ Impact on pedestrian and vehicular access and safety.

9.2 The adopted Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (BMAP) has been quashed as a result of a
judgement in the Court of Appeal delivered on 18 May 2017. As a consequence of this, the
Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP) is now the statutory development plan for the area.

9.3 Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 requires regard to be had to the Development
Plan, so far as material to the application and to any other material considerations. Section 6
(4) states that where regard is to be had to the Development Plan, the determination must be
made in accordance with the Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

9.4 As the decision to adopt BMAP has been quashed in its entirety, it is as though the draft BMAP
has never been adopted, however, the version of draft BMAP which was purported to be
adopted remains a material consideration.

9.5 Under the adopted BUAP 2001 the site is Industry and Commerce land. The site falls within

an existing employment and industry zoning, a proposed Site of Local Nature Conservation

Ragerd 11




Application ID: LA04/2022/1236/F

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

Importance (SLNCI) BT 084/26 Springfield Pond / Highfield Glen and a proposed community
greenway BT 147/02 Forth River/Glencairn/Ligoniel Route in draft BMAP.

The application seeks permission to erect a 7 metre high sculpture “Carry each Other” on land
located at the roundabout junction approx. 100m south west of 385 Springfield Road. The site
falls with the Masterplan for Forthmeadow. The sculpture concept is inspired by the wide
range of ages within the area’s population and its future hope for the community. This is
embedded as the adult figure carries the next generation who carries a bird.

It is considered that the proposed sculpture is a well-designed, compatible use at this location.
In addition, the proposal will not adversely impact on the character or integrity of the area and
will contribute positively to the environmental quality of the area.

Scale, Design & Materials

The height of the proposed sculpture is 7 metres. The statue will be located on a granite
plinth set flush with the ground. The sculpture will be aluminium casting with an internal
steel work structure. The sculpture is of a scale that people will be able to walk under it like
a bridge. The sculpture is smaller than the backdrop of the trees which will provide a visual
contrast.

The proposal has been assessed against SPPS, the sculpture is considered to be of a high
quality and design and is considered to be in compliance with the SPPS, in that it will not
adversely impact on the local character or integrity of the area.

Impact on the Area

Policy IND 5 — Environmental Treatment of BUAP 2001 applies. Whilst the proposal is not
for soft landscaping, the sculpture will contribute a form of hard landscaping when entering
the Innovation Factory from Springfield Road as well as provide a point of interest while
travelling along the new greenway and as a welcome feature at adjacent points of access to
join the greenway from the Springfield Road. The proposal will provide an interesting
feature for those accessing the Innovation Factory and the Forthmeadow Greenway without
detriment to the amenity of nearby uses nor it will hinder or preclude any future uses. Itis
considered that the proposal satisfies policy IND 5 of the BUAP 2001. The high quality
materials will enhance what is a new high quality public realm at this location.

Impact on Pedestrian and vehicular access and safety

The sculpture is to be located on the grassed area and will not be on the public pavement
therefore, it will not hinder pedestrian movement or cause an obstruction. DFI Roads were
consulted and offered no objection.

10.0

10.1

Summary of Recommendation: Approval

Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations the proposal is
considered acceptable and planning permission is recommended for approval subject to a
condition set out below.

11.0

Conditions

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from the
date of this permission.

Pagget1d




Application ID: LA04/2022/1236/F

Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.

Informatives

The developer should consider all consultees comments prior to commencing this proposal.
All comments can be viewed on the planning portal quoting the application reference
number.

Notification to Department (if relevant)

N/A

Representations from Elected members:

None

Ragerd 13




Application ID: LA04/2022/1236/F

ANNEX

Date Valid

1st July 2022

Date First Advertised

15th July 2022

Date Last Advertised

15th July 2022

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)

n/a
Date of Last Neighbour Notification

n/a
Date of EIA Determination n/a
ES Requested No

Drawing Numbers and Title

01 — Site Location Map
02 — Proposed Site Layout
03 — Scale of Proposals

Pagg.bi4



Agenda Item 69

Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary
Committee Meeting Date: 20 September 2022
Application ID: LAO4/2022/1018/F
Proposal: Location:
Retention of temporary car park Lands adjacent to and SE of Ballymacarrett
Community Centre between Severn Street and
Ballymacarrett Walkway
Belfast
BT4 1SX
Referral Route: Applicant is Belfast City Council
Recommendation: Approval
Applicant Name and Address: Agent Name and Address:
Belfast City Council Belfast City Council
City & Neighbourhood Services Dept 4-10 Linenhall Street
4-10 Linenhall Street Belfast
Belfast BT2 8BP
BT2 8BP

Executive Summary:

This application seeks to retain the existing car park previously given temporary approval under
LA04/2019/2990/F for a further temporary period.

The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include;
e Principle of development and use;

Parking provision and access;

Impact on area of existing open space;

Visual Impact;

Impact on residential amenity of neighbours.

No third party objections have been received.
DFI Roads have no objection to the proposal.

The proposal will retain 22 parking spaces for use by staff and patrons of the Community Centre
who have been displaced from their previous car park due to Environmental Improvement works
to the Ballymacarrett Walkway. The proposal will retain a temporary functional ancillary use to
benefit the community centre staff and users until the Recreational Masterplan has been
progressed.

The site is within a wider designation as an Area of Existing Open Space in the Belfast Metropolitan
Area Plan 2015 (BMAP) and the 2004 version. The BUAP 2001 designates the site as un-zoned
white land.

The area proposed to be designated as an Area of Existing Open Space extends to 1.8ha.
The proposed site covers a small fraction of that area at 0.061ha and equates to 3.4% of the
wider proposed area of existing open space. The proposal site is of a minor scale in context
with the extensive Comber Greenway and open space in which it is located. The proposal

Page 115



Application ID: LA04/2022/1018/F

serves to provide a relatively small temporary ancillary use to the recreational function of the
community centre and the wider linear park, which forms part of the larger Comber Greenway.

The principle of this temporary use was approved under LA04/2019/2990/F; the loss of a small
area to facilitate an existing recreational use in the short term was considered acceptable, not
resulting in any negative impact on the provision of open and recreational space to the area.
The current application seeks to retain the parking for a further temporary period pending its
closure as part of the redevelopment works.

The proposal is considerable to be acceptable subject to a temporary time condition of 2 years.
Recommendation

Having regard to the development plan, regional planning policy and associated guidance, it is
recommended that this application is approved subject to a temporary time limited condition.

Page. 140



Application ID: LA04/2022/1018/F

Case Officer Report

Site Location Plan

SN
\“-\éﬁrv'/ )4 /’Q(

AN
SV IRSIESY AS

RN N
Y
84

z Development Boundary
IZ Ownership Boundary

e

\ A
i Wl e ]
A | Revised dats for Planning ™ [ eMew [1iosz2
Ve[ Amenament [orewn sy _|crees _|oa
Landscape Planning SLENTBCC City & Neighbourhood Services
& Tnit [
4 Floar Cecil Ward Building, Tempaorary Car Park.
| 10 Eomenieat sonces, —
Belft .
BT 857 Location 1an
zs0@ad ‘ 121219 ™ | 15025901 ‘A

. Ballymacarrett
) Community

\\\

-

\\

\n.
/-"

" = Existing Hardstanding
U 4 A.rea_ >

'_,-—"

. .,
! “\\‘:E\
! f;’ NS .
- _J', '\."\'.\\ )
-
P/ .
NOTES:
Road Levels remain unchanged by temporary works
Refer to Dwg No. 15-025-01 Location Plan for Development Boundary S
Proposed Layout

RRee b1/



Application ID: LA04/2022/1018/F

_‘__ __-.l".'_‘ —
e——7

Trigger Happy,
ActivitylGenter,
o

Consultations:

Consultation Type Consultee Response
Statutory DFI Roads - Hydebank Advice
Statutory DFI Roads - Hydebank Content
Representations:

Letters of Support None Received

Letters of Objection None Received

Number of Support Petitions and No Petitions Received

signatures

Number of Petitions of Objection No Petitions Received

and signatures

Pagg 148



Application ID: LA04/2022/1018/F

Characteristics of the Site and Area

1.0

Description of Proposed Development

The proposal is for full planning permission for retention of a temporary car park for a further
temporary period. The proposal will facilitate 22 parking spaces for use by staff and patrons of
the Connswater Community Centre who have been displaced from their previous car park due
to Environmental Improvement works to the Ballymacarrett Walkway.

2.0

Description of Site

The site is located at lands adjacent to and southeast of Connswater Community Centre,
between Severn Street and Ballymacarrett Walkway, Belfast. The site is currently operating a
temporary car park as previously approved under reference LA04/2019/2990/F. The site is
bounded by a metal palisade fence, approximately 2.4m.

Plann

ing Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations

3.0

Site History

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

LA04/2019/2990/F- Lands adjacent to and SE of Ballymacarrett Community Centre between
Severn Street and Ballymacarrett Walkway Belfast BT4 1S Change of Use of land from derelict
hardstand to replacement car park, new access/egress via Severn Street and Boundary
treatment. (Amended description -& address) TEMPORARY PERMISSION GRANTED

Z/2008/0795/F — Lands extending from Victoria Pk to Cregagh Glen inc. parts of Cregagh Rd,
Castlereagh College Loop River Pk, Castlereagh Rd, Beersbridge Rd, Newtownards Rd,
Sydenham Bypass, & lands in between. Also inc. lands extending from Beersbridge Rd to C —
Variation of conditions 5 and 6 of planning approval Z/2007/0350/F — Proposed Connswater
community greenway (a linear park) following the course of the Connswater, Loop and Knock
rivers. This includes walkways, pedestrian crossings and cycle ways; landscaping, and
allotments; bio-remediation of the river including limited realignment, cross section re-profiling,
riffles, cascades, attenuation pools and reed beds, several minor footbridges across the river
and 3 No. landmark foot and cycle bridges; street furniture, lighting, cycle stands, interpretation
boards and CCTV; fencing and gates; limited car parking to provide disabled access to
greenway and rationalisation of car parking at Holywood Arches and installation of weir
infrastructure at entrance to Victoria Park- an extension to the time period for the preparation of
baseline surveys and an ecological management plan for the Connswater community greenway
— Granted

Z/2007/0350/F — Lands extending from Victoria Pk to Cregagh Glen inc. parts of Cregagh Rd,
Castlereagh College Loop River Pk, Castlereagh Rd, Beersbridge Rd, Newtownards Rd,
Sydenham Bypass, & lands in between. Also inc. lands extending from Beersbridge Rd to C —
Proposed Connswater community greenway (a linear park) following the course of the
Connswater, Loop and Knock rivers. This includes walkways, pedestrian crossings and cycle
ways; landscaping, and allotments; bio-remediation of the river including limited realignment,
cross section re-profiling, riffles, cascades, attenuation pools and reed beds, several minor
footbridges across the river and 3 No. landmark foot and cycle bridges; street furniture, lighting,
cycle stands, interpretation boards and CCTV; fencing and gates; limited car parking to provide
disabled access to greenway and rationalisation of car parking at Holywood Arches and
installation of weir infrastructure at entrance to Victoria Park — Granted

Z/2004/0558/F — Ballymacarrett Recreational Centre, Connswater, Belfast — Environmental

improvements including provision of ramps to existing leisure centre — Granted

08419




Application ID: LA04/2022/1018/F

3.5 | Z/2007/0899/A — Lands extending from Victoria Park to Cregagh Glen — Banners along route
of Community Greenway — Granted

3.6 | Z/1985/0656 — Ballymacarrett Recreation Centre — Name Sign — Granted

3.7 Z/1985/2109 — Extension to recreation hall — Granted

3.8 Z/1982/1125 — Erection of recreation Hall — Granted

4.0 Policy Framework

4.1 Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001

4.2 Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2004

4.3 Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015

4.4 | The Belfast Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strategy 2035 will guide future planning
application decision making to support the sustainable spatial growth of the city up to 2035.
The draft Plan Strategy has been subject to examination by the Planning Appeals Commission
and the Council has been provided with a copy of their Report, together with a Direction from
the Department for Infrastructure in relation to additional required steps before it can be
adopted. Paragraph 1.10 of the Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS) states that a
transitional period will operate until such times as a Council’s Plan Strategy has been adopted.
Accordingly, whilst the Draft Plan Strategy is now a material consideration it has limited weight
until it is adopted and during this transitional period existing policies will be applied including
the SPPS and relevant PPSs.

45 | 4.4.1 Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS)
4.4.2 Planning Policy Statement 3: Access, Movement and Parking
4.4.3 Planning Policy Statement 8: Open Space and Recreation
4.4.4 Planning Policy Statement 13: Transportation and Land Use

5.0 | Statutory Consultees Responses

5.1 DFI Roads — No objection.

6.0 Non Statutory Consultees Responses

6.1 None

7.0 Representations

7.1 | The application has been re-neighbour notified and re-advertised in the local press. No
representations have been received.

8.0 | Other Material Considerations

8.1 | The adopted Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 designates the site as white un-zoned land.

8.2 Under the draft BMAP 2004 plan the site is proposed to be designated within an area of

exiting open space and is located adjacent to the Community Greenway.

Pagg. 149




Application ID: LA04/2022/1018/F

8.3

Under the draft BMAP 2015 plan the site is proposed to be designated within an area of
exiting open space and is located adjacent to the community Greenway.

9.0

Assessment

9.1

The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include;
Principle of development and use;

Parking provision and access;

Impact on area of existing open space;

Visual Impact;

Impact on residential amenity of neighbours.

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

The Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP) is the statutory development plan for the area.
The adopted Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (BMAP) is a material consideration

Section 45 (1) of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 requires regard to be had to the Development Plan,
so far as material to the application and to any other material considerations. Section 6 (4)
states that where regard is to be had to the Development Plan, the determination must be made
in accordance with the Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Section 6 (3) of the Planning Act for Northern Ireland 2001 states;

‘If to any extent a policy contained in a local development plan conflicts with
another policy in that plan the conflict must be resolved in favour of the policy which
is contained in the last development plan document to be adopted or, as the case
may be, approved’.

The adopted Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 designates the site as un-zoned white land.

Principle of development and use

The principle of a temporary ancillary car park has been established under the previous
application approved under LA04/2019/2990/F which permitted a 2-year period up until
29" June 2022; the current application was received in May 2022 prior to the temporary
permission lapsing. The principle of the development has been considered acceptable at
this location. The use as hardstanding had been in place for approximately 20 years. The
temporary use provides a functional benefit of the community centre staff and users.
Belfast City Council advised that the site is to be included in a future re-development
proposal for the Ballymacarrett Community Centre, it is considered that a further temporary
time period of 2 years will enable the centre to benefit from this proposal and allow time for
the recreational masterplan to be progressed.

Under the SPPS, the guiding principle for planning authorities in determining planning
applications is that sustainable development should be permitted, having regard to the
development plan and all other material considerations, unless the proposed development will
cause demonstrable harm to interests of acknowledged importance. It is considered that this
proposal will not result in demonstrable harm to nearby residents or the environmental quality
of the area.

Parking provision and access

DFI Roads were consulted and have no objection to the proposal for the ongoing retention
of the car park. The 22 numbered car parking spaces enable staff and users of the centre,
including elderly to park in close proximity to the centre and easily access the facilities
which it provides for the wider community.

RRg8:421




Application ID: LA04/2022/1018/F

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

9.14

Impact on Area of Existing Open Space

The site is designated as an Area of Existing Open Space in the Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan
2015 (BMAP) and the 2004 version. The BUAP 2001 designates the site as un-zoned white
land.

The area proposed to be designated as an Area of Existing Open Space extends to 1.8ha.
The proposal site is a small fraction of that area at 0.061ha and equates to 3.4% of the
wider proposed area of existing open space. The proposal site is of a minor scale in context
with the much larger Comber Greenway and open space in which it is located. The
proposal serves to provide a relatively small temporary ancillary use to the recreational
function of the community centre and the wider linear park, which forms part of the larger
Comber Greenway.

The proposal will retain a temporary functional use for a part of this derelict land that will
be of benefit to the community centre staff and users until the recreational masterplan has
been progressed. The proposal is an ancillary use to a building that is in a recreational
function as per PPS 8. There are also site specific circumstances which must be
considered in this case, given that the Recreation Masterplan is anticipated to come
forward, on balance the retention of the temporary parking for a further period is considered
acceptable subject to a time limited condition to ensure its ongoing recreational use in the
future.

Visual Impact

In respect of visual impact, the proposal is for the retention of temporary car park, therefore
there will be no change to the visual impact of the site. The visual impact was assessed
under the original LA04/2019/2990/F and was deemed acceptable.

Impact on residential amenity of neighbours

The proposed scale of the car park is considered to be acceptable, and of a level that will
not result in unacceptable noise, nuisance or disturbance to nearby residential properties
and is a use that is compatible alongside the community centre.

Recommendation

The proposal is considerable to be acceptable subject to a temporary time condition of 2 years.
The proposal will retain the replacement car park for the community centre staff and users for
a further temporary period and will ensure the operational viability of the community centre is
maintained for the wider community pending wider regeneration plans.

Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the proposal is
considered acceptable and temporary planning permission is recommended.

10.0

Summary of Recommendation: Approval

11.0

Conditions

1. The permission hereby granted shall be for a limited period of two years only. The
use shall cease and all associated development be removed within two years from the
date of this permission.

Reason: To enable the Council to consider the development in the light of
circumstances then prevailing and protect it from inappropriate development.

Pagg. 144




Application ID: LA04/2022/1018/F

Informatives

1. Precautions shall be taken to prevent the deposit of mud and other debris on the

adjacent road by vehicles travelling to and from the construction site. Any mud, refuse,
etc deposited on the road as a result of the development, must be removed
immediately by the operator/contractor.

Notwithstanding the terms and conditions of the Planning Authority’s approval set out
above, you are required under Article 71-83 inclusive of the Roads (NI) Order 1993 to
be in possession of the Department for Infrastructure’s consent before any work is
commenced which involves making or altering any opening to any boundary adjacent
to the public road, verge, or footway or any part of said road, verge, or footway
bounding the site. The consent is available on personal application to the Department
for Infrastructure Section Engineer whose address is Belfast South Section Office, 1A
Airport Road, Belfast, BT3 9DY. A monetary deposit will be required to cover works
on the public road.

All construction plant and materials shall be stored within the curtilage of the site.
It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that water does not flow from the site

onto the public road (including verge or footway) and that existing roadside drainage
is preserved and does not allow water from the road to enter the site

Notification to Department (if relevant)

N/A

Representations from Elected members: N/A

Neighbour Notification Checked: Yes

298 423




Application ID: LA04/2022/1018/F

ANNEX

Date Valid

17" May 2022

Date First Advertised

3 June 2022

Date Last Advertised

3" June 2020

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)

The Owner/Occupier,

58 Severn Street,Belfast,Down,BT4 1FB

The Owner/Occupier,

60 Severn Street,Belfast,Down,BT4 1FB

The Owner/Occupier,

62 Severn Street,Belfast,Down,BT4 1FB

The Owner/Occupier

1 Tamar Court,Belfast,Down,BT4 1SR

The Owner/Occupier

2 Tamar Court,Belfast,Down,BT4 1SR

The Owner/Occupier

3 Tamar Court,Belfast,Down,BT4 1SR

Date of Last Neighbour Notification 30th May 2022

Date of EIA Determination

N/A

ES Requested

No

Drawing Numbers and Title

Drawing Nos. 01 - 02A

Type: Site Location Map, Proposed Layout Plan.

Pagg 440



Agenda ltem 6h

Committee Report

Development Management Report

Application ID: LA04/2022/1380/F Date of Committee: Tuesday 20" September
2022

Proposal: Location:

Installation of 3 projector units to act as Castle Hoarding

an interactive lighting installation along 83-87 Castle Street

hoarding on Castle Street (temporary 2 Belfast.

years)

Referral Route: Referral to the Planning Committee under Section 3.8.5 (d)

Recommendation: Approval — Temporary Permission 2 years

Applicant Name and Address: Agent Name and Address:
Belfast City Council Belfast City Council

9-21 Adelaide Street 9-21 Adelaide Street
Belfast Belfast

BT2 8DJ BT2 8DJ

Executive Summary:

Planning permission is sought for the installation of 3 projector units to create an interactive
lighting installation along a hoarding facade on Castle Street for a temporary period of 2 years.
This forms part of a citywide lightening strategy undertaken by Belfast City Council.

The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include:
¢ Impact on character and appearance of the area including Belfast City Centre
Conservation Area.
e Impact on Amenity
¢ Impact on highway safety.

The application site lies within the development limits for Belfast. The site is located within Belfast
City Centre Conservation Area. Overall, the proposal would enhance the character and
appearance of the area including the City Centre Conservation Area and would not be detrimental
to the amenity of neighbouring properties or harmful to highway safety.

The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press — no third party
representations have been received.

DFI Roads have offered no objection to this development proposal. Previous response from
Environmental Health on reference LA04/2019/2386/F still applies to this application. It is still
considered that there are no issues of principle.

The proposal has been assessed against and is considered to comply with the SPPS, BUAP,
Draft BMAP, PPS3 and PPS6. Having regard to the policy context and other material
considerations, the proposal is considered acceptable and planning permission is recommended
for a temporary approval for a period of 2 years.

Recommendation — Temporary Approval for 2 years subject to conditions

It is requested that the committee delegate authority to the Director of Planning and Building
Control to grant temporary planning permission and to finalise the wording of conditions.

Page 125



Case Officer Report

Site Location Plan

N S~ e I\
( = Lo
| o \
\ ( \ =
f = \
| / =\
) / A\ =\
g / \ S\
Nz \
— ——cAsTLE stReex  ———— =
< —— e _ CASTLE STREET B
;’( > f \‘\‘x\
[ \‘ | / ©: \“
:\ [ | \ > |\
i 4 \ % |
[ L | <
/ | m
/ \ Z |
iz / \ <1\
Y L&)
/ / N o
f i
/ / |
/ |
| / “»
| “ ‘\‘
[ \ \
/ | \
| [ .
JRBAN )
SCALE et GASTLE STREET PROJECTORS ASTLE STREET LOCATION PLAN - A
e AR PIR—— o
Proposed Hoarding Elevation
- Projector fixed to masonry
/ behind hoarding
"":'
¥ b
Projector fixed to top of
hoarding B
[ =

Hoarding painted white ——_
to improve animation
wisability

Projects onte haearding o
through ultra short o
range projector unit

PROPOSED HOARDING ELEVATION - 1:1250  [Po(014) |[POI015) |[PO©O16) |

1.5 Lewels of luminance do not exceed the levels and luminance of other signs and surfaces in the area.

Dlirmensions - 550 x 300 x 120

Page 126




Exisiting and Proposed Hoarding Elevation

PROPOSED HOARDING ELEVATION- 1:50

=
HOARDING HOARDING
EXISITING HOARDING ELEVATION- 1:50
Thiee projector units Toed 1a top of =
/ hoardng
N - /

Page 127




Characteristics of the Site and Area

1.0
11

1.2

Description of Proposed Development

The application is for the installation of 3 projector units to act as an interactive lightening
installation along the hoarding facade of Castle Street. The application is to install 3 light
projectors onto the vacant site of 83-87 Castle Street, Belfast for a temporary period of 2
years.

The proposal is a medium-term lighting intervention to improve the lightening and
dressing of castle street for the short term. The content will be abstract visual content
programmed with local Belfast artists. This application is linked to application
LA04/2019/2386/F for the installation of 8 projectors, only 3 projectors were fitted, and
consent expired in March 2022.

2.0
2.1

2.2

Description of Site
The site is located along the commercial avenue of Castle Street, Belfast. The site is
currently vacant land with a visible derelict building behind the hoarding.

The site is within the development limit of Belfast as designated in both BUAP and Draft
BMAP. The site also falls within the City Centre Conservation Area.

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations

3.0 Site History
LA04/2019/2386/F - Discount store (77 Castle Street) Kids store (79-81 Castle Street)
Castle Hoarding (83-87 Castle Street) castle Rugs, (89 Castle Street) Castle Home
Trends (103-105 Castle Street) Old Oven Bakery (90 Castle Street) Belfast. - Installation
of 8 projector units to create an interactive lighting installation along ground floor facades
(Temporary 2 years). - PERMISSION GRANTED - 09.03.2020

4.0 Policy Framework

4.1 Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001

4.2 Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2004

4.3 Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015
Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant development plan is
now the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had reached pre-
adoption through a period of independent examination, the policies within the Draft BMAP
still carry weight and are a material consideration in the determination of planning
applications. The weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker.

4.4 Belfast Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strategy 2035

The Belfast Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strategy 2035 will guide future planning
application decision making to support the sustainable spatial growth of the city up to
2035. The draft Plan Strategy has been subject to examination by the Planning Appeals
Commission and the Council has been provided with a copy of their Report, together with
a Direction from the Department for Infrastructure in relation to additional required steps
before it can be adopted. Paragraph 1.10 of the Strategic Planning Policy Statement
(SPPS) states that a transitional period will operate until such times as a Council’s Plan

Page 128




Strategy has been adopted. Accordingly, whilst the Draft Plan Strategy is now a material
consideration it has limited weight until it is adopted and during this transitional period
existing policies will be applied including the SPPS and relevant PPSs.

4.5 Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 2015

4.6 Planning Policy Statement 3: Access, Movement and Parking

4.7 Planning Policy Statement 6: Planning Archaeology and the Built Heritage

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses

5.1 DFI Roads- No objection subject to conditions.

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees Responses

6.1 None. Previous Environmental Health response from LA04/2019/2386/F still applies to
this application. No objection subject to informative.

7.0 Representations

7.1 The application was neighbour notified on the 10.08.2022. It was advertised in the local
press on the 04.08.2022. The consultation period expired on 24.08.2022. No
representations have been received to date. Any further representations received will be
reported as a late item to committee.

8.0 Other Material Considerations

8.1 Any other supplementary guidance
Belfast City Centre Conservation Area Guide
Section 104 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011

9.0 Assessment

9.1 The proposal is considered to be in compliance with the development plan.

9.2 The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include:

e Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area including Belfast
City Centre Conservation Area.

e Impact on amenity
Impact on highway safety.

Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area including Belfast City
Centre Conservation Area.

The scale, form, materials and detailing of the projector units respect the adjoining
buildings. At present Castle Street suffers from a deadening effect of shop closures and a
lack of lighting and activity when businesses close for the evening. The proposed
interactive lighting installation would enhance the appearance of the street at night, making
it safer and more attractive for pedestrians. Overall, the proposal complies with PPS6, the
SPPS and Section 104 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 201 in that it would enhance
the character and appearance of the area including the City Centre Conservation Area.

Amenity
Given the commercial nature of the street, low-level lightening, the subtle changes of

colour and motions and light being restricted to the hoarding board with limited light spill
and glare, there will be no detrimental impact on the amenity of the adjoining properties in
accordance with the SPPS.

Impact on highway safety

The projections will be illuminated in a discreet and subtle manner projecting directly on
the hoarding so as to not interfere with vehicular or pedestrian traffic. The projections do
not block or impair views of road signs and do_nqt obstruct required sight lines. As such,

rFage 129




there will be no negative impact on highway safety and the proposal would comply with
PPS3 and the SPPS in this regard. DFI Roads have offered no objection to this
development proposal.

9.3 Having regard for the policy context and the considerations above, the proposal is
deemed acceptable.

10.0 | Summary of Recommendation: Approval for a Temporary Period of 2 years

11.0 | Conditions

1. The approval is temporary for a period of 2 years from the date of this decision
notice. The interactive lighting installation shall cease and all associated
equipment must be removed within 4 weeks of the end date of this permission.

Reason: In the interest of the character and appearance of the area.

2. The degree of illumination of the projections shall comply with the Institution of
Lighting Professionals guidance PLGO5, 'The Brightness of llluminated Advertisements'.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, road safety and convenience of road users.
3. The projected images shall not display text or messages.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, road safety and convenience of road users.

4. The minimum duration any impact shall be displayed shall not be less than 10
seconds.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, road safety and convenience of road users.
Informatives

1. This determination relates to planning control only and does not cover any consent or
approval which may be necessary to authorise the development under other prevailing
legislation as may be administered by the Council or other statutory authority.

2. This approval does not relate to any forms of signage or advertising.

3. The drawing refs referred to above correspond with those drawings submitted to the
Authority in respect of this application and published to the Planning Portal NI on:
27/07/2022, Drawing No 01, 02 & 03.

CLEAN NEIGHBOURHOODS AND ENVIRONMENT (NORTHERN IRELAND) ACT
2011

4. Artificial lighting should be optically controlled and directed in such a manner as to
minimise light pollution from glare and spill. Guidance notes for the reduction of obtrusive
light may be obtained from the Institution of Lighting Engineers, Lennox House, 9
Lawford Road, Rugby, Warwickshire CV21 2DZ, available at
http://www.britastro.org/dark-skies/pdfs/ile.pdf.

Page 130




Notification to Department (if relevant): No
Representations from Elected Members: None

ANNEX
Date Valid 28th June 2022
Date First Advertised 5th August 2022

Date Last Advertised

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)
The Owner/Occupier,

1 Marquis Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1JJ
The Owner/Occupier,

2,2 Marquis Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1JJ
The Owner/Occupier,

3,2 Marquis Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1JJ
The Owner/Occupier,

7 Marquis Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1JJ
The Owner/Occupier,

72 Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HD
The Owner/Occupier,

72 Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HD
The Owner/Occupier,

74 Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HD
The Owner/Occupier,

76-78 ,Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HD
The Owner/Occupier,

79-81 ,Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1GJ
The Owner/Occupier,

80 Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HE
The Owner/Occupier,

82 Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HE
The Owner/Occupier,

85 Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1GJ
The Owner/Occupier,

86-88 ,Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1HE
The Owner/Occupier,

89 Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1GJ
The Owner/Occupier,

89 Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1GJ
The Owner/Occupier,

91 Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1GJ
The Owner/Occupier,

91 Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1GJ
The Owner/Occupier,

93 Castle Street,Belfast,Antrim,BT1 1GJ

Date of Last Neighbour Notification 10th August 2022

Page 131




Date of EIA Determination N/A

ES Requested Yes /No

Drawing Numbers and Title

01 — Site Location Plan

02 — Existing Hoarding Plans & Proposed Elevations
03 — Existing & Proposed Hoarding Elevations

Page 132




Agenda Item 6i

Development Management Officer Report
Committee Application

Summary

Committee Meeting Date: 20" September 2022

Application ID: LA04/2022/1079/F

Proposal: Location:

Proposal to erect 1No additional ball stop Cregagh Sports Club
netting structure along the boundary with Gibson Park Avenue
Cregagh Presbyterian Church. Structure to be Belfast

12.5m high and 32m long with 50mm mesh BT6 9GL

netting

Referral Route: Referral to the Planning Committee under Section 3.8.5 (d)

Recommendation: Approval subject to conditions

Applicant Name and Address: Agent Name and Address:
Cregagh Sports Club Stuart Catterson

Gibson Park Avenue 154 Orby Drive

Cregagh Road Belfast

Belfast BTS5 6BB

BT6 9GL

Executive Summary:

Full planning permission is sought to erect 1No additional ball stop netting structure along the
boundary with Cregagh Presbyterian Church. The proposal will be 12.5m high and 32m long with
50mm mesh netting to act as ball stop for both cricket balls and footballs.

The proposal is considered to be in compliance with the SPPS, in that it will not adversely impact on
the local character and appearance of the area.

Historic Environment Division (HED) has considered the impacts on the proposal on the listed
building and confirmed they are content with the proposal. The proposal is considered to comply
with PPS6.

The proposal is incidental to an existing use within an area of open space and will assist with the
overall functioning and recreational use of the sports grounds. The proposal is considered to
comply with PPS8.

No third party representations have been received.
Recommendation: Approval

Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations the proposal is considered
acceptable and planning permission is recommended for approval

Page 133



Application ID: LA04/2022/1079/F

Case Officer Report

Block Plan

-

Pagg 134




Application ID: LA04/2022/1079/F

Extisting bl stop fence pole 275 mm dameter Galvanized poles

125m
Dwwnrmad Haicks o Ral Snn Fanca

=

Extsting B3 Stop Fence 1 Church Hall 1 I Church Hall 2 !

comrscpncesoe 4 P10D0ed Elevation

Hsting Ball Stop Fence Church Hall 1

CvidinA Clauatinn Church Hall2 _

Characteristics of the Site and Area

1.0 Description of Proposed Development

1.1 Full planning permission is sought to erect 1No additional ball stop netting structure
along the boundary with Cregagh Presbyterian Church. The proposal will be 12.5m
high and 32m long with 50mm mesh netting to act as ball stop for both cricket balls and
footballs from the sports grounds.

2.0 Description of Site

2.1 The site is within Cregagh Sports Club off the Cregagh Road. Access to the site is via
Gibson Park Avenue.

2.2 To the west of the site are residential dwellings and a listed church with associated
buildings. There are residential dwellings to the east of the site and to the south of the
site.

2.3 The south western section of the site has a 12.5m high ball stop fence (previously

approved under application ref. LA04/2017/0782/F) with semi-detached dwellings at
Cregagh Court. The north western section of the site has a boundary with the church and
associated buildings.

Rage 435




Application ID: LA04/2022/1079/F

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations

3.0

Planning Site History

LA04/2017/2701/F Refurbishment of external envelope of Club House to include external
cladding to walls and new roof. Cregagh Sports Club, Gibson Park Avenue. Permission
Granted 15.03.18.

LA04/2017/0782/F Erection of 2 ball stop netting structures. Cregagh Sports Club, Gibson
Park Avenue. Permission Granted 30.10.17.

4.0

Policy Framework

4.1

4.2

4.3

Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001

Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015

Following the recent Court of Appeal decision on BMAP, the extant development plan is
now the BUAP. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP had reached pre-
adoption through a period of independent examination, the policies within the Draft BMAP
still carry weight and are a material consideration in the determination of planning
applications. The weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision maker.

Belfast Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strateqy 2035

The Belfast Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strategy 2035 will guide future planning
application decision making to support the sustainable spatial growth of the city up to
2035. The draft Plan Strategy has been subject to examination by the Planning Appeals
Commission and the Council has been provided with a copy of their Report, together
with a Direction from the Department for Infrastructure in relation to additional required
steps before it can be adopted. Paragraph 1.10 of the Strategic Planning Policy
Statement (SPPS) states that a transitional period will operate until such times as a
Council’s Plan Strategy has been adopted. Accordingly, whilst the Draft Plan Strategy is
now a material consideration it has limited weight until it is adopted and during this
transitional period existing policies will be applied including the SPPS and relevant
PPSs.

4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8

Strategic Planning Policy Statemen for NI (SPPS)

Planning Policy Statement 3: Access, Movement and Parking (Revised Feb 2005)
Planning Policy Statement 6: Planning, Archaeology and the Built Heritage
Planning Policy Statement 8: Open Space, Sport and Recreation

Section 80 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011.

5.0

Non-Statutory Consultees Responses

51

Northern Ireland Electricity — No objection.

6.0

Non-Statutory Consultees Responses

6.1

Historic Environment Division — The application site is in close proximity to Cregagh Road
Church and Hall (Grade B2 Listed) which is of special architectural or historic interest and
is protected by Section 80 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011.

HED had no objection in relation to the requirements of the Strategic Planning Policy
Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) para(s) 6.12 and of Planning Policy Statement 6:

Page. 136



Application ID: LA04/2022/1079/F

Planning, Archaeology and the Built Heritage (PPS6) Policy BH11 (Development
affecting the Setting of a Listed Building).

7.0

Representations

7.1

The application has been advertised in the local press on 24" June 2022 and
neighbours notified on 22nd June 2022. No third party representations have been
received.

8.0

Assessment

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

The proposal is to erect 1No addition ball stop netting structure along the boundary with
Cregagh Presbyterian Church. It is proposed that the structure will be 12.5metres high
and 32 metres long with 50mm mesh netting to act as a ball stop for both cricket balls
and footballs from the existing sports grounds.

The main issues to be considered are:

- Impact on Open Space

- Impact on the character and appearance of the area
- Impact on the listed building

- Impact on Amenity

The SPPS directs local authorities to consider the guiding principle for planning
authorities in determining planning applications in that sustainable development should
be permitted, having regard to the development plan and other material considerations,
unless the proposed development will cause demonstrable harm to interests of
acknowledged importance.

Impact on Open Space
This site is within the development limit for Belfast and zoned as an area of open space
within Cregagh Sports Grounds in draft BMAP.

Policy OS1 of PPS8 is applicable insofar in that the site is within an Area of Existing Open
Space. This sets out a presumption against the loss of open space. The proposal is
incidental to an existing use within an area of open space and will assist with the overall
functioning and recreational use of the sports grounds. Officers are satisfied that the
proposal complies with the relevant planning policy.

Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area

The new structure will be adjacent to a similar ball stop structure (12.5 metres high and
60 metres in length with 50mm mesh netting) which was approved under planning
reference LA04/2017/0782/F and erected in 2017. The mesh will be fixed to an existing
fence pole to the south and will be anchored at the northern end by a galvanized pole.
Additional wires will anchor the fence at the northern end. The proposal is considered to
be in compliance with the SPPS, in that it will not adversely impact on the local character
and appearance of the area.

Impact on Listed Building

The site is adjacent to Cregagh Road Church and Hall (Grade B2 Listed) which is of
special architectural or historic interest and is protected by Section 80 of the Planning Act
(NI) 2011. Historic Environment Division (HED) has considered the impacts on the
proposal on the listed buildings and confirmed they are content with the proposal. The
proposal complies with the SPPS and PPS6.

g8 437



Application ID: LA04/2022/1079/F

8.8

8.9

8.10

Impact on Amenity

The church and halls currently have no protection from the activities at the sports pitch.
The mesh fencing is required to protect these building and properties which back onto
the pitch.

The proposed net structures are not considered to have a detrimental impact on the
amenity of the neighbouring properties. The structures will be fitted with a mesh netting
which will allow light through and not cause overshadowing of the neighbouring
properties.

There is no intensification of use proposed. It is considered that there will not be an
increase in noise levels in the area due to the proposed net structures. Environmental
Health were consulted regarding the adjacent net structures and offered no objection.

9.0

Summary of Recommendation: Approval

9.1

Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the
proposal is considered acceptable and planning permission is recommended subject to
a condition.

10.0

Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from
the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.

Informatives

The applicant’s attention is drawn to the consultation responses received by the Council
in respect of this application. The responses can be viewed at
https://www.planningni.gov.uk/index/tools/public-access-info.htm.

Pagg. 138



Application ID: LA04/2022/1079/F

ANNEX
Date Valid 6™ June 2022
Date First Advertised 24™ June 2022

Date Last Advertised

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)
The Owner/Occupier,
1 Gibson Park Avenue,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
1 The Village Green,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
10 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
10 The Village Green,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
102-104,Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
11 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
11 The Village Green,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
12 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
12 The Village Green, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
13 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
14 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
15 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
16 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
17 Cregagh Court,Belfast

R98 439




Application ID: LA04/2022/1079/F

The Owner/Occupier,
18 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
19 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
2 The Village Green,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
20 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
21 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
22 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
22 Graham Gardens,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
23 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
24 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
24 Graham Gardens,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
3 Gibson Park Avenue,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
3 The Village Green,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
4 Gibson Park Avenue,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
4 The Village Green,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
42 Ladas Way,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
44 Ladas Way,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
46 Ladas Way,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
48 Ladas Way,Belfast,

The Owner/Occupier,

Pagg. 149




Application ID: LA04/2022/1079/F

5 The Village Green,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
50 Ladas Way,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
52 Ladas Way,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
54 Ladas Way,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
56 Ladas Way,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
58 Ladas Way,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
6 Gibson Park Avenue,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
6 The Village Green,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
60 Ladas Way,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
7 The Village Green,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
8 The Village Green,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
88a Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
9 Cregagh Court,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
9 The Village Green,Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
90a Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
90b Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
90c Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
90d Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
90e Cregagh Road, Belfast

g8 441




Application ID: LA04/2022/1079/F

The Owner/Occupier,
90f Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
90g Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
90h Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
90j Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
90k Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
90l Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
90m Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
92 Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
94 Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
96 Cregagh Road, Belfast

The Owner/Occupier,
98 Cregagh Road, Belfast

Date of Last Neighbour Notification 22" June 2022

Date of EIA Determination

ES Requested No

Drawing Numbers and Title

Drawing No. 01 - Site Location & Block Plan
Drawing No. 02 - Existing & Proposed Elevations

Notification to Department (if relevant) N/A
Elected Representation: No

Pagg b4do




Agenda Iltem 7a

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.

Document is Restricted

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.

Document is Restricted

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.

Document is Restricted

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.

Document is Restricted

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.

Document is Restricted

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.

Document is Restricted

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3a Ross Street
	3b Roumania Rise
	4 Planning Decisions Issued
	5 Appeals
	6a LA04/2022/0594/F 3-storey extension including bridge link to the existing school building, reconfiguration of existing parking with additional car parking areas, restoration of hard play areas, landscaping, retaining walls, and associated site, access and ancillary works at 700 Antrim Road
	6b LA04/2022/0917/F Renewal of temporary planning permission, Titanic Exhibition Centre, at 17 Queens Road
	6d LA04/2022/0209/F 31 social housing units comprising of 16 x apartments and 15 x townhouses, car parking, landscaping and all associated site and access works on lands at 176-184 and 202 Woodstock Road and 2-20 Beersbridge Road
	6e LA04/2021/2462/F 13 dwellings on lands 60m north west of Hazel View, Dunmurry
	6f LA04/2022/1236/F Art Sculpture on land located at roundabout junction approx. 100m south west of 385 Springfield Road
	6g LA04/2022/1018/F Retention of temporary car park at Ballymacarret Community Centre
	6h LA04/2022/1380/F Installation of three projector units to act as an interactive lighting installation along hoarding on Castle Street (temporary 2 years), 83-87 Castle Street
	6i LA04/2022/1079/F 1 additional ball stop netting structure along the boundary with Cregagh Presbyterian Church at Cregagh Sports Club, Gibson Park Avenue
	7a Quarter 1 Finance Report
	Pg 1 Planning  Cover sheet
	Pg 2 Planning  Dashboard
	Pg 3 Planning Net Rev Expend YTD Q1 22_23
	Pg 4 Planning Net Rev Expend Forecast YE Q1 22_23
	Pg 5 Planning  Budget Table


